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OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 0-27512
CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)
Delaware 47-0783182
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
9555 Maroon Circle
Englewood, Colorado 80112
(Address of principal executive offices, includingip code)
(303) 200-2000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tfe Act:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, Par Value $0.01 Per Share Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Act: None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbéturities Act.  YedX] No
O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d
No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wegjuired to file such reports) and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Ye&l No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquidlers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgalefinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to the Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantle&rge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See definition of “ large accatled filer,” “accelerated file” and “smaller repiog company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filerx] Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer] Smaller reporting companyl
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes [ No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndimy@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgistrant, computed by reference
to the last sales price of such stock, as of theecbf trading on June 29, 2007 v#ds$110,309,714

Shares of common stock outstanding at Februar@%53:34,922,179



DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant's Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of 8tkholders to be filed on or prior to April 29, 20,
are incorporated by reference into Part 11l of the Form 10-K.




Table of Contents

PART |

Item 1.
Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Item 2.
Iltem 3.
Iltem 4.

PART Il

Item 5.
Item 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Iltem 9A.
Item 9B.

PART Il

Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

PART IV

Item 15.
Signatures

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
2007 FORM 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Commen

Properties

Legal Proceeding

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holc

Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity Securil
Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatia

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary |

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants @oudting and Financial Disclosu

Controls and Procedur

Other Informatior

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goveos

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dMahagement and Related Stockholder Mai
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsParettor Independenc

Principal Accounting Fees and Servi

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedt

Page

10
14
14
14
14

19
22
24
43

82
82
82

82
82
82

83

83
84



Table of Contents

PART |

ltem 1. Business
Overview

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, @& Sor forms of the pronoun “we%yas formed in October 1994 and acquired &
the outstanding stock of CSG Systems, Inc. (foryn€dble Services Group, Inc.) from First Data Cogtion (“FDC”) in November 1994.
CSG Systems, Inc. had been a subsidiary or divisidtDC from 1982 until this acquisition.

We are a leading provider of outsourced solutitias tacilitate customer interaction managementerbehalf of our clients, generating
approximately 95% of our 2007 revenues from thettNdmerican cable and Direct Broadcast satelli2RS”) communications markets. C
solutions also support an increasing number ofrdtitkistries such as financial services, utilitteéecommunications, and home security.

Our solutions manage key customer interactions asaet-up and activation of customer accountss saipport and marketing, order
processing, invoice calculation (i.e., customélir), production and mailing of monthly customevadices, management reporting, electr
presentment and payment of invoices, automatedra@ichctive messaging, and deployment and managevh#me client’s field technicians
to the customer’s home. Our unique combinatiorodit®ns, services, and expertise ensure thatl@nts can rapidly launch new service
offerings, improve operational efficiencies, andhvaa a high-quality customer experience in a cotitipe and ever-changing marketplace.

Our principal executive offices are located at 98&&00on Circle, Englewood, Colorado 80112, andtéhephone number at that addi
is (303) 200-2000. Our common stock is listed aNASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. under the symbol “CSG®E are an S&P Midcap 400
company.

General Development of Business

Comcast Business Relationship September 1997, we entered into a 15-year eixelu®ntract (the “Master Subscriber Agreement”)
with Tele-Communications, Inc. (“TCITp consolidate all TCI customers onto our custooae and billing systems. This transaction allo
our company to substantially increase the numbeusfomers processed on our systems, and at thewias one of the catalysts to the
growth of our domestic broadband business.

In 1999 and 2000, respectively, AT&T completedhitsrgers with TCI and MediaOne Group, Inc. (“Medi@)nand consolidated the
merged operations into AT&T Broadband (“AT&T"), amek continued to service the merged operationsruhéeerms of the Master
Subscriber Agreement. On November 18, 2002, Conargioration (“Comcast”) completed its merger WKR&T, and assumed the Master
Subscriber Agreement. Comcast is our largest ¢limaking up approximately 27% of our total revenime2007.

During 2002 and 2003, we were involved in varicagal proceedings with Comcast, consisting printypafi arbitration proceedings
related to the Master Subscriber Agreement. In REt@003, we received an unfavorable ruling inahstration proceedings. The Comcast
arbitration ruling included an award of $119.6 ioitl to be paid by us to Comcast. The award wasdbasehe arbitrator’s determination that
we had violated the most favored nations (“MFN'gude of the Master Subscriber Agreement. We reddtaefull impact from the
arbitration ruling in the third quarter of 2003asharge to revenues. In addition, the arbitratiding also required that we invoice Comcast
for lower fees under the MFN clause of the Mastdrsgriber Agreement beginning in October 2003. Tilag the effect of reducing quarterly
revenues from Comcast by approximately $13-14 oml($52-56 million annually), when compared to amtsiprior to the arbitration ruling.
In March 2004, we signed a new contract with Comtas “Comcast Contractthat runs through December 31, 2008. The Comcastrax
superseded the former Master Subscriber Agreerhahtvas set to expire at the end of
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2012. The pricing inherent in the Comcast Contwead consistent with that of the arbitration rulingctober 2003. See Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®bults of Operations (“MD&A”) for additional disssion of our business relationship
with Comcast.

Discontinued Operation$n February 2002, we acquired the billing and cotocare assets of Lucent Technologies (“Lucent”).
Lucent’s billing and customer care business coadiptimarily of: (i) software products and relateshsulting services acquired by Lucent
when it purchased Kenan Systems Corporation inugerl999; (ii) BILLDATS Data Manager mediation seére; and (iii) elements of
Lucent’s client support, product support, and sales marketing organizations (collectively, the fige Business”). This acquisition allowed
us to expand our customer care and billing produndtservice offerings into international markets.[@cember 9, 2005, we sold our Global
Software Services (“GSS”) business (“GSS Businesgtch consisted principally of the acquired Kearsiness, to Comverse, Inc., a
division of Comverse Technology, Inc. (“Comversél} a result of our sale of the GSS Business, wiemger provide customer care and
billing products or services outside of North AnceriThe decision to sell the GSS Business alloveddtensify our focus on our core
competencies in the cable and DBS markets utiliomgAdvanced Convergent Platform (“ACP”) productiaelated services. See Note 2 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&Addditional discussion of the sale of the GSS Bssine

In addition to the sale of the GSS Business noede, we also sold our plaNet Consulting businessdroup of private investors led
by the plaNet management team on December 30, 2804 result of these sales, the results of operatior the GSS and plaNet businesses
have been reflected as discontinued operatioralifperiods presented in the accompanying Congeliti&tatements of Income. The
remainder of the “Business” section of this FormKL® focused on our continuing operations. Seeell@and 5 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements and MD&A for additional dissios of our reporting of discontinued operations] ¢he impact these sales had on our
reporting of segment and related information.

Industry Overview

BackgroundWe provide our customer interaction managementisolsi primarily to the North American cable and DBS
communications markets. Our client base includesesof the world’s largest and most innovative saryroviders of bundled multi-channel
video, Internet, voice and IP-based services. Olutisns coordinate and manage the many aspethe @ustomers’ interactions with a
service provider, from the initial set-up and aatien of customer accounts, to the support of werigervice activities, through the
presentment of customer invoices and accountsvauiel management.

Market Conditions of Communications Indusffire North American communications industry has egpeed significant consolidatic
and increased competition among service providerd there is the possibility of further consolidatiMarket consolidation results in a fev
number of service providers who have massive suadecan deliver a total communications package.sigraficant plant upgrades and
network rationalizations that have taken place Falaved service providers to focus their attentionnew revenue and growth opportunit
In addition, new competitors, new technologies, anidue partnerships are forcing service providetse more creative in their approaches
for rolling out new products and services and enlmntheir customer®xperiences. These factors drive the demand féaldeaflexible, an
cost efficient customer interaction managementt&sis, which we believe will provide us with revenopportunities.

However, another facet of this market consolidafioses certain risks to our company. The consdadidaif service providers decreases
the potential number of buyers for our products serices, and carries the inherent risk that thmsalidators may choose to move their
purchased customers to a competitor's solutionuihthis consolidation result in a concentratiorce$tomer accounts being owned by
companies with whom we do not have a relationghipyith whom competitors are entrenched, it coiddatively affect our ability to
maintain or expand our market share, thereby haaimgterial adverse effect to our results of ojp@mnat In addition, service providers at
times have chosen to use their size and scaleett more pressure on pricing negotiations.
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In addition, it is widely anticipated that traditial wireline and wireless telephone service prawdell continue their aggressive purs
of providing convergent services. These providengetrecently entered the residential video magkeiarket which has historically been
dominated by our clients. Should these traditidak@phone service providers be successful in théeo strategy, it could threaten our clients’
market share, and thus our revenues as, genepalhkimg, traditional wireline and wireless telepbg@noviders do not currently use our
products and services.

Business Strategy
Our business strategy is designed to achieve grofuttvenues and profitability. The key elementsaf business strategy include:

Expand Our Core Customer Information Processing @utpbut Solutions Most of our revenues are generated from our cosgomer
information processing and output solutions. Wevjat® a fully outsourced processing solution thahbimes the reliability and high-volume
transaction processing capabilities of an entezmésver platform with the flexibility of clientfsesr architecture. As of December 31, 2007,
we had approximately 45 million customer accoumt®or processing systems. In addition, we provifldlauite of output solutions that
include statement design, printing, marketing s&w;j electronic bill presentment, inserting andinmaion a variety of high-speed equipment.
We provide our output solutions primarily to thasients that utilize our information processingwsegs, but also provide such services to
clients that do not utilize our outsourced customrmation processing services. As of December2BD7, our average production volume
for our output solutions was approximately 60 raitlicustomer statements per month.

Our customer information processing and outputtgmis provide highly predictable, recurring revestierough multi-year contracts
with a client base that includes leading cable @B& providers. We will continue to leverage oureatment in and expertise in providing
enhanced customer interaction management solud®mnge look to expand these core elements of ouméss Our customer information
processing solutions are currently designed todaouthe North American cable and DBS markets. &ulr output solution clients are
primarily those that utilize our customer infornzattiprocessing solutions, we look to continue tcaexpthis solution set to other markets that
demand high-quality, recurring monthly output sans$, such as financial services, utilities, telaamunications, and home security.

Increase the Penetration of Ancillary Products/S$es.We provide a complete suite of fully-integratedtouser interaction
management products and services that complemerustomer information processing and output sohigiplatforms. While our primary
value proposition to our clients is the breadth depith of this integrated offering, we are evolving product solutions to allow clients to
utilize certain of our products as point solutions.

Our ancillary products and services enable andnaaite various aspects of a service provider's custamteractions, ranging from the
call center, to the field technicians, to the eagtemer. As our clients’ businesses have conselidlahd become much more complex with an
increasingly diverse portfolio of service offeringge have seen an increase in demand for our ancproducts and services, as our products
are designed to help our clients solve their ebanging customer interaction business needs asatissy,

Evolve Our Products and Services to Meet the Chnnljieeds of Our Clientdn 1995, we offered our solutions solely to poris of
analog cable video. Since then, our solutions lexetved and expanded to accommodate DBS, digitlelosihigh-speed Internet (“HSI”) and
digital voice. Our clients continue to look to amidre services to their product bundle, includingaated IP and wireless services, as well as
services to commercial customers. Our continuedstnaent in our solution set is designed to expamaostomer interaction management
capabilities to enable our clients to grow thewdarct offerings, control costs, and provide bettestomer service.
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Enhance Growth Through Focused Acquisitiokige follow a disciplined approach in acquiringetssand businesses which provide the
technology and technical personnel to expeditepoatiuct development efforts, provide complemenpanducts and services, increase
market share, and/or provide access to new maaketglients.

Continue Technology LeadershijVe believe that our product technology and irdegt suite of software solutions gives
communications service providers a competitive athge. Our continuing investment in research angldement (“R&D”) is designed to
position us to meet the growing and evolving nefdsxisting and potential clients. Over the lagefyears, we have invested approximately
$200 million, or approximately 11% of our total eswes, into R&D.

In summary, our R&D and recent acquisition effodiscussed below, have better positioned us tetassi clients and enable both of
to grow through maximizing every customer intemttiWe have continually shown our commitment tavéelsolutions and services to our
clients with the highest level of performance amadctionality, and with our continued investmenR&D and acquisition activities, we
believe we will continue to find ways to solve alients’ business challenges and provide them witbmpetitive advantage. While we
continue to strive to provide superior solutiond arrvices to our existing clients, we will congénio focus on growing and diversifying our
business and finding new ways to expand our footjm some of the new vertical markets we haveredteith our recent acquisitions

Description of Business

Clients. We work with the leading cable and DBS providecsaited in the U.S. and Canada. A partial listhaiSe service providers as
December 31, 2007 is included below:

Charter Communications (“Charter”) DISH Network Corporation (“DISH”), formerly EchoSt€ommunications
Corporatior

Comcast Corporatior*Comcas”) Mediacom Communicatior

Cox Communication Time Warner Inc.“ Time Warne")

The North American communications industry has egpeed significant consolidation over the last fgars, resulting in a large
percentage of the market being served by a linitedber of service providers with greater size arades Consistent with this market
concentration, a large percentage of our historeanues have been generated from a limited nuoflients, with approximately 70% of
our revenues being generated from our four larglestts, which include Comcast, DISH, Time Warraargd Charter. Revenues from these
clients represented the following percentages otatal revenues for 2007 and 2006:

2001 200¢
Comcas! 27% 24%
DISH 20% 19%
Time Warnel 13% 12%
Charter 9% 11%

Research and Developmer®ur clients are facing more competition than daafore from new entrants, and at the same tinee, ar
deploying new services at a faster pace than exferdy dramatically increasing the complexity adithhusiness operations. Therefore, we
continue to invest heavily in R&D to ensure thatstay ahead of our clients’ needs and advanceliemtg business as well as our own. We
recognize these challenges and believe our valygopition is to provide solutions that help ouents ensure that each interaction they have
with their customers is an opportunity to creati@and deepen the business relationship. As & fsaur R&D efforts, we have broadened
our footprint within our client base with many irvative product offerings.
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Our total R&D expenses were $58.3 million and $4fillion, respectively, for 2007 and 2006, or appneately 14% and 12% of total
revenues. In the near term, we expect that theeptage of our total revenues to be spent on R&Beteelatively consistent with that of 2007,
with the level of our R&D spend highly dependentmiphe opportunities that we see in our markets.

There are certain inherent risks associated wighifitant technological innovations. Some of thasks are described in this report in
our Risk Factors section below.

Products and Service®ur primary product offerings include our core outsed processing product, Advanced Convergenfotat
(“ACP"), and related services and software producténclude our output solutions. A backgroundhigh-volume transaction processing and
statement production, complemented with world-chggslications software, allows us to offer onelaf most comprehensive, pre-integrated
products and services solutions to the cable anfl DBRrket. We believe this pre-integrated approachoaitsourced delivery model allows
our clients to get new product offerings to madgaitkly and provide high-quality customer servioaicost effective manner.

We license certain software products (e.g., ACSRrRfdrce Express, etc.) and provide our professiservices principally to our
existing base of processing clients to enhancedhe functionality of ACP, increase the efficierazyd productivity of the clients’ operations,
and allow clients to effectively roll out new prarsi and services to new and existing markets, aadtS| and telephony to residential and
commercial customers.

Historically, a substantial percentage of our toé&lenues have been generated from ACP processthguaput services and related
software products. These products and servicesxgected to provide a substantial percentage ofatak revenues in the foreseeable future
as well.

ACP Architectural Upgrade and Migratioluring 2004, we completed a significant architegtwipgrade to our primary product, then
called CCS, and related services and software ptedlihis enhancement, called ACP, has increasedhility to support convergent
broadband services including cross-service bundéingvergent order entry and advanced service ginning capabilities for multiple
products to one end customer, such as video, H@llVaice over Internet Protocol (“VolP”). This adchaed convergent solution for
broadband service providers facilitates our clieot&ring of combinations of video, voice and datxvices (commonly referred to in the
industry as the “triple-play” service offering). Wave successfully migrated all of the cable custoatcounts processed on our systems to
our ACP platform, giving our clients the full benteff our technology to support the advanced méamkeand rollout of new services.

Continued Evolution of ACRVe continue to evolve ACP, both functionally andhétecturally, in response to market demands that o
products have certain functional features and défled, as well as architectural flexibilities (duas service oriented architecture, or SOA).
This product evolution will result in the modulaation of certain product functionality that histaily has been tightly integrated with the
ACP platform, which will allow us to respond mongickly to required changes to our products and igeogreater interoperability with other
computer systems. Although our primary value praposto our clients will continue to be the brefadind depth of our fully pre-integrated
solution, these R&D efforts will also allow us tepgrate certain software components so as to allmiv components to be marketed on a
stand-alone basis where a specific client requirgraed/or business need dictates, including theofisertain products across non-CSG
customer care and billing systems.

Telution AcquisitionAs part of this product evolution strategy, we doepl Telution, Inc. (“Telution”) in March of 2006 tfurther
expand these capabilities around our ACP platf@ar. recent R&D efforts include the integration leése acquired technologies into our
solution set. In particular, the acquired softnaseets are an integral part of the new functigntiiat has been added to our ACP platform
since the acquisition, including a robust prodatatog, offer and order management functions, andyzt capabilities to support commer:
customers.
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ComTec Acquisitiorin July of 2007 we acquired ComTec, Inc. (“ComTeed)expand our output solutions footprint and tulfiees.
With this acquisition, we added enhanced stateqttuction and electronic statement presentatiodweare and software technologies, as
well as additional plant capacities. These techgiely which include extensive highlight color and-sheet printing capabilities, will
accelerate our ability to offer enhanced outputfiomality to existing and prospective customensadidition, the acquisition increased our
presence in our core cable television and DBS nisyrkénile also providing an established customeeba new industry verticals such as
telecommunications, home security, healthcarenfiiad services, and utilities.

Prairie Acquisition.In August of 2007 we acquired Prairie Voice Sersjdac. This business, which was renamed Praiterdative
Messaging, Inc. (“Prairie”), extends our suite odgucts and solutions that help our clients maxintiee value of their interactions with their
customers. Prairie provides inbound and outboutnohaated voice, text/SMS, email, and fax messagéngiaes to manage workforce
communications, collections, lead generation, aatechorder capture, service outage notificationd,ather key business functions. We
acquired Prairie to extend our customer interaati@magement capabilities within our core cablevisien and DBS markets, while also
providing an established customer base in new inglusrticals such as financial services and tefeooinications.

FDC Data Processing FacilitféVe outsource to FDC the data processing and retategbuter services required for the operation of ou
processing services. Our ACP proprietary softwact@her software applications are run in FDC'slitgdo obtain the necessary enterprise
server computer capacity and other computer sugpovices without us having to make the substacipital and infrastructure investments
that would be necessary for us to provide thesacges internally. Our clients are connected toRBeC facility through a combination of
private and commercially-provided networks. Ouvgsr agreement with FDC expires June 30, 2010jsndncelable only for cause, as
defined in the agreement. We believe we could abitainframe data processing services from alteraaturces, if necessary. We have a
business continuity plan as part of our agreemdtRDC should the FDC data processing center safieextended business interruption or
outage. This plan is tested on an annual basis.

Client and Product Suppor®ur clients typically rely on us for ongoing suptpand training needs related to our products. We lza
multi-level support environment for our clients,iehincludes dedicated account management teasigpmort the business, operational, and
functional requirements of each client. These astteams help clients resolve strategic and busiisssies and are supported by our Product
Support Center (“PSC"), which operates 24 houraya seven days a week. Clients call an 800 nunalper through an automated voice
response unit, have their calls directed to the@pgate PSC personnel to answer their questioreshélve a full-time training staff and
conduct ongoing training sessions both in the feald at our training facilities.

Sales and MarketingVe organize our sales efforts to existing cliemimprily within our dedicated account teams, wigmier level
account managers who are responsible for new rexgegind renewal of existing contracts within a ¢lascount. The account teams are
supported by sales support personnel who are ey in the various products and services thairaxdde. In addition, we have dedicated
staff engaged in selling our products and servicgsospective clients.

Competition.The market for customer interaction managementymisdand services in the converging communicafiotigstry in
North America, as well as in other industries wevsgis highly competitive. We compete with botldépendent outsourced providers ar-
house developers of customer management systemiselgge that our most significant competitors im primary markets are Amdocs
Limited, Convergys Corporation, Oracle Corporatiand in-house systems. Some of our actual and f@teompetitors have substantially
greater financial, marketing, and technologicabueses than us.
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We believe service providers in our industry useftillowing criteria when selecting a vendor toypde customer care and billing
products and services: (i) functionality, scalapjlflexibility, interoperability, and architectud the software assets; (ii) the breadth and ¢
of pre-integrated product solutions; (iii) prodgetality, client service, and support; (iv) qualityR&D efforts; and (v) price. We believe that
our products and services allow us to compete &ffdyg in these areas.

Proprietary Rights and Licenses

We rely on a combination of trade secret and cgbyilaws, nondisclosure agreements, and otheracuotl and technical measures to
protect our proprietary rights in our products. Whire hold a limited number of patents on someusfreewer products, we do not rely upon
patents as a primary means of protecting our rightsir intellectual property. There can be no emsce that these provisions will be adeq
to protect our proprietary rights. Although we beb that our intellectual property rights do ndtimge upon the proprietary rights of third
parties, there can be no assurance that thircepastil not assert infringement claims against uewr clients.

We continually assess whether there is any rigiutantellectual property rights. Should these sible improperly assessed, or if for any
reason should our right to develop, produce antibiige our products be successfully challengebleosignificantly curtailed, it could have a
material adverse impact on our financial conditimal results of operations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had a total of 1,87@leyees, an increase of 192, or 11%, from Decer@beR006. The increase in
number of employees is due to (i) the additionropyees from the ComTec and Prairie acquisitiansg, (ii) an increase in our R&D and
support function personnel to support the develagraad roll out of new products. Our success issddpnt upon our ability to attract and
retain qualified employees. None of our employegessabject to a collective bargaining agreementbéleve that our relations with our
employees are good.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports-orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxyerials, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Secti8(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Actaaalable free of charge on our website at
www.csgsystems.com. Additionally, these reportsaaalable at the SEC’'s Public Reference Room @tRAGtreet, NE., Washington, D.C.
20549 or on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. madion on the operation of the Public ReferenceriRoan be obtained by calling the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethiws {Code of Conduct”) is maintained on our wehshtey future amendment to the
Code of Conduct, or any future waiver of a provisid our Code of Conduct, will be timely postedbtar website upon their occurrence.
Historically, we have had minimal changes to oud€of Conduct, and have had no waivers of a prawisf our Code of Conduct.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

We or our representatives from time-to-time may enakmay have made certain forward-looking statémevhether orally or in
writing, including without limitation, any such séments made or to be made in MD&A contained invauious SEC filings or orally in
conferences or teleconferences. We wish to enbatestich statements are accompanied by meanirggitiboary statements, so as to ensure,
to the fullest extent possible, the protectionthefsafe harbor established in the Private Seesiiiitigation Reform Act of 1995.

Accordingly, the forward-looking statements arelidiea in their entirety by reference to and are@mpanied by the following
meaningful cautionary statements identifying certeiportant risk factors that could cause actusllts to differ materially from those in
such forward-looking statements. This list of ffiaktors is likely not exhaustive. We operate impidly changing and evolving market
involving the North American communications indyste.g., bundled multi-channel video, Internet,ceoand IP-based services), and new
risk factors will likely emerge. Management canpdict all of the important risk factors, nor daassess the impact, if any, of such risk
factors on our business or the extent to whichrakyfactor, or combination of risk factors, maysa actual results to differ materially from
those in any forward-looking statements. Accordinttere can be no assurance that forward-looKiaigments will be accurate indicators of
future actual results, and it is likely that actredults will differ from results projected in foand-looking statements and that such differences
may be material.

We Derive a Significant Portion of Our RevenuesnrLimited Number of Clients, and the Loss ofthisiness of a Significant Client
Would Materially Adversely Affect Our Financial Glition and Results of OperatioriBhe North American communications industry has
experienced significant consolidation over the fagt years, resulting in a large percentage ohtheket being served by a limited number of
service providers with greater size and scale. [Starg with this market concentration, a large patage of our revenues are generated fr
limited number of clients, with approximately 70%ownir revenues being generated from our four ldrgients, which are (in order of size)
Comcast, DISH, Time Warner, and Charter. See thrifgiant Client Relationships section of MD&A fley renewal dates and a brief
summary of our business relationship with thesentsi.

There are inherent risks whenever a large percertaptal revenues are concentrated with a limitgahber of clients. One such risk is
that, should a significant client: (i) terminatefail to renew their contracts with us, in wholeipart for any reason; (i) significantly reduce
the number of customer accounts processed on etersy, the price paid for our services, or the sadservices that we provide; or
(iii) experience significant financial or operatidgficulties, it could have a material adverseseffon our financial condition and results of
operations.

Our industry is highly competitive, and the podgipthat a major client may move all or a portiohits customers to a competitor has
increased. While our clients may incur some costiitching to our competitors, they may do sodmariety of reasons, including: (i) if we
do not maintain favorable relationships; (ii) if We not provide satisfactory services and produmtsiii) for reasons associated with price.

A Reduction in Demand for Our Key Customer Care Rilthg Products and Services Could Have a Matefidverse Effect on Our
Financial Condition and Results of OperatioHistorically, a substantial percentage of our toé@enues have been generated from our core
outsourced processing product, ACP, and relatedces: These products and services are expectmshtmue to provide a large percentage
of our total revenues in the foreseeable futurey gignificant reduction in demand for ACP and rethservices could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oémgtions.

We May Not Be Able to Respond to the Rapid TecbiwaloChanges in Our Industrifthe market for customer care and billing systems
is characterized by rapid changes in technologyisththhly competitive with respect to the needtforely product innovations and new
product introductions. As a result, we believe that

10



Table of Contents

future success in sustaining and growing our regemiepends upon the continued market acceptare pfoducts, especially ACP, and our
ability to continuously adapt, modify, maintaindamperate our products to address the increasoughplex and evolving needs of our clie
without sacrificing the reliability or quality ohée products. In addition, the market is demandiadg our products have greater architectural
flexibility and interoperability with other computeystems, and that we are able to meet the denfantéchnological advancements to our
products and services at a greater pace. Atteropigeet these demands subjects our R&D effortsdatgr risks.

As a result, substantial R&D will be required tointain the competitiveness of our products andisesvin the market. Technical
problems may arise in developing, maintaining aperating our products and services as the com@exre increased. Development
projects can be lengthy and costly, and may beestibj changing requirements, programming diffieslta shortage of qualified personnel,
and/or unforeseen factors which can result in delbyaddition, we may be responsible for the impatation of new products and/or the
migration of clients to new products, and dependipgn the specific product, we may also be respta&or operations of the product.

There is an inherent risk in the successful devalam, implementation, migration, and operationswfproducts and services as the
technological complexities, and the pace at whiehmust deliver these products and services to marmtinue to increase. The risk of
making an error that causes significant operatidigliption to a client increases proportionateighvwhe frequency and complexity of
changes to our products and services. There can bssurance: (i) of continued market acceptanceiioproducts and services; (i) that we
will be successful in the development of produdtacements or new products that respond to tecpicalcadvances or changing client
needs at the pace the market demands; or (iiimibatill be successful in supporting the impleménta migration and/or operations of
product enhancements or new products.

Our Business is Dependent on the North AmericarieCatd DBS IndustriedVe have historically generated a significant porid our
revenues by providing products and services todian the North American cable and DBS industrifedecrease in the number of custon
served by our clients, an adverse change in theogaiz condition of these industries, and/or chaggionsumer demand for services could
have a material adverse effect on our results efatjpns. Additionally, a significant portion of ohistorical growth has come from our
support of clients’ expansion into new lines ofibess, such as HSI and VolP. There can be no agmuthat our current and potential clients
will be successful in expanding into new segmehth® converging communications industry. Even #jon forays into new markets by our
current or potential clients are successful, we tiaynable to meet the special billing and custdnteraction management needs of those
markets.

Our clients operate in a highly competitive enviramt. It is widely anticipated that traditional ®line and wireless telephone service
providers, and others, will continue their aggressiursuit of providing convergent services, inahgdaresidential video, a market historically
dominated by our clients. Should these alternager@ice providers be successful in their videasgies, it could threaten our clients’ market
share, and thus our source of revenues, as genspalhking these companies do not use our coreipi®dnd services and there can be no
assurance that new entrants will become our clients

The Consolidation of the North American Cable aBS0ndustry May Have a Material Adverse Effect am Results of Operations.
The North American cable and DBS industry may curito be subject to significant ownership chan@e® facet of these changes is that
consolidation by and among our core client basectble and DBS providers, as well as new entsardl as the traditional wireline and
wireless carriers, will decrease the potential nendd buyers for our products and services. Shthede consolidations result in a
concentration of customer accounts being ownedbypanies with whom we do not have a relationshipyith whom competitors are
entrenched, we could be subject to the inherekithiat subscribers will be moved off of us and centmompetitor’s system, thereby having a
material adverse effect on our results of operation
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Furthermore, movement of our clients’ customersfiaur systems to a competitor’s system as a resudgionalization strategies by our
clients could have a material adverse affect onoperations. Finally, as the result of the constiahs, our current and potential clients may
choose to use their size and scale to exercise sewgre pressure on pricing negotiations.

We Face Significant Competition in Our Indusife market for our products and services is higbiypetitive. We directly compete
with both independent providers of products angises and in-house systems developed by existidgatential clients. In addition, some
independent providers are entering into strateljamaes with other independent providers, resglimeither new competitors, or competitors
with greater resources. Many of our current an@mpiidl competitors have significantly greater fioiah marketing, technical, and other
competitive resources than our company, many vigghificant and well-established domestic and indional operations. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete sucdgsegfith our existing competitors or with new conijpers.

Client Bankruptcies Could Adversely Affect Our Bass, and Any Accounting Reserves We Have Esidblidhy Not Be Sufficierin
the past, certain of our clients have filed for kraptcy protection. Companies involved in bankryptcoceedings pose greater financial risks
to us, consisting principally of possible claimspoéferential payments for certain amounts paidstprior to the bankruptcy filing date, as
well as increased collectibility risk for accoungégeivable, particularly those accounts receivéide relate to periods prior to the bankruptcy
filing date. We consider such risks in assessimg@enue recognition and the collectibility of aaots receivable related to our clients that
have filed for bankruptcy protection, and for thaients that are seriously threatened with a fdsdiankruptcy filing. We establish
accounting reserves for our estimated exposurbesetitems. However, there can be no assuranceuhatcounting reserves related to this
exposure will be adequate. Should any of the faatonsidered in determining the adequacy of theadiveserves change adversely, an
adjustment to the accounting reserves may be ragesecause of the potential significance of éxiposure, such an adjustment could be
material.

We May Incur Additional Material Restructuring Clgas in the FutureSince the third quarter of 2002, we have recorésttucturing
charges related to involuntary employee terminatioarious facility abandonments, and various otestructuring activities. The accounting
for facility abandonments requires highly subjeetivdgments in determining the proper accountiagtiment for such matters. We
continually evaluate our assumptions, and adjwstékated restructuring reserves based on theaegrgissumptions at that time. Moreover, we
continually evaluate ways to reduce our operatikgeases through new restructuring opportunitieduing more effective utilization of our
assets, workforce and operating facilities. Assalltgthere is a reasonable likelihood that we mawr additional material restructuring
charges in the future.

Failure to Attract and Retain Our Key Managemend &ther Highly Skilled Personnel Could Have a MateAdverse Effect on Our
BusinessOur future success depends in large part on thiéenced service of our key management, sales, ptatbwelopment, and
operational personnel. We believe that our futuieeess also depends on our ability to attract atadrr highly skilled technical, managerial,
operational, and marketing personnel, includingyarticular, personnel in the areas of R&D and mézd support. Competition for qualified
personnel at times can be intense, particularthénareas of R&D, conversions, software implemérriat and technical support, especially
now that market conditions are improved and theatehfor such talent has increased. For these reas@may not be successful in
attracting and retaining the personnel we requitéch could have a material adverse effect on bilitgto meet our commitments and new
product delivery objectives.

We May Not Be Successful in the Integration of Sequisitions As part of our growth strategy, we seek to acqassets, technology,
and businesses which will provide the technology chnical personnel to expedite our product dgraknt efforts, provide complement:
products or services, or provide access to new ewsdnd clients.
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Acquisitions involve a number of risks and diffitas, including: (i) expansion into new markets &uodiness ventures; (i) the
requirement to understand local business pract{ggshe diversion of management’s attentiontie aissimilation of acquired operations and
personnel; and (iv) potential adverse effects onrapany’s operating results for various reasorwyding, but not limited to, the following
items: (@) the inability to achieve revenue targ@dsthe inability to achieve certain operatingesgies; (c) charges related to purchased in-
process R&D projects; (d) costs incurred to exit@nt or acquired contracts or activities; (e) sasturred to service any acquisition debt;
and (f) the amortization or impairment of intangilalssets.

Due to the multiple risks and difficulties assoedtvith any acquisition, there can be no assurtiratenve will be successful in achiev
our expected strategic, operating, and financialgfor any such acquisition.

Failure to Protect Our Proprietary Intellectual Pperty Rights Could Have a Material Adverse EffecOur Financial Condition and
Results of OperationWe rely on a combination of trade secret and cgpyiaws, nondisclosure agreements, and otheracnotl and
technical measures to protect our proprietary sighmbour products. We also hold a limited numbepatents on some of our newer products,
but do not rely upon patents as a primary meamsatécting our rights in our intellectual propeffhere can be no assurance that these
provisions will be adequate to protect our propmgtights. Although we believe that our intellemdtproperty rights do not infringe upon the
proprietary rights of third parties, there can beassurance that third parties will not asseririggment claims against us or our clients.

We continually assess whether there are any risksit intellectual property rights. Should thes&sibe improperly assessed or if for
any reason should our right to develop, producedistdbute our products be successfully challengielde significantly curtailed, it could
have a material adverse effect on our financiabld@n and results of operations.

The Delivery of Our Products and Services is Depehdn a Variety of Computing Environments and Camoations Networks,
Which May Not Be Available or May Be Subject tauigcAttacks Our products and services are generally delivaremugh a variety of
computing environments operated by us, which weaasilectively refer to herein as “Systems.” We yidee such computing environments
through both outsourced arrangements, such asatapdocessing arrangement with FDC, as well &sriatly operating numerous distribu
servers in geographically dispersed environmerite.@nd users are connected to our Systems throuatiedy of public and private
communications networks, which we will collectivebfer to herein as “Networks.” Our products andiises are generally considered to be
mission critical customer management systems bylgemts. As a result, our clients are highly degent upon the continuous availability ¢
uncompromised security of our Networks and Systent®nduct their business operations.

Our Networks and Systems are subject to the rigina#xtended interruption or outage due to manypfasuch as: (i) planned changes
to our Systems and Networks for such things ascsdbd maintenance and technology upgrades, or tiogesato other technologies, service
providers, or physical location of hardware; (iij)pnhan and machine error; (iii) acts of nature; amdiftentional, unauthorized attacks from
computer “hackers.” In addition, we continue to @&xg@ our use of the Internet with our product offgs thereby permitting, for example, our
clients’ customers to use the Internet to revieeoaat balances, order services or execute sinilerunt management functions. Allowing
access to our Networks and Systems via the Intémoetases their vulnerability to unauthorized ascand corruption, as well as increasing
the dependency of our Systems’ reliability on thailability and performance of the Internet’s irdaucture.

As a means to mitigate certain risks in this afeauo business, we have done the following: (ipbkshed policies and procedures
related to planned changes to our Systems and Metw@) implemented a business continuity planinclude testing certain aspects of this
plan on a periodic basis; and (iii) implementeeeusity and data privacy program (utilizing ISO 297s a guideline) designed to mitigate
the risk of an unauthorized access to the NetwarnkkSystems primarily through the use of netwadwfalls, procedural controls, intrusion
detection systems and antivirus applications. bhitamh, we undergo periodic security reviews oftagr aspects of our Networks and Systems
by independent parties.
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The method, manner, cause and timing of an exteimdexduption or outage in our Networks or Systeresimpossible to predict. As a
result, there can be no assurances that our Nesveortt Systems will not fail, or that our businesstinuity plans will adequately mitigate all
damages incurred as a consequence. Should our NstaoSystems: (i) experience an extended intéoar outage, (ii) have their secur
breached, or (iii) have their data lost, corruptedtherwise compromised, it would impede our aptb meet product and service delivery
obligations, and likely have an immediate impadhi® business operations of our clients. This wouddt likely result in an immediate loss
us of revenue or increase in expense, as wellmsgiag our reputation. Any of these events coulceHaoth an immediate, negative impact
upon our financial condition and our short-termemwe and profit expectations, as well as our l@mgHability to attract and retain new
clients.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
As of December 31, 2007, we were operating frorhtdigased sites in the U.S., representing appraeim&35,000 square feet. This
amount excludes approximately 84,000 square feleiasked space that we have abandoned.

We lease office facilities totaling approximate§01000 square feet in Englewood, Colorado and sadimg communities. We utilize
these office facilities primarily for: (i) corpomheadquarters; (ii) sales and marketing activifiésproduct and operations support; and
(iv) R&D activities. The leases for these officeifdies expire in the years 2013 through 2015.

We lease office facilities totaling approximateB52000 square feet in Omaha, Nebraska. We uthieed facilities primarily for
(i) client services, training and product supp@i};systems and programming activities; (iii) R&gtivities; and (iv) general and
administrative functions. The leases for thesdifas expire in the years 2009 through 2012.

We lease an office facility totaling approximatélky,000 square feet in Chicago, Illinois. We utilihés facility primarily for: (i) R&D
activities; (i) client services; and (iii) profégnal services staff. The lease for this officeilfacexpires in 2008.

We lease statement production and mailing facilitealing approximately 194,000 square feet in Gan&lebraska, Wakulla County,
Florida, and Fairfield, New Jersey. The leasestese facilities expire in the years 2011 through3

We believe that our facilities are adequate foraurent needs and that additional suitable spaitbevavailable as required. We also
believe that we will be able to extend the leasethay terminate at comparable rates. See Note @drtConsolidated Financial Statements
for information regarding our obligations under ¢acility leases.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time-to-time, we are involved in litigatioratng to claims arising out of our operationshe normal course of business. In the
opinion of our management, we are not presentlgreygo any material pending or threatened legat@edings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holder:
None.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

As of December 31, 2007, our executive officerseneeter E. Kalan (Chief Executive Officer and Rtest), Randy R. Wiese
(Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Gifj¢c Robert M. (“Mike”)Scott (Executive Vice President and Chief Operafxiicer), anc
Joseph T. Ruble (Executive Vice President, Ger@oahsel, Corporate Secretary and Chief AdministeaBfficer). We have employment
agreements with each of the executive officers.

Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer and President

Mr. Kalan, 48, joined CSG in January 1997 and wased Chief Financial Officer in October 2000. InriA@006, he was named
Executive Vice President of Business and Corpddateelopment. In December 2007, Mr. Kalan was na@ieiéf Executive Officer and
President, and elected to the Board. Prior to i@ SG, he was Chief Financial Officer at Bank GBlgicago, and he also held various other
financial management positions with Bank One ind&and lllinois from 1985 through 1996. Mr. Kalasids a BA degree in Business
Administration from the University of Texas at Axgjton.

Randy R. Wies:
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offic

Mr. Wiese, 48, joined CSG in 1995 as Controller kidr served as Chief Accounting Officer. He wamed Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer in April 2006. Prior jmining CSG, he was manager of audit and busiadgisory services and held other
accounting-related positions at Arthur Andersen@& NIr. Wiese is a member of the AICPA and the NskaaSociety of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a BS degree in Accountinmftiee University of Nebraska-Omaha.

Robert M. Scot
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Offic

Mr. Scott, 57, joined CSG in September 1999 as Yiesident of the Broadband Services Division &mdesl as Senior Vice President
of that division from 2001 to 2004. In December 200r. Scott was named Executive Vice Presiderd,lz@came the head of the Broadband
Services Division in March 2005. In July 2006, hessmamed Chief Operating Officer. Prior to join@§G, he served for 21 years in a
variety of management positions, both domesticatigl internationally, with First Data Corporationt.Ncott holds a BA degree in Social
Studies from Florida Atlantic University.

Joseph T. Ruble
Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Corper&ecretary and Chief Administrative Offici

Mr. Ruble, 47, joined CSG in 1997 as Vice Presidamt General Counsel. In November 2000 he was apgabSenior Vice President
Corporate Development, General Counsel & Corpdateretary. In February 2007, he was named ExecutoeePresident. Prior to joining
CSG, Mr. Ruble served from 1991 to 1997 as VicesiBent, General Counsel & Corporate Secretaryrtarsolv, Inc., and as counsel to
Pansophic Systems, Inc. for its international oj@na from 1988 to 1991. Prior to that, he représgthe software industry in Washington,
D.C. on legislative matters. Mr. Ruble holds a d@nf Catholic University of America and a BS degdfeen Ohio University.

Board of Directors of the Registrant

Effective November 14, 2007, our Board of Directoigeased the number of directors of our compaom feight to nine by adding a
Class Il director and approved Mr. Kalan to filetvacancy created by the increase in the numb@last Il directors.

15



Table of Contents
Information related to our Board of Directors ieyided below.

Bernard W. Reznicel
Consultant
The Premier Group

Mr. Reznicek, 71, was elected to the Board in Jgnlif97 and presently serves as the Company’serecttive Chairman of the Boa
He currently provides consulting services througeniter Enterprises. Mr. Reznicek previously wagaacutive with Central States
Indemnity Company of Omaha, a Berkshire Hathawagpmamy, from 1997 to 2003. He has 40 years of ezpee in the electric utility
industry, having served as Chairman, PresidenCinef Executive Officer of Boston Edison Company &resident and Chief Executive
Officer of Omaha Public Power District. Mr. Rezriaaurrently is a director of Pulte Homes, Inc. (N\&®)&nd infoUSA Inc. (NASDAQ).

Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer and President
CSG Systems International, Inc.

Mr. Kalan’s biographical information in included ‘iExecutive Officers of the Registrant” section simodirectly above.

Ronald Coopel
Former President and Chief Operating Officer
Adelphia Communications

Mr. Cooper, 50, was elected to the Board in Novar20€6. He has spent nearly 25 years in the catildedecommunications industry,
most recently at Adelphia Communications wheredreexd as President and Chief Operating Officer fa@3 to 2006. Prior to Adelphia,
Mr. Cooper held a series of executive positionr8B&T Broadband, RELERA Data Centers & Solutionsgd diediaOne and its predecessor
Continental Cablevision, Inc. He has held variooard and committee seats with the National Cablevisgon Association, California
Cable & Telecommunications Association, Cable Tisien Association for Marketing and the New Engl&mble Television Association. In
addition, Mr. Cooper is a trustee at the DenverMutseum and a director for Colorado Public Radio.

Edward C. Nafus
Former Chief Executive Officer and President
CSG Systems International, Inc.

Mr. Nafus, 67, was elected to the Board in MarcB22MWr. Nafus joined CSG in August 1998 as Exeautfice President and became
the President of our Convergent Services and SolsitDivision in January 2002. In April 2005, Mr.fNa assumed the position of Chief
Executive Officer and President of CSG and held ploaition until his retirement in December 200foPto joining CSG, Mr. Nafus held
numerous management positions within FDC from 1®7B998. From 1992 to 1998, he served as ExecViie President of FDC; from
1989 to 1992, he served as President of First Détanational; and Executive Vice President of Hdata Resources from 1984 to 1989.
From 1971 to 1978, Mr. Nafus worked in sales mamag, training and sales for Xerox Corporation.nritP66 to 1971, Mr. Nafus was a
pilot and division officer in the United States NaMr. Nafus holds a BS degree from Jamestown @elle
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Janice |. Obuchowski
President
Freedom Technologies, Inc.

Ms. Obuchowski, 56, was elected to the Board inéyiover 1997. She has been President of Freedom dlegfes, Inc., a public polic
and corporate strategy consulting firm specializmtelecommunications, since 1992. In 2003, Msuéowski was appointed by President
George W. Bush to serve as Ambassador and Heae &f 5. Delegation to the World Radio Communica@amference. She has served as
Assistant Secretary for Communications and Inforomsat the Department of Commerce and as Admingtfar the National
Telecommunications and Information Administratids. Obuchowski currently is a director of Orbitai&ces Corporation and Stratos
Global Corporation.

Donald B. Reec
Former Chief Executive Officer
Cable & Wireless Global

Mr. Reed, 63, was elected to the Board in May 2685currently is retired, having served as Chieddrive Officer of Cable &
Wireless Global from May 2000 to January 2003. EdbWireless Global, Cable & Wireless plc’s whotiwned operations in the United
States, United Kingdom, Europe and Japan, is ai¢gowf internet protocol (IP) and data servicebusiness customers. From June 1998
until May 2000, Mr. Reed served Cable & Wirelessamious other executive positions. Mr. Reed'’s eanecludes 30 years at NYNEX
Corporation (now part of Verizon), a regional tédepe operating company. From 1995 to 1997 Mr. Reeded NYNEX Corporation as
President and Group Executive with responsibilitydirecting the company’s regional, national ameinational government affairs, public
policy initiatives, legislative and regulatory meat, and public relations. Mr. Reed currently diractor of Intervoice, Inc., Idearc Media
(formerly Verizon Yellow Pages) (NYSE) and Aggregiatdustries in London, England, a wholly ownedssgilary of Holcim Group located
in Switzerland.

Frank V. Sica
Managing Partner
Tailwind Capital

Mr. Sica, 57, has served as a director of the Compance its formation in 1994. He is currently amdging Partner of Tailwind
Capital. From 2004 to 2005, Mr. Sica was a Senidvigor to Soros Private Funds Management. From 20602003, he was President of
Soros Private Funds Management which oversaw tieetdieal estate and private equity investmenvisiets of Soros. In 1998, he joined
Soros Fund Management where he was a ManagingtBinegsponsible for Soros’ private equity investiseffrom 1988 to 1998, Mr. Sica
was a Managing Director at Morgan Stanley andritsape equity affiliate, Morgan Stanley Capital fha&rs. Prior to 1988, Mr. Sica was a
Managing Director in Morgan Stanley’s mergers acgugsitions department. From 1974 to 1977, Mr. Siea an officer in the U.S. Air
Force. Mr. Sica currently is a director of JetBAieways, Kohl's Corporation, and NorthStar Realip&nce Corporation.

Donald V. Smith
Senior Managing Directol
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin, Inc.

Mr. Smith, 65, was elected to the Board in Jan28§2. He presently serves as Senior Managing DireftHoulihan Lokey Howard ¢
Zukin, Inc., an international investment bankingnfiwith whom he has been associated since 1988SMith currently is in charge of the
firm’s New York office and serves on the board wédtors of the firm. From 1978 to 1988, he was laygd by Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated, where he headed the valuation angaaaation services within that firmcorporate finance group. Mr. Smith is directotiw
Princeton (NJ) Health Care Foundation and of Bissitexecutives for National Security.
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James A. Unruh
Managing Principal
Alerion Capital Group

Mr. Unruh, 67, was elected to the Board in Juneb26{& became a founding principal of Alerion Cap@aoup, LLC (a private equity
investment company) in 1998 and currently holddhquasition. Mr. Unruh was an executive with Uni§arporation from 1987 to 1997 and
served as its Chairman and Chief Executive Offiman 1990 to 1997. From 1982 to 1987, Mr. Unruhdhadrious executive positions,
including Senior Vice President, Finance, with Bughs Corporation, a predecessor of Unisys Corporatir. Unruh currently is a director
of Prudential Financial, Inc., Tenet Healthcarefoation, and Qwest Communications International In
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Stock BtatkC (“NASDAQ/NMS”) under the symbol “CSGS”. THellowing table sets
forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the hagtd low sale prices of our common stock as repdyeASDAQ/NMS.

High Low
2007
First quartel $26.97 $24.02
Second quarte 28.22 24 .4¢
Third quartel 27.2¢ 19.6¢
Fourth quarte 21.9i 14.52
High Low
2006
First quartel $23.2¢ $20.8:
Second quarte 26.21 22.8i
Third quartel 27.4¢ 23.1¢
Fourth quarte 28.4¢ 26.11

On February 25, 2008, the last sale price of oarrnon stock as reported by NASDAQ/NMS was $11.7%pere. On January 31,
2008, the number of holders of record of commonlsteas 235.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid cash dividends orrammon stock since our incorporation. We did, hosvegomplete a two-for-one
stock split, effected in the form of a stock divide in March 1999. We intend to retain any earniiegnance the growth and development of
our business, and at this time, we do not plaratogash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Our revolving credit facility contains certain néstions on the payment of dividends. In addititie payment of dividends has certain
impacts to our Convertible Debt Securities. See=Noto our Consolidated Financial Statements fditiechal discussion of our revolving
credit facility and Convertible Debt Securitiesdehe impact the payment of dividends may havehesd items.
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Stock Price Performance

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock, the S&P B@léx, and our Standard
Industrial Classification (“SIC") Code Index: ContpuProcessing and Data Preparation and ProceSsivices during the indicated five-
year period. The graph assumes that $100 was et/est December 31, 2002, in our common stock aeddh of the two indexes and tha

dividends, if any, were reinvested.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table summarizes certain informatadbout our equity compensation plans as of Dece®ihe2007:

Weighted-
Number of average
. securities to be_ ?J)r(ii:ac'gfe
Issued upon exercis outstanding Number of
securities
of outstanding options, remaining
options, warrants, warrants, available for
Plan Category and rights and rights future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by security drs 388,87t $ 31.0% 10,744,07
Equity compensation plan not approved by secuotgdrs 87,56¢ 22.6( 9,927
Total 476,44 $ 29.4¢ 10,754,00

Of the total number of securities remaining avaddbr future issuance, 10,428,827 shares can &g fas various types of stock-based
awards, as specified in the individual plans, whth remaining 325,176 shares to be used for oufasteg stock purchase plan. See Note
our Consolidated Financial Statements for additidistussion of our equity compensation plans.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information with resipi® purchases of company common stock made dthimthree months ended
December 31, 2007 by CSG Systems Internationaloinany “affiliated purchaser” of CSG Systems tn&tional, Inc., as defined in Rule
10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange Act.

Total Number of Maximum
Shares Purchase! Number of Shares
Total Average as Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
Number of Price Paid Purchased Under
Shares Announced Plans the Plan or
Period Purchased (2 Per Share or Programs Programs (1)
October —October 31 1,541,101 $ 20.9( 1,541,10! 2,477,59
November —November 3( 1,275,211 17.9C 1,273,50! 1,204,09
December —December 3: 44,39" 14.6¢ — 1,204,09
Total 2,860,71. $ 19.4¢ 2,814,60!

(1) Our Board of Directors have authorized us fmurehase up to 30 million shares of our commonkstwzier the Stock Repurchase
Program. The Stock Repurchase Program does notame@epiration date

(2) The total number of shares purchased thatairpart of the Stock Repurchase Program represeates purchased and cancelled in
connection with stock incentive plat

21



Table of Contents

ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following selected financial data have beervedrfrom our audited financial statements. Thesteld financial data presented
below should be read in conjunction with, and ialdied by reference to, our MD&A and our Consotielh Financial Statements. The

information below is not necessarily indicativetioé results of future operations.

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues
Processing and related services (1
Software, maintenance and services

Charge for arbitration ruling attributable to peisaprior to July 1, 2003 (!

Total revenues, nt
Cost of revenues (6
Processing and related services
Software, maintenance and servi
Total cost of revenue
Gross margin (exclusive of depreciatic
Operating expenses (1)(¢
Research and developme¢
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciatior
Restructuring charges (
Total operating expens:
Operating income (los:
Other income (expense
Interest expens
Write-off of deferred financing costs (
Interest and investment income, net
Other, ne’
Total other
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeoime taxe:
Income tax (provision) benefit (:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Discontinued operations (2
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations
Income tax benef
Discontinued operations, net of t
Net income (loss

Diluted net income (loss) per common shi
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Discontinued operations, net of t

Net income (loss
Weighte(-average diluted shares outstanding

Other Data (at Period End):
Number of client’ customers process:

Balance Sheet Data (at Period End):

Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investments (1)(2)(4)(:
Working Capital (3)(4)(8

Total assets (4

Total debt (7'

Total treasury stock (¢

Stockholder’ equity (4)

22

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$382,07( $351,76« $346,46. $326,55¢ $ 341,62¢
37,19! 31,34: 30,85¢ 24,84¢ 25,76¢
419,26 383,10¢ 377,31 351,40: 367,39
— — — — (105,679
419,26 383,10¢ 377,31 351,40: 261,71!
193,13! 173,53t 170,34: 146,83 140,47"
24,67¢ 20,97¢ 19,72( 25,047 30,35¢
217,80¢ 194,51: 190,06« 171,88: 170,83:
201,45. 188,59! 187,25: 179,51° 90,88:
58,34 46,19! 33,93: 31,881 30,39¢
45,74 43,127 52,49: 39,45: 50,04
12,90( 10,43¢ 9,86: 10,41: 12,70:
63C 2,36¢ 14,53« 1,292 2,14¢
117,61! 102,12: 110,82( 83,04 95,28¢
83,831 86,47 76,43: 96,47: (4,408)
(7,126 (7,46%) (7,537) (10,267 (14,29¢)

— — — (6,56¢) —
16,52¢ 21,98¢ 4,05¢ 97k 92C
221 (21) 6 (303 (85)
9,624 14,49¢ (3,472) (16,159 (13,467)
93,46 100,96¢ 72,96: 80,31¢ (17,869
(33,299 (38,409) (26,219 (29,31) 12,70:
60,16: 62,56 46,74: 50,99¢ (5,16¢€)
547 (6,55%) (5,68¢%) (11,109 (30,597
61 3,764 12,17: 7,29t 9,48(
60€ (2,79 6,481 (3,819 (21,117
$ 60,777 $ 59,77C $ 53,22¢ $ 47,18 $ (26,27))
$ 15 $ 13 $ 09 $ 09 $ (0.10)
0.0z (0.0€) 0.12 (0.07) (0.41)
$ 152 $ 127 $ 10¢ $ 09z $ (0.5))
40,021 47,10z 48,57 51,22: 51,43:
45,10¢ 45,35¢ 45,22¢ 43,47: 44,14¢
$132,83] $41549( $392,22: $149,43t $ 105,39
180,98 454,117 444,73¢ 172,67! 69,64
422,38t 653,49¢ 638,37t 710,40° 724,77!
230,00( 230,00( 230,00( 230,00( 228,92!
667,85¢ 360,25¢ 296,97t 224,00¢ 171,11:
82,52¢ 317,73¢ 298,33( 308,07( 290,78!
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4)

®)

(6)

@)
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In July 2007, we acquired the ComTec businesgpproximately $22 million, and in August 200% acquired the Prairie business for approximatéy iillion. These acquired
businesses contributed approximately $16 millionesenue for 2007 and did not materially impact @sults of operations. See Note 4 to our Cons@i&inancial Statements and
MD&A for additional discussion

We sold our GSS and plaNet businesses in 2805. result, the results of operations for the @8& plaNet businesses have been reflected as tisoed operations for all periods
presented in our Consolidated Statements of IncéMeerecorded a net pretax gain (loss) on the dapafthese businesses of $(6.0) million and $10ilflon, respectively, in 2006
and 2005. We received approximately $233 milliomét cash proceeds from the sale of these busiesbéh is the primary reason for the significentrease in cash, cash
equivalents, and sheterm investments between 2004 and 2005. See Nwt@@ Consolidated Financial Statements for addél discussior

During 2003, we recorded a $119.6 million clearg revenue related to the Comcast arbitrationgudward. The award was segregated such that Bh@fiion was attributable to
periods prior to July 1, 2003, and $13.9 millionsvedtributable to the third quarter of 2003. Of #18.9 million attributable to the third quarter attributed $13.5 million to
processing revenues, and the remaining $0.4 milbasoftware maintenance revenues. The arbitratibng also required us to begin invoicing Comdaster monthly processing
fees beginning in October 2003, which had the ¢ff€ceducing quarterly revenues from Comcast hyraximately $13-$14 million ($52-$56 million anniyg| when compared to
amounts prior to the arbitration ruling. As a résiflthe Comcast arbitration award, we were in taaperating loss position for the year, and recdraie income tax benefit of $12.7
million. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we p&dmcast $94.4 million of the arbitration award amdanuary 2004, we paid the remaining $25.2 amill

In August 1999, our Board of Directors approwed Stock Repurchase Program which authorized psitchase shares of our common stock from timivie-as business conditions
warrant. During 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 20@8repurchased 13.2 million, 2.5 million, 3.8 miliid3.0 million, and zero shares, respectively. ABecember 31, 2007,

1.2 million shares of the 30.0 million shares autterd under the Stock Repurchase Program remaitablafor repurchase. See Note 12 to our Constiti&inancial Statements &
MD&A for additional discussion of the Stock Repuaske Prograr

We have made several changes to our businesatams and implemented several cost reductidiaiivies that resulted in restructuring charge$@b million, $2.4 million, $14.5
million, $1.3 million, and $2.1 million, respectiye for 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 2003. See [8dteour Consolidated Financial Statements and MO&#Aadditional discussion
of the restructuring charge

In 2003, we adopted the fair value method ebaating for our stock-based awards. In additioa,completed our exchange of certain stock optionsefstricted stock (also referred
to by us as our “tender offer”) in December 2008.8result, our stock-based compensation experssgniicantly higher in 2007, 2006, 2005, and 20d#n compared to previous
years. Additionally, in 2005, certain equity awahdsd by key members of our management team indladghange in control provision that was triggarpdn the closing of the sg
of the GSS Business. The change in control provistsulted in accelerated vesting as of Decemb20@5 for the equity awards impacted, and thugksbased compensation
expense of $4.7 million related to the acceleratsting of these equity awards was recorded ag-4tased compensation expense in the fourth quair2005, of which $0.9 million
was included in discontinued operations, and $3lBomwas included in continuing operations astgsrrestructuring charges. Total stock-based caragton expense recognized
during 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 2003, was $iillibn, $12.2 million, $20.4 million, $14.9 millio, and $5.6 million, respectively. Of these amop@id.1 million, $12.2 millior
$17.0 million, $10.6 million, and $5.0 million, areflected in continuing operations for 2007, 202805, 2004, and 2003, respectively, with the reingi amounts reflected in
discontinued operations for the respective periSeée Notes 3 and 13 to our Consolidated Finantaé®ents for additional discussion of these mst

In February 2002, we entered into a $300 nrilierm credit facility to finance the acquisitiohtbe Kenan Business (which became part of our 8&Sness). In June 2004, we
completed an offering of $230 million of ConvergtiDebt Securities and used the proceeds, alongawitiable cash, cash equivalents and short-tevestments to: (i) repay the
outstanding balance of the term credit facility); i@purchase 2.1 million of shares of our commimtls; and (iii) pay debt issuance costs of $7.diaml As a result, we wrote off
unamortized deferred financing costs attributabléhe term credit facility of $6.6 million. See Mot to our Consolidated Financial Statements fditaxhal discussion of our long-
term debt

As a result of the sale of the GSS and plaNstriiesses, our December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2008oUaeted Balance Sheets no longer include any atsgelated to these sold
businesses. To provide for consistent comparisbesDecember 31, 2004 Consolidated Balance Sheetestated to reflect the components of the sol8 &&1 plaNet businesses as
assets and liabilities related to discontinued apens. Thus, the 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004 casih, equivalents and short-term investments anélimgcapital amounts in the
above table are presented on a different basthea®003 amounts have not been restated andnsfilide amounts related to the GSS and plaNet bsss(
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation
Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains a number of forward-lookingteiments relative to our future plans and our egtiens concerning the North
American customer care and billing industry, asl aglthe converging communications industry it esnpand similar matters. These forward-
looking statements are based on assumptions abmuhber of important factors, and involve risks andertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from estimates congadnin the forward-looking statements. Some of iskesrthat are foreseen by management are
outlined above within Item 1A., “Risk Factors”. el A. constitutes an integral part of this reparitd readers are strongly encouraged to
review this section closely in conjunction with MB&

Management Overview

Our CompanyWe are a leading provider of outsourced solutitias tacilitate customer interaction managemenherbehalf of our
clients, generating approximately 95% of our 208#enues from the North American cable and DirecieBcast satellite (“DBS”)
communications markets. Our solutions also supgroihcreasing number of other industries suchremnfiial services, utilities,
telecommunications, and home security.

Our solutions manage key customer interactions ascet-up and activation of customer accountss saipport and marketing, order
processing, invoice calculation (i.e., customelirtg), production and mailing of monthly customeyadices, management reporting, electr
presentment and payment of invoices, automatedra@chctive messaging, and deployment and manageshée client’s field technicians
to the customer’s home. Our unique combinatiorohft®ons, services, and expertise ensure thatlgnts can rapidly launch new service
offerings, improve operational efficiencies, andivi a high-quality customer experience in a cotitipe and ever-changing marketplace.

The North American communications industry has egpeed significant consolidation over the last fgxars, resulting in a large
percentage of the market being served by a fewmbeu of service providers with greater size andes€onsistent with this market
concentration, a large percentage of our revemoes ¢ontinuing operations are generated from adidinumber of clients, with
approximately 70% of our revenues for 2007 beingegated from our four largest clients, which arenCast, DISH, Time Warner, and
Charter.

Results of Operationg summary of our results of operations and othgrpeformance metrics for 2007 are as follows:

» Our consolidated revenues from continuing operatfon 2007 were $419.3 million, up $36.2 milliom,94% when compared to
$383.1 million for 2006. The increase in revenwegrimarily due to: (i) the continued growth in tiige of various ancillary
products and services we offer; and to a sliglethsér degree (ii) the revenues generated fronctiigrad ComTec and Prairie
businesses, discussed in greater detail be

» Our operating expenses from continuing operation2007 increased $38.8 million, or 13.1%, to $338§illion, when compared
to $296.6 million for 2006. The increase in opergtexpenses from continuing operations betweersyisgrimarily due to: (i) the
impact of the ComTec and Prairie business acqomsitiand (ii) an increase in labor-related cosimarily as a result of an
increase in staff levels between periods relatatidancrease in our R&D and other product supefiarts.

» Income from continuing operations (net of tax) 2007 was $60.2 million, or $1.50 per diluted shammpared to $62.6 million,
or $1.33 per diluted share, for 2006. The 13% iaseen diluted EPS between years is primarily dwe decrease in shares
outstanding as a result of our significant shapairehases made under our stock repurchase prograng @007, discussed in
greater detail below

» Continuing operations for 2007 include non-castrgésirelated to depreciation, amortization, andksttased compensation
expense totaling $41.8 million (pretax impact)$0r68 per diluted share impact, as compared tocash-charges for 2006 of
$38.6 million (pretax impact), or $0.51 per diluttare impac!
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We continue to generate strong cash flows as dt i@sour profitable operations and through oueefive management of our
working capital items. During 2007, we generatedi®2 million of cash flows from operating activiéieas compared to $118.2
million for 2006, with the decrease between yeairnarily related to lower interest income in 20G&7aaresult of lower investment
balances in 2007. Our cash and shenn investments totaled $415.5 million at Decen83er2006, compared to $132.8 million
of December 31, 2007, with this decrease resufimgarily from significant cash outlays we made $twck repurchases during
2007.

Other key events related to our operations for 200 as follows:

As discussed in greater detail above, as part o$wategy to extend our customer interaction mamamt capabilities and enter
new vertical markets, we closed on the ComTec aai® acquisitions during 2007. Combined, thesgugsitions contributed
approximately $16 million in revenues and wereltligaccretive to our 2007 results of operatioree Slote 4 to our Financial
Statements for additional discussion of these adtipns.

In November 2007, we completed our planned $350cmibf stock repurchases that we announced in Aug006. During 2007,
we repurchased a total of 13.2 million sharesaftatal of $307.6 million (a weighted-average pi€&23.34 per share). In total,
under this program, we purchased 14.8 million shate weightedwerage price of $23.72 per share, or approxima@dyg of oul
outstanding common stock at the time we annourfoegitogram

During 2007, we invested $58.3 million, or approately 14% of our revenues, on R&D activities. Wetawed to invest heavily
in R&D to ensure that we stay ahead of our cliene£ds and advance our clients’ business as weliraswn. Our clients are
facing more competition than ever before from netvants, and at the same time, are deploying nevices at a faster pace than
ever before, dramatically increasing the compleaftyheir business operations. We recognize thhalemges and believe our
value proposition is to provide solutions that help clients ensure that each interaction they hatretheir customers is an
opportunity to create value and deepen the busia¢esonship. As a result of our R&D efforts, wavie broadened our footprint
within our client base with many innovative prodafferings.

Effective December 28, 2007, our then-current CRiefcutive Officer (“CEO”) and President, Mr. EdwaC. Nafus, retired from
the company. In conjunction with his retirement, endered into a Separation and Release Agreemeat Becember 6, 2007.
Under the terms of the Separation and Release Agmee Mr. Nafus

. Was paid his regular base salary through his reére date. However, pursuant to the terms of C®8iéormance Bonus
Program, Mr. Nafus was not entitled to his 200hdasentive bonus as he was not employed on theddandar day of
2007. Thus, the expense accrued in earlier quadki®d to his bonus was reversed in December;:

. Vested in 102,500 shares of previously grantedictéstl stock on the date of his retirement. Theeespe related to this
acceleration of vesting was not significant. Thelsares would have also vested under their origémads had Mr. Nafus
retired anytime after March 31, 2008; ¢

. Received a or-time cash payment of $1.9 millio
The net impact of these retirement benefits to20@7 operating income was $1.3 million. We receigedain income tax benefi
related to Mr. Nafus’ retirement such that theneelction to our net income for 2007 was $0.01ddeted share. Mr. Nafus will

continue to serve as a member of our Board of Birscwith his current Board term running througid+2010. See our Form 8-K
filed on November 20, 2007 and Form 8-K/A filed@acember 11, 2007 for additional details of thesdtens.

Effective December 29, 2007, Mr. Peter E. Kalam,then current Executive Vice President of Busireess Corporate
Development assumed the position of CEO and Preisadeur company
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Additionally, Mr. Kalan was also added to our Boafdirectors, with his term running through midé®0 See our Form B-filed
on November 20, 2007 for additional details of éhestters

* We had no material client relationships up for wealein 2007. However, our current processing ageremwith Comcast and
DISH run through December 31, 2008. See our Siganifi Client Relationship Section below for furtdécussion

» Total customer accounts processed on our systewfsizecember 31, 2006 were 45.1 million, compaoedd.4 million as of
December 31, 2006. We have successfully migratesf #ie cable customer accounts processed onystgras to our ACP
solution.

Significant Client Relationships

ComcastComcast continues to be our largest client. Foi720@ 2006, revenues from Comcast representedxapmaiely 27% and
24%, respectively, of our total revenues. Our pssit®y agreement with Comcast runs through DeceBhe2008. We are currently engaged
in discussions with Comcast regarding contractweahéerms. Although we believe our operating relaship with Comcast is good, there can
be no assurances around the timing and/or the tefiasy renewal arrangement at this time. The Caeinmacessing agreement and related
material amendments are included in the exhibitautoperiodic filings with the SEC. The documems available on the Internet and we
encourage readers to review these documents fiefudetails.

DISH.DISH is our second largest client. For 2007 and620€venues from DISH represented approximately 208619%, respective
of our total revenues. Our processing agreemeiit BiSH runs through December 31, 2008, and provizi&H with the option to extend the
term of the agreement for either one or two yeasohd the end of December 2008. We are currentiaged in discussions with DISH
regarding contract renewal options. Although wedwel our operating relationship with DISH is gotitere can be no assurances around the
timing and/or the terms of any contract extensioreaewal arrangement at this time. The DISH prsicgsagreement includes certain annual
financial commitments that we expect DISH to excleased on the number of DISH customers currentlguwrsystems. The DISH
processing agreement and related material amendrasnincluded in the exhibits to our periodiaifijs with the SEC. The documents are
available on the Internet and we encourage reddeeview these documents for further details.

Time WarnerTime Warner is our third largest client. For 200id 2006, revenues from Time Warner representecbappately 13%
and 12%, respectively, of our total revenues. Gacgssing agreement with Time Warner runs througinchl 31, 2013. The Time Warner
processing agreement contains provisions estahgjsimnual minimum customer account levels that hawe processed on our systems,
which we expect Time Warner to exceed based onudh#er of Time Warner customers currently on osteys.

Charter.Charter is our fourth largest client. For 2007 @066, revenues from Charter represented approxiyr2ée and 11%,
respectively, of our total revenues. Our procesaigigement with Charter runs though December 3112.20he Charter processing agreement
contains certain annual minimum customer accowaldethat have to be processed on our systemshwiecexpect Charter to exceed based
on the number of Charter customers currently orsgstems.

Adelphia.Adelphia had historically been our fifth largeseat, with revenues from Adelphia for 2006 represgnapproximately 5% of
our total revenues. Adelphia had been operatingubdnkruptcy protection since June 2002. On JL)\2806, Adelphia completed the sale
of its broadband assets to Comcast and Time WaPnier. to the closing of this transaction, we pssesl approximately three million
Adelphia domestic broadband customer accounts'ftbguired Customer Accounts”) on our systems uralprocessing agreement that ran
through March 31, 2009. Upon closing of this trantiem, the Acquired Customer Accounts we processgethined on our systems and were
transferred to the respective Comcast and Time ¥/@rocessing agreements. This transaction haftlbeving impacts to our business:

* In August 2006, we recognized $2.8 million of oivad, non-recurring revenues related to the Adelphieessing agreement
when the Acquired Customer Accounts were transflenraler ou
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Comcast and Time Warner processing agreementse Thesnues included items such as upfront paynfienservices that had
previously been deferred and were being recogmatdbly over the remaining term of the Adelphiagessing agreemer

«  Our monthly processing revenues related to the ikeduCustomer Accounts were $4.5 million lower 608 when compared to
2005 due to the Comcast and Time Warner contrastim@ lower per unit pricing than the Adelphia qact (due to the relative
size of Comcast and Time Warner when compared tiphif). The $4.5 million reflects five months nfoices at the lower per
unit pricing for these Acquired Customer Accoul

» Although there was some movement of customer ad¢sdgiween Comcast and Time Warner as the resthitsofransaction, it
had minimal impact on the overall numlof customer accounts processed on our systemsths efd of 200¢

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
Stock-based compensation expense is included ifollogving captions in the Consolidated Statemeritsicome (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Continuing operations
Cost of processing and related servit $ 3277 $ 4371 $ 3,25¢
Cost of software, maintenance and serv 74E il 75¢
Research and developmt 1,24¢ 1,53( 1,137
Selling, general and administrati 5,83¢ 5,60( 7,68¢
Restructuring charge — — 4,20¢
Total continuing operatior 11,10: 12,21 17,047
Discontinued operatior — — 3,311
Total stocl-based compensation expense $11,10:  $12,21¢  $20,35¢

(1) The decrease in stock-based compensation expensontinuing operations from 2005 is due priigap certain equity awards held by
key members of our management team having a chargpatrol provision that was triggered upon thesadg of the sale of the GSS
Business in the fourth quarter of 2005, which regliin accelerated vesting for the equity awardsaicted

See Notes 3 and 13 to our Consolidated FinancééBents for additional discussion of our stockedasompensation expense.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in oomity with accounting principles generally accebite the U.S. requires us to select
appropriate accounting policies, and to make judgmand estimates affecting the application ofehexscounting policies. In applying our
accounting policies, different business conditionthe use of different assumptions may result atemally different amounts reported in our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have identified the most critical accountingigiek that affect our financial condition and tlesults of our business’ continuing
operations. These critical accounting policies wagtermined by considering our accounting politiieg involve the most complex or
subjective decisions or assessments. The mostatritccounting policies identified relate to: @venue recognition; (ii) allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable; (iii) impairment assaents of long-lived assets; (iv) loss contingesigiv) income taxes; and (vi) business
combinations and asset purchases. These criticalating policies, as well as our other significaotounting policies, are disclosed in the
notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Revenue Recognitioiihe revenue recognition policies that involve thesthrcomplex or subjective decisions or assessnteatsnay
have a material impact on our business’ continoipgrations relate to: (i) the application of thédglines of Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF") Issue No. 00-21, “Accounting for RevenugrAngements with Multiple Deliverables” (“EITF 00-2 when determining a revenue
arrangement’s separate units of accounting; apth@iaccounting for software arrangements.

For those revenue arrangements within the scop#Tdf No. 00-21, we are required to evaluate alivéeables in the arrangement to
determine whether they represent separate unitsaafunting. If the deliverables qualify as sepauaii¢és of accounting, the arrangement
consideration is allocated among the separate ah@dscounting based upon their relative fair vajuand applicable revenue recognition
criteria are considered for the separate unitcobanting. If the deliverables do not qualify apaate units of accounting, the consideration
allocable to delivered items is combined with tbesideration allocable to the undelivered itemsl, e appropriate recognition of revenu
then determined for those combined deliverables single unit of accounting. For the processingeagrents that we have historically
evaluated under EITF No. 00-21, we have generalhcluded that the deliverables do not qualify gmsste units of accounting, and thus
have treated the deliverables as a single unit@danting, with the revenue recognized ratably dlverterm of the processing agreement. The
determination of separate units of accounting,theddetermination of objective and reliable evidentfair value of the undelivered items, if
applicable, both require judgments to be made by us

The accounting for software arrangements, espgaidlen software is sold in a multiple-element agenent, is complex and requires
judgments in the following areas: (i) the identiion of the separate elements of the softwaregement; (ii) the determination of whett
any undelivered elements are essential to the iuradity of the delivered elements; (iii) the asgasnt of whether our hosted service
transactions meet the requirements of EITF IssueOR®3, “Application of AICPA Statement of Positi®7-2 to Arrangements That Include
the Right to Use Software Stored on Another Erityardware”, to be treated as a separate elemémt &oftware arrangement; (iv) the
determination of vendor-specific objective evidep€éair value for the various undelivered elemenftthe software arrangement; and (v) the
period of time maintenance services are expecteeé erformed. The evaluation of these factors, thadiltimate revenue recognition
decisions, require significant judgments to be magdes. The judgments made in this area could hasignificant effect on revenues
recognized in any period by changing the amountaritle timing of the revenue recognized. In additbecause software licenses typically
have little or no direct, incremental costs reldtethe recognition of the revenue, these judgmeniiid also have a significant effect on our
results of operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivalée maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts iked#e based on client-specific
allowances, as well as a general allowance. Speadifiwances are maintained for clients which ateignined to have a high degree of
collectibility risk based on such factors, amonigens, as: (i) the aging of the accounts receivahlance; (ii) the client’s past payment
experience; (iii) the economic condition of theustty in which the client conducts the majorityitsfbusiness; and (iv) a deterioration in a
client’s financial condition, evidenced by weakdirtial condition and/or continued poor operatirguhes, reduced credit ratings, and/or a
bankruptcy filing. In addition to the specific allance, we maintain a general allowance for allamoounts receivable which are not covered
by a specific allowance. The general allowancesiatdished based on such factors, among other§) #se total balance of the outstanding
accounts receivable, including considerations efabing categories of those accounts receival)lgra$t history of uncollectible accounts
receivable write-offs; and (iii) the overall creddrthiness of the client base. Our credit riskegghtened due to our concentration of clients
within the North American cable television and #ageindustries. A considerable amount of judgmisntequired in assessing the realizab
of accounts receivable. Should any of the factorsitered in determining the adequacy of the ovallalwance change significantly, an
adjustment to the allowance for doubtful accouateivable may be necessary. Because of the og@galficance of our gross billed accou
receivable balance ($115.6 million as of Decemide2B07), such an adjustment could be material.
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Impairment Assessments of Long-Lived Asdetsigived assets, which for us relates primarily togady and equipment, software &
client contracts, are required to be evaluateghémsible impairment whenever events or changesdarostances indicate that the carrying
amount of these assets may not be recoverablenghlived asset is impaired if estimated future sndunted cash flows associated with that
asset, without consideration of interest, are ifigeht to recover the carrying amount of the |divgd asset. Once deemed impaired, even if
by $1, the long-lived asset is written down tofétis value which could be considerably less thandarrying amount or future undiscounted
cash flows. The determination of estimated futaghcflows and, if required, the determination @f thir value of a long-lived asset, are by
their nature, highly subjective judgments. Chartgesne of more of the assumptions utilized in saictanalysis could materially affect our
impairment conclusions for long-lived assets.

Loss Contingencie$n the ordinary course of business, we are sulbjectaims (and potential claims) related to varigems including
but not limited to: (i) legal and regulatory mastefii) client and vendor contracts; (iii) productd service delivery matters; and (iv) labor
matters. We follow the guidelines of SFAS No. 5¢cthunting for Contingencies” in determining the eggpiate accounting and disclosures
for such matters, which requires us to assesskéléhbod of any adverse judgments in or outconoethéese matters, as well as the potential
ranges of probable losses. A determination of theumt of reserves for such contingencies, if aoytlese contingencies is based on an
analysis of the issues, often with the assistafitegal counsel. The evaluation of such issues,camdiltimate accounting and disclosure
decisions, are by their nature, subject to vargstsnates and highly subjective judgments. Shomidcd the factors considered in determir
the adequacy of any required reserves change isigmify, an adjustment to the reserves may be sacgsBecause of the potential
significance of these issues, such an adjustmerid dx@ material.

Income TaxedNe are required to estimate our income tax lighititeach jurisdiction in which we operate, whishprimarily the U.S.
(including both Federal and state income taxesj)iovia judgments are required in evaluating our imedax positions and determining our
provisions for income taxes. During the ordinarymse of our business, there are certain transacéiod calculations for which the ultimate
income tax determination may be uncertain. In &aldjtwve may be subject to examination of our incdenereturns by various tax authorities
which could result in adverse outcomes. For theasans, we establish a liability associated wittecwgnized tax benefits based on estim
of whether additional taxes and interest may be Weadjust this liability based upon changing$atd circumstances, such as the closing
of a tax audit or the closing of a tax year upandRpiration of a statute of limitations. Should af the factors considered in determining the
adequacy of this liability change significantly, asjustment to the liability may be necessary. Beeaof the potential significance of these
issues, such an adjustment could be material.

This income tax evaluation process requires ustimate the actual current tax liability togethethwassessing temporary differences
resulting from differing treatment of items for tard accounting purposes. These temporary diffesergsult in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in our Consolidated Financial Stagnts. We must then assess the likelihood thaheudeferred income tax assets will be
recovered, primarily from future taxable income.tfie extent recovery is not likely, we must esttbh valuation allowance. As of
December 31, 2007, we had net deferred incomessetsof $20.1 million, which represented approxétyeb% of our total assets. We
believe that between (i) carryback opportunitiepdst periods with taxable income; and (ii) suéfiditaxable income to be generated in the
future, we will realize the benefit of our net deéel income tax assets. The assumption of futwabta income is, by its nature, subject to
various estimates and highly subjective judgments.

Business Combinations and Asset Purchasesounting for business combinations and assethases, including the allocation of the
purchase price to acquired assets and assumelitiBatbhased on their estimated fair values, regpuurs in certain circumstances to estimate
fair values for items that have no ready markdbowhich no independent market exists. Under sticdumstances, we use our best judgr
to determine a fair value based upon inferenceherdransactions and other data. As a resultath@unts determined by us for such items as
accounts receivable, identifiable intangible assgisdwill, and deferred revenue are not indiviutile result of an arm’s length transaction,
but are the result of management estimates ofain@dlue
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and the allocation of the purchase price. Accorgingvenue recognized by us related to fulfilmehassumed contractual obligations is
based on fair value estimates made by us.

For larger and/or more complex acquisitions, thegaenent of value to individual intangible assetaerally requires the use of a
specialist, such as an appraiser or valuation &xpke assumptions used in the appraisal or valngirocess are forward-looking, and thus
subject to significant judgments and interpretatibyg us. Because individual intangible assetsnéy be expensed immediately upon
acquisition (e.g., purchased in-process R&D assgilsamortized over their estimated useful lited., acquired software); or (iii) not
amortized at all (e.g., goodwill), the assignedueal could have a material impact on our resultgefations in current and future periods.

Detailed Discussion of Results of Operations

Total Revenued.otal revenues from continuing operations for2(P7 increased $36.2 million, or 9.4% to $419.3iam| from $383.1
million for 2006; and (ii) 2006 increased $5.8 ioifl, or 1.5%, to $383.1 million, from $377.3 miltidor 2005. The increases in total rever
from continuing operations between years relatasaily to an increase in our processing revendssussed in further detail below.

Processing RevenuBrocessing revenues for: (i) 2007 increased $3@l®m or 8.6%, to $382.1 million, from $351.8 rndin for 2006;
and (ii) 2006 increased $5.3 million, or 1.5%, 85%.8 million, from $346.5 million for 2005.

» The increase in processing revenues between 2@D2006 was primarily due to: (i) the acquisitiontttt ComTec and Prairie
businesses, discussed above; and (ii) increadéeghtitin of new and existing products and serviog®ur clients, to include such
things as higher usage of marketing services aridusancillary customer care solutions, which e things such as order
workflow tools, professional services, system ifstees and reporting tools. All ComTec and Praieieenues fall within this
revenue classificatiol

» Processing revenues for 2006 were up slightly wdwenpared to 2005. This is a result of certain doamlwvevenue pressures we
experienced during 2006 related to several spedifint matters, which were more than offset bydbetinued growth we saw in
the use of various ancillary produ
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and services we offer to our existing client bdgee downward revenue pressures consisted primarilye following items:

(i) lower revenues in 2006 from DISH due to newtcact pricing becoming effective November 1, 200 client regionalization
projects which resulted in the movement of apprataty one million customer accounts from our systéona competitor’'s
system during the early part of 2006; (iii) lowerenues beginning in August 2006 related to thdgkda Acquired Customer
Accounts as a result of these accounts moving unate€omcast and Time Warner contracts, as disdussave; and (iv) $2.3
million related to ondime contract termination and bankruptcy settlemeetorded in 2005, with no comparable amount9#6:
These downward pressures were more than offsétebgdntinued growth we saw in the use of variowsllany products and
services we offel

Additional information related to processing revesiis as follows:

» Amortization of the client contracts intangible etsg§eflected as a reduction of processing reverfoe2007, 2006, and 2005, was
$14.4 million, $13.4 million, and $12.7 million,sgectively.

» Total customer accounts processed on our systewfslecember 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were 43libbmi45.4 million, and
45.2 million, respectively

. The decrease in total customer accounts processedrasystems between 2007 and 2006 is primarigytduhe transition
of certain customer accounts onto a client’s irgksystem, and to a lesser degree, certain snsallescriber deconversions
related to the cle-up of some of the Adelphia matters between Timernaiaand Comcast, as discussed ab

. As a result of certain client regionalization patgecompleted during 2006, approximately one mullioistomer accounts
processed on our systems moved to a competitostersy However, this decrease was offset primasilgdganic growth
experienced by our clients. Additionally, as disagsabove, the impact of the closing of the Adelptansaction had
minimal impact on the overall number of customeroamts processed on our systems as of the end6f

Software, Maintenance and Services Rever@fsware, maintenance and services revenues J&0Q7 increased $5.9 million, or
18.7%, to $37.2 million, from $31.3 million for 260and (ii) 2006, which includes revenues from Tieluy acquired on March 1, 2006, were
relatively flat between years at $31.3 million, qmared to $30.9 million for 2005. The increase ifivsare, maintenance and services reve
between 2007 and 2006 is due primarily to our emsighan expanding our professional services org#nizao include the acquisition of
Telution.

Cost of Processing and Related Servidd® cost of processing and related services rewetmsists principally of the following:
(i) data processing and communications costsst@dement production costs (e.g., labor, paperlepes, equipment, equipment
maintenance, etc.); (iii) client support organiaa$i (e.g., our client support call center, acconabhagement, etc.); (iv) various product suf
organizations (e.g., product management and dglipeoduct maintenance, etc.); and (v) facilitiad @nfrastructure costs related to the
statement production and support organizations.cbisés related to new product development (inclyidignificant enhancements to existing
products) are included in R&D expenses.

The cost of processing and related services fp2007 increased $19.6 million, or 11.3%, to $198illion, from $173.5 million for
2006; and (ii) 2006 increased $3.2 million, or 1,966$173.5 million, from $170.3 million for 2005.

» The increase in cost of processing and relatedcgsrbetween 2007 and 2006 was primarily due Yahé acquisitions of the
ComTec and Prairie businesses, as all of the Corai@édrairie cost of revenues fall within this exge classification; and to a
lesser degree, (ii) an increase in data processist, primarily due to greater processing requar@sifor ACP functionality, and
an increase in variable costs related to the dgligéancillary products and services (e.g., peimsts, etc.), which directly correle
with the increase in revenues related to ancieoducts and service
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» The increase in cost of processing and relatedcg=rbetween 2006 and 2005 was primarily due toeease in labor-related
costs, to include the impact of annual merit wagpedases

Gross margin percentages related to our processidgelated services revenues were 49.5%, 50.786&8%, for 2007, 2006, and
2005, respectively.

» The decrease in gross margin percentages betw®¥na2@ 2006 is primarily the result of the acqigsibf the ComTec and
Prairie businesses. These acquired businessed®péealower gross margin percentage level thamistorical business
operations

» The relatively flat gross margins between 2006 20@5 are consistent with the relatively flat revesiand cost of related
revenues, as noted abo

Cost of Software, Maintenance and Servi@é® cost of software, maintenance and serviceqwmgeconsists principally of the
following: (i) client support organizations (e.gur client support call center, account managengtas); (ii) various product support
organizations (e.g., product management and dglipeoduct maintenance, etc.); (iii) professiorelvéces organization; (iv) facilities and
infrastructure costs related to these organizatigughird-party software costs and/or royaltiekated to certain software products; and
(vi) amortization of acquired software and acquicgdnt contracts. The costs related to new prodegelopment (including significant
enhancements to existing products) are includd®&ib expenses.

The cost of software, maintenance and servicegijd@2007 increased $3.7 million, or 17.6%, to $2+illion, from $21.0 million for
2006; and (ii) 2006 increased $1.3 million, or 6,486$21.0 million, from $19.7 million for 2005.

» Theincrease in cost of software, maintenance andces between 2007 and 2006 was due primariintmcrease in employee-
related costs as a result of an increase in pees@ssigned internally to software maintenancegotejand our emphasis on
expanding our professional services organizatidis Thcrease in expense is reflective of the ineeda revenues between ye:

» The increase in cost of software, maintenance andcgs between 2006 and 2005 was due primarillgg@mortization of the
Telution intangible assets acquired in March 2(

Gross margin percentages related to our softwaa@temance and services revenues were 33.7%, 3arid36.1%, respectively, for
2007, 2006, and 2005. The decrease in the groggamagrcentages between 2006 and 2005 is primaldyed to 2005 having a greater mix
of software licenses as part of total revenuesHferyear. Variability in quarterly revenues andragiag results are inherent characteristics of
companies that sell software licenses, and perfonfessional services. Our quarterly revenuesdtinsare licenses and professional services
may fluctuate, depending on various factors, inicigdhe timing of executed contracts and revenaegeition, and the delivery of contracted
services or products. However, the costs assocwtadsoftware and professional services revenuesat subject to the same degree of
variability (i.e., these costs are generally fixedature within a relatively short period of timajd thus, fluctuations in our software and
maintenance, professional services, and overadisgmargins, will likely occur between periods.

Overall Gross Margin (Exclusive of Depreciatiarur overall gross margin for 2007, 2006, and 200% $201.5 million, $188.6
million, and $187.3 million, respectively. The oakigross margin percentages for 2007, 2006, afd 20ere 48.0%, 49.2%, and 49.6%,
respectively. The changes in the gross margin anssgnargin percentage between 2007, 2006, and 2@08 due to the factors discussed
above.

R&D Expense R&D expense for: (i) 2007 increased $12.1 million26.3%, to $58.3 million, from $46.2 millionrfa006; and
(i) 2006 increased $12.3 million, or 36.1%, to $4illion, from $33.9 million for 2005. We did noapitalize any software development
costs in 2007, 2006, or 2005.

e The increase in R&D expense between 2007 and 2@8Gwimarily due to an increase in employee-relateds, as more
employees were hired and dedicated to R&D effanting the year, reflective of our increased focngooduct development and
enhancement effort
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* Theincrease in R&D expense between 2006 and 2@@5wmarily due to an increase in employees, ¢ude the development
personnel that came over in the acquisition of fiatu

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, our R&D efforts weyeused on the continued evolution of our ACP prédoeth functionally and
architecturally, in response to market demandsdbaproducts have certain functional features@phbilities, as well as architectural
flexibilities (such as service oriented architeefuor SOA). This product evolution will result imet modularization of certain product
functionality that historically has been tightlytegrated with the ACP platform, which will allow tsrespond more quickly to required
changes to our products and provide greater inégadgility with other computer systems. Although ptimary value proposition to our
clients will continue to be the breadth and degtbw fully pre-integrated solution, these R&D etfowill also allow us to separate certain
software components so as to allow such compones marketed on a staatbne basis where a specific client requirementarsisines
need dictates, including the use of certain praglactoss non-CSG customer care and billing systems.

As part of this product evolution strategy, we acepl Telution, Inc. (“Telution”) in March of 200® further expand these capabilities
around our ACP platform. Our recent R&D effortslimte the integration of these acquired technologigsour solution set. In particular, the
acquired software assets are an integral parteoéiw functionality that has been added to our ffaHorm since the acquisition, including a
robust product catalog, offer and order manageruertions, and product capabilities to support caroial customers.

As a percentage of total revenues, R&D expensgdor, 2006, and 2005, was 13.9%, 12.1%, and 9.@8pectively. At this time, we
expect our future R&D efforts to continue to foarssimilar tasks as noted above. In the near texrexpect that the percentage of our total
revenues spent on R&D to be relatively consistdtit that of 2007, which reflected R&D expenses pgireentage of total revenues of
approximately 14%, with the level of our R&D spémdhly dependent upon the opportunities that wersear markets.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense (“SG&ASG&A expense for: (i) 2007 increased by $2.6immil or 6.1%, to $45.7
million, from $43.1 million for 2006; and (ii) 200&ecreased $9.4 million, or 17.8%, to $43.1 millitom $52.5 million for 2005. As a
percentage of total revenues, SG&A expense for 20006, and 2005, was 10.9%, 11.3%, and 13.9%ectisply.

* The increase in SG&A expense between 2007 and BQf@¥marily due to the impact of the ComTec andif sales and
marketing costs

* The decrease in SG&A expense between 2006 andr2@ibs primarily to the retirement benefits for tarmer CEO, Mr. Neal
Hansen, who retired in 2005. In conjunction witk fetirement, Mr. Hansen was paid $9.6 milliondatirement benefits, of which
$0.2 million, $8.9 million, and $0.5 million weregensed in 2006, 2005, and 2004 respecti

Depreciation ExpenseDepreciation expense for all property and equipinigereflected separately in the aggregate andtisncluded ir
the cost of revenues or the other components aitipg expenses. Depreciation expense for 2007%,2800 2005, was $12.9 million, $10.4
million, and $9.9 million, respectively. The incegain depreciation expense for 2007 is due primégithe increased capital expenditures we
have made over the last five quarters, to inclheéeaicquired property and equipment from our actisactivities.
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Restructuring ChargesSee Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statenfents more detailed discussion of our cost reaucti
initiatives and related restructuring charges,udiig the current activity in accrued liabilitiedated to the restructuring charges.
Restructuring charges included in total operatixgeases, and the impact (net of related estimatahie tax expense) these restructuring
charges had on net income from continuing operatéord diluted earnings per share, for 2007, 200 2805, are as follows (in thousands,
except diluted earnings per share):

2007 2006 2005
Activities related to the sale of the GSS Busin
Stocl-based compensation related to change in contreigion $— $ — $ 3,788
Involuntary termination of executive offic — — 1,35
Involuntary termination of certain corporate supsaff — 37¢ 59C
Management incentive bonuses related to the GSBi&sssalt — — 1,40¢
Subtota—restructuring charges related to the sale of thg BSsines! — 37¢ 7,13¢
Disposal of corporate aircre — 10C 1,55¢
Termination of lon-term processing agreeme — 1,11¢ 6,20¢
Facility abandonmen 24€ 74¢ (389
All other restructuring charge 384 26 19
Total restructuring charge $63C $2,36¢  $14,53¢
Impact of restructuring charges on results of caitig operations (i.e., have reduced operatingt®s
Net income $40€ $1,467 $ 9,311
Diluted earnings per sha $0.01 $0.02 $ 0.1¢

Operating IncomeOperating income for: (i) 2007 was $83.8 million 28.0% of total revenues, compared to $86.5 mnijlir 22.6% of
total revenues for 2006; and (ii) 2006 was $86.8iani or 22.6% of total revenues, compared to $#46illion, or 20.3% of total revenues for
2005.

* The decreases in operating income and the opeliatioghe margin between 2007 and 2006 were primdtig/to: (i) an overall
increase in R&D expenditures, as discussed abonvk(ig the impact of the ComTec and Prairie acitjoiss in 2007

* The increases in operating income and the operatoame margin between 2006 and 2005 were primdtily/to the decreases in
restructuring charges between years and the exjpecigeed in conjunction with the retirement of darmer CEO in 2005, as
discussed above. The $14.5 million of restructudhgrges in 2005 and the $8.9 million of retirentearefits recorded in 2005
had the effect of reducing our operating margirél/percentage points for 2005. Ignoring the onmetimpact of these items on
2005, the comparable, normalized operating matggtaeen years decreased, with such decrease inr@l@&d primarily to our
2006 increase in R&D expense, and the impact offelution acquisition in March 200
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Our operating results include non-cash chargetectla depreciation, amortization of intangibleeasgprimarily shown as a reduction
of processing revenues), and stock-based compensatpense. The total amount of these non-cashsgpgeand their impact (net of related
estimated income tax expense) on net income framiragng operations and diluted earnings per stare2007, 2006, and 2005, are as
follows (in thousands, except diluted earningsgbere):

2007 2006 2005
Non-cash expenses related
Depreciatior $12,90C $10,43¢ $ 9,86:
Amortization of intangible asse 17,78¢ 15,91: 13,58¢
Stocl-based employee compensat 11,102 12,21 17,047
Total $41,797  $38,56:  $40,49¢
Impact of no-cash expenses on results of continuing operatianstfave reduced operating resul
Net income $26,90:  $23,89:  $25,94!
Diluted earnings per sha $ 068 $ 051 $ 0.5:

Interest ExpenseOur interest expense relates primarily to ourv@otible Debt Securities, issued in June 2004, whiave a stated
coupon rate of 2.5%. The following are the key pomelated to our interest expense between years:

» Interest expense for: (i) 2007 decreased $0.4anjllor 4.5%, to $7.1 million, from $7.5 million f@006; and (ii) 2006 and 2005
remained consistent between periods at $7.5 mil

» The weighte-average balance of our Ic-term debt for 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $230.0anil
» The weighted-average interest rate on our debbhangs for 2007, 2006, and 2005, including the aimation of deferred
financing costs and commitment fees on our revglaredit facility, was 3.2%
See Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statenfen&dditional discussion of our Convertible D8@tcurities.
Interest and Investment Income, rieterest and investment income, net, for: (i) 20@¢reased $5.5 million, or 24.8%, to $16.5 milli
from $22.0 million for 2006; and (ii) 2006 increds®17.9 million to $22.0 million, from $4.1 millioior 2005.

e The decrease in interest and investment incomedeet007 and 2006 was the result of a significaotehse in our cash and
short-term investment balances between years phynthure to our stock repurchase activity in 2007 0 a lesser degree, the
purchase of the ComTec and Prairie businesses0in.

» The large increase in interest and investment ircbatween 2006 and 2005 was primarily a resultsijaificant increase in our
cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investnaahbes between periods, primarily the result efaksh proceeds we received
from the sale of the GSS Business in December 2

Income Tax Provisiorhe following are the key changes related to ocofne tax provision from continuing operations bestwgears:

» For 2007, we recorded an income tax provision & $3nillion, or an effective income tax rate of eppmately 36%, compared
to an income tax provision of $38.4 million, orefifective income tax rate of approximately 38%2606.

» For 2006, we recorded an income tax provision &4&3nillion, or an effective income tax rate of eppmately 38%, compared
to an income tax provision of $26.2 million, or efifective income tax rate of approximately 36% Q032.
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The increase in the 2006 effective income tax isatee result of recording an effective incomertabe of approximately 42% during the
fourth quarter. The higher effective income taxenais primarily the result of a correction of miimeome tax expense items from previous
periods that were not considered material to thieeatior past periods, giving consideration to®C’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
and thus were recorded in their entirety in thetfoquarter. The accounting correction of thesm#aevas considered one-time in nature and
did not impact our estimated income tax rate f@720

As of December 31, 2007, our net deferred incomassets were $20.1 million and represented apmatrly 5% of total assets. We
continue to believe that sufficient taxable incowitk be generated in the future to realize the ti¢ioé these deferred income tax assets. Our
assumptions of future profitable operations argpeded by our strong operating performances owetabt several years.

Discontinued Operation#s discussed above, as a result of the sale dE8@ and plaNet businesses in December 2005, thea@GES
plaNet businesses have been reflected as discedtioperations in our results of operations fopatiods presented. Gain (loss) from
discontinued operations (net of tax) for 2007, 2@G06&! 2005, was $0.6 million, $(2.8) million, arél%$million, respectively.

» Discontinued operations activity in 2007 consigteicharily of the reduction of a certain reserveatetl to an indemnification
agreement associated with the sale of the GSSdmssin 2005

» Discontinued operations activity for 2006 consistéthe following:

. During the third quarter of 2006, we made a $6.0ioni payment to Comverse related to the settleroéatdispute over a
joint tax election associated with the sale of &S Business to Comverse in December 2005. Thingatywas
considered a reduction in the purchase price poslypaid by Comverse, and thus is reflected asgfatiscontinued
operations. This settlement payment was not amtiegh and we do not expect any similar purchase @djustments in
future periods

. During the fourth quarter of 2006, we recordedranoine tax benefit from the true-up of certain stat®@me tax items
related to the GSS Business. The previous accayfdirthese matters was appropriately based oowsiestimates. With
the filing of the various state income tax retudnsing the fourth quarter, the determination of dlctual benefits due
became certair

. As a result of this activity, 2006 net income piutéd share was reduced by $(0.(

» Discontinued operations activity for 2005 includgedet pretax gain on the disposals of the GSS kaMkep businesses of $10.9
million.

Liquidity
Basis of PresentatioiCash flows, primarily related to 2005, have notrbeegregated between continuing operations andmiscied

operations in the accompanying Consolidated Staitesyt# Cash Flows. Therefore, unless indicatedretise, all historical cash flow
information presented below reflects the cash flesults from both continuing and discontinued opiena.

Cash and Liquidity As of December 31, 2007, our principal sourcegoidity included cash, cash equivalents, andtstesm
investments of $132.8 million, compared to $415illion as of December 31, 2006. The significantréase in cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments between years is primatily t the stock repurchase activity during 2004, tare lesser degree, the purchase of the
ComTec and Prairie businesses in 2007. We genénatbgst our excess cash balances in low-risk, dieomt investments to limit our expost
to market and credit risks. We have ready acceal tf our cash, cash equivalents, and short-faxsastment balances.

In addition to the above sources of liquidity, weoehave a $100 million senior secured revolviregdrfacility (the “2004 Revolving
Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of U.S. finantiastitutions that expires in September 2009. 2684 Revolving Credit Facility has a $40
million sub-facility for standby and commercial
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letters of credit and a $10 million sub-facility feame day advances. As of the date of this filmg have made no borrowings under the 2004
Revolving Credit Facility. Our ability to borrow dar the 2004 Revolving Credit Facility is subjecgtlimitation of total indebtedness based
upon the results of consolidated leverage andastaoverage ratio calculations, and a minimumididyirequirement. As of December 31,
2007, we were in compliance with the financialaatand other covenants of the 2004 Revolving Creatitlity, and had $99.5 million of the
Revolving Credit Facility available to us.

Cash Flows From Operating Activitied/e calculate our cash flows from operating actxgtin accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, beginning with net income #men adding back the impact of non-cash itengs,(depreciation, amortization, stock-
based compensation, etc.), and then factoringarintipact of changes in working capital items.

Our primary source of cash is from our operatingyaies. Our current business model consists siyaificant amount of recurring
revenue sources related to our long-term processiaggements (billed monthly), and software maiatee agreements (billed monthly,
quarterly, or annually.) This recurring revenueebpsovides us with a reliable and predictable smofccash. In addition, software license 1
and professional services revenues provide formahamounts of cash, but the payment streamdfse items are not as predictable.

The primary use of our cash is to fund our opeggéictivities. Approximately 50% of our total opéngtcosts relate to labor costs (both
employees and contracted labor) for: (i) compensatii) related fringe benefits; and (iii) reimis@ments for travel and entertainment
expenses. The other primary cash requirementsufoojgerating expenses consist of: (i) postagepéper and related supplies for our
statement processing centers; (iii) data processndgrelated services and communication lines dootsourced processing business; and
(iv) rent and related facility costs. These itemespurchased under a variety of both short-termlamg-term contractual commitments. A
summary of our material contractual obligationprigvided below as well.

See “Cash Flows From Investing Activities” and “6d&dows From Financing Activities” below for thehetr primary sources and uses
of our cash.

Our 2006 and 2007 consolidated net cash flows fiparating activities, broken out between operatsms changes in working capital
assets and liabilities, for the indicated periogsas follows (in thousands):

Changes in Net Cash
Working Provided by
Capital Assets Operating
Activities—
Operations and Liabilities Quarter Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
2006:
March 31 $ 25,87 $ (3,899 $ 21,97¢
June 30 (1 29,35¢ 9,39: 38,75!
September 3 31,48¢ (2,939 28,55:
December 3: 29,54¢ (680 28,86¢
Year-to-date tota $116,26¢ $ 1,88 $ 118,15(
2007:
March 31 (2) $ 27,19¢ $ 8,46/ $ 35,66
June 3( 28,21° (3,719 24,49¢
September 30 (¢ 28,40« 7,26¢€ 35,67(
December 31 (4 30,35¢ (10,809 19,54¢
Year-to-date tota $114,17" $ 1,204 $ 115,37¢

(1) Cash flows from operating activities for the@ed quarter of 2006 were positively impacted hyofable changes in working capital
items during the quarter, primarily related to thduction in the accounts receivable bala
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(2) Cash flows from operating activities for thisfiquarter of 2007 were positively impacted byragpnately $10 million as we received
an additional monthly processing invoice paymeoitrfra key client before quarter end. As a resultyeeeived four monthly processing
invoice payments from this key client during thastfiquarter of 2007, as compared to three monttdggssing invoice payments in all
other quarters presented abc

(3) Cash flows from operating activities for th@dhquarter of 2007 were positively impacted bymat timing changes in certain operating
assets and liabilities for the quart

(4) Cash flows from operating activities for the fouginarter of 2007 were negatively impacted by norchainges in working capital itenr
primarily related to the timing of payments for aged payables and the collections on outstandinguatts receivable at quarter e

We believe the above table illustrates our abititgonsistently generate strong quarterly and drsash flows, and the importance of
managing our working capital items, in particutimely collections of our accounts receivable.

Management of our billed accounts receivable isafrtbe primary factors in maintaining strong gedst cash flows from operating
activities. Our billed trade accounts receivabliabee includes billings for several non-revenumgdprimarily postage, sales tax, and
deferred revenue items). As a result, we evaluatgerformance in collecting our accounts receigdabfough our calculation of days billings
outstanding (“DBO”) rather than a typical days sadetstanding (“DSO”) calculation. DBO is calcuthteased on the billings for the period
(including non-revenue items) divided by the averawnthly net trade accounts receivable balancthéoperiod. Our target range for our
DBO is 55-65 days.

Our gross and net billed trade accounts receivaiderelated allowance for doubtful accounts red#évé'Allowance”) related to our
continuing operations as of the end of the inditafgarterly periods, and the related DBOs for thartprs then ended, are as follows (in
thousands, except DBOS):

Quarter Ended Gross Allowance Net Billed DBO
2006:
December 3. 111,161 (1,149 110,02( 64
2007:
March 31 (1) 104,67 (1,577 103,10 63
June 3( 104,25: (1,619 102,63 61
September 30 (z 111,54: (1,589 109,95: 60
December 31 (2 115,61¢ (1,487%) 114,13. 59

(1) The decrease in gross and net billed tradeustsageceivable at March 31, 2007 is primarily tuéhe receipt of an additional monthly
processing invoice payment from a key client ofragpnately $10 million before quarter er

(2) The $7.3 million increase in gross and neebilirade accounts receivable at September 30, i2@@ifnarily due to the acquisitions of
the ComTec and Prairie busines:

(3) The $4.1 million increase in gross and netlilirade accounts receivable at December 31, 200marily due to the timing of client
payments at quarter er

Other significant fluctuations in key balance shtmnhs between December 31, 2007 and 2006 ardlaw$o

Deferred Income Tax Assets.

The decrease in net deferred income tax assete(twund non-current) from $28.5 million as of Dmber 31, 2006 to $20.1
million as of December 31, 2007 is primarily dudhe difference in tax and book amortization relateintangible assets and the
interest deduction related to our Convertible Dbturities.

38



Table of Contents

Income Taxes Receivable/Payable.

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provssimiFinancial Accounting Standards Board Inteigtien 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48"). As a reswbe: (i) recognized a $1.5 million reduction imrancome taxes payable balance,
which was accounted for as an increase to our daiu2007 accumulated earnings balance; ande@ipssified, on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet, a portion of our income taxes payadllance from current liabilities to non-curreabllities. The adoption of FIN 48
had no impact on our 2007 cash flows. See Notea®it@Consolidated Financial Statements for additiaiiscussion of the adoption of
FIN 48. The income taxes receivable balance inectirassets on our Consolidated Balance SheetRsogimber 31, 2007 was primat
the result of making estimated Federal tax paymiar207 in excess of our anticipated Federal inedtax liability.

Cash Flows From Investing Activitie©ur typical investing activities consist of puasies/sales of short-term investments, purchases o
property and equipment, and investments in clientracts, which are discussed below. However, g2B07 and 2006, we had several
unique items included in our cash flows from inimgactivities. As discussed above, during 2007 aeguired the ComTec and Prairie
businesses in July 2007 and August 2007, respéctidaring 2006, our cash flows from investing aites included: (i) a $6.0 million
payment made to Comverse during the third quaft2006 related to the sale of the GSS Busines80%2(ii) the proceeds received from
sale of our corporate aircraft in January 2006 e purchased in December 2005 and held for aatk(iii) the acquisition of Telution in
March 2006.

Purchases/Sales of Short-term Investments.

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, we purchased $209libmi$283.1 million, and $88.1 million, respedctly, and sold or had matt
$379.0 million, $156.2 million, and $66.3 milliorespectively, of short-term investments. We corglilyevaluate the possible uses of
our excess cash balances and will likely purchdséianal short-term investments in the future.

Property and Equipment/Client Contracts.

Our capital outlays typically relate to computerdveare and related software items, and statemeulugtion equipment. Our
investment in client contracts typically consists(f) cash payments to clients as an incentiviertog new customers to, or retain
customers on, our processing systems; and (iittéed incremental costs that we have capitaliekded to revenue arrangements
where we are required to defer conversion/set-oyicess fees and recognize those fees as the regdabedssing services are performed.

Our annual capital expenditures for property angdggent, and investments in client contracts werfoliows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Property and equipme $20,27: $12,65: $12,79¢
Client contract: 7,43¢ 10,65¢ 6,06(

Capital expenditures related to continuing operaticonsisted principally of the following: (i) conter hardware and related software;
(i) statement production equipment; and (iii) faigis and internal infrastructure improvementspital expenditures related to continuing
operations during 2005 were approximately $7 millibhe increase in capital expenditures for 200%ists principally of purchases of
hardware and software infrastructure items to sttppany of our new products and services to meetlents expanding business needs.
While our core ACP processing product utilizes gatacessing capacity leased from FDC, and thergéti@ving us to avoid the large capi
investment needed for such equipment, many of ewrgroducts and services ancillary to ACP (e.gtage aspects of our WorkForce
Express product, enhanced product catalog fundtimsa etc.) are run on open system computer seiftkat generally interface with ACP)
that we own.
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Our investments in client contracts for 2007, 2008 2005, relate primarily to: (i) incentives pided to clients to convert their
customer accounts to, or retain their customert®uats on, our customer care and billing systemd;(&) direct and incremental costs
incurred for conversion/set-up services relateldng-term processing arrangements. As of Decembe2@7, we did not have any material
commitments for capital expenditures or for investits in client contracts.

Cash Flows From Financing Activitieg/e have had limited financing activities over thstlseveral years, and historically, we have not
been active in the capital markets. Our financictivaies typically consist of various activitiesttv our common stock.

Issuance of Common Stock.

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock for 22006, and 2005, were $2.2 million, $11.5 milliand $5.3 million,
respectively, and relates primarily to the exerafstock options.

Repurchase of Common Stock.

As discussed above, during 2007, 2006, and 200%epechased shares of our common stock underuildelmes of our Stock
Repurchase Program for $307.6 million, $63.3 milliand $73.0 million, respectively. In additiontside of our Stock Repurchase
Program, during 2007, 2006, and 2005, we repurchee our employees and then cancelled approximai#s,000 shares, 148,000
shares, and 394,000 shares of our common sto@dformillion, $3.7 million, and $8.3 million, resg@vely, in connection with
minimum tax withholding requirements resulting fréine vesting of restricted stock under our stodemntive plans.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments and Contingencies

We have various contractual obligations that acended as liabilities in our Consolidated Balanbe&. Other items, such as certain
purchase commitments and other executory conteaetaot recognized as liabilities in our ConsokdbBalance Sheet, but are required to be
disclosed.

The following table summarizes our significant cantual obligations and commercial commitmentsfd3azember 31, 2007, and the
future periods in which such obligations are expdtbd be settled in cash (in thousands).

Less than

More than

Total 1 year Years 23 Years 45 5 Years
Long-term debt $324,87¢ $ 575 $11,50C $11,50C $296,12!
Operating lease 52,27¢ 10,54 17,38¢ 11,95t 12,39«
Purchase obligatior 75,73( 32,78¢ 42,45 413 77

Severance/retireme 2,39:¢ 2,39: — — —
Total $455,27° $51,47C $71,34: $23,86¢  $308,59¢

Our long-term debt obligations are discussed inenttatail in Note 7 to our Consolidated Financiat&nents. The contractual
obligation amount reflected for our lortgrm debt is based upon the following assumptiinsur Convertible Debt Securities are outstan
through their due date of June 15, 2024; (ii) upettlement of the Convertible Debt Securities,@agh obligation will not exceed the
principal amount of the Convertible Debt Securitisd (iii) interest paid through the life of therertible Debt Securities at a rate of
2.5% per annum. The operating leases are discusdéate 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statemedts purchase obligations consist
primarily of our expected base fees under the FBx@ises agreement (discussed in Note 11 to our @idilased Financial Statements), data
communication services, and third-party softwaoétygare maintenance.

Of the total contractual obligations and commerc@hmitments above, approximately $235 millione8ected on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet and approximately $220 million is not
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In conjunction with the sale of the GSS busines®0i@5, we have agreed to indemnify the buyer obtsness against certain losses it
may incur in connection with the purchased busisessequent to the sale date. See Note 11 to theolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion of those indemnifications. Weehao other material off-balance sheet arrangenants December 31, 2007.

Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2007, we had $132.8 millionadtcand short-term investments available to fundbperations, and we expect to
generate material amounts of additional cash d@d. The following are the key items to considesssessing our sources and uses of
capital resources:

» As noted above, in 2006, our Board of Directordarized the repurchase of $350 million of our autsling common stock under
our Stock Repurchase Program. In August 2006, ¥ebkshed a new Rule 10b5-1 Plan to facilitaterdmurchase of the $350
million of common stock. As of December 31, 200¢, mave completed the repurchase of $350 millioounfcommon stock,
purchasing a total of 14.8 million shares at a Weid-average price of $23.72 per share. As of Dbeeerdl, 2007, we have
remaining 1.2 million shares authorized for repasghunder our Stock Repurchase Prog

» Asdiscussed in greater detail in Note 4 to ouaricial statements, we have the following contingemthase price payments open
as of December 31, 20C

. For Telution, we paid the remaining contingent pase price payment of $0.7 million related to inéign earn out rights
in January 2008. In addition, the Telution stockgpase agreement included contingent purchase paipments (related to
revenue earn outs) of up to $3 million. As of Debem31, 2007, we have not reflected any of the $iBomin the Telution
purchase price because of the uncertainty of pag/riiée rights to these contingent purchase prigeneats go through
December 31, 200t

. The ComTec stock purchase agreement included &ngent purchase price payment (related to the sehient of certain
operating criteria) of up to $2.5 million. As of 8mmber 31, 2007, we have not reflected any of £hg fillion in the
ComTec purchase price because of the uncertaimggyhent. The rights to this contingent purchagsegrayment go
through June 30, 200

. The Prairie stock purchase agreement includedrogenit purchase price payments (related to the aafmient of certain
operating criteria) of up to $6 million. As of Deuber 31, 2007, we have not reflected any of theniéon in the Prairie
purchase price because of the uncertainty of pagriiée rights to the contingent purchase price pEymnhgo through
December 31, 200!

* In 2007, we spent $20.3 million on capital expemdis. At this time, we expect our 2008 capital exiiteires to be relatively
comparable to the amount spent in 2007, but thisueatncan vary significantly from our expectatiorpdnding upon the revenue
opportunities we may come across during the year.e®pected capital expenditures consist pringipaiihardware and software
infrastructure to support our clients’ expandingibess needs, and statement production equipmeonhtmue to offer enhanced
functionalities to our clients. As of December 2007, we have made no significant capital expenglitommitments

e Our Convertible Debt Securities bear interest @t of 2.5% per annum, which is payable semiampnirabrrears on June 15 and
December 15 of each year. The Convertible Debt@&muare callable by us for cash, on or aftereJ2d, 2011. The Convertible
Debt Securities can be put back to us by the hslftercash at June 15, 2011, 2016 and 2021, or ambange of control, at a
repurchase price equal to 100% of the principalamof the Convertible Debt Securities, plus acdrimerest. The Convertible
Debt Securities are subject to certain conversiggéers based upon: (i) the price
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our common stock; (i) the trading price of the @ertible Debt Securities; (iii) us putting the Centible Debt Securities back to
the holders; (iv) the occurrence of specified coapmtransactions, to include a change of contaedined in the Convertible De
Securities bond indenture (“Bond Indenture”); amdifa certain level of dividends are declaredaaertain number of shares of
our common stock are repurchased under a self+terfifde by us. We do not expect any of the conwarsiiggers to occur during
the next 12 months. As a result, in the near-tevenexpect our annual debt service costs relatéiet@onvertible Debt Securities
to be limited to the annual interest payments o8 $6illion.

The Convertible Debt Securities are convertible imir common stock, under the specified conditems settlement terms
outlined above, at an initial conversion rate of3562 shares per $1,000 principal amount of CoiblerDebt Securities, which is
equal to an effective conversion price of $26.77gtere. The Bond Indenture includes aliftition provisions for the holders s
that the conversion rate (and thus, the effectoresersion price) can be adjusted in the futurecéstain events, to include stock
dividends, stock splits/reverse splits, the isseasfovarrants to purchase our stock at a pricevbéhe then-current market price,
cash dividends, and certain purchases of our constumk by us pursuant to a self-tender offer oherge offer. A lower
effective conversion price may have several imptctss, including a greater potential for: (i) hexurrence of the conversion
trigger based upon the price of our common stocH; (@) the Convertible Debt Securities having expact on our diluted earnin
per share if our average common stock price excéedhen-current effective conversion price. Téurchase of $350 million of
our outstanding common stock, as discussed abadend impact on the current effective conversiaoepior any other terms in
the Bond Indenture.

» The interest rate for borrowings under the 2004dRéng Credit Facility, except for same day advands chosen at our option
and is based upon a base rate or adjusted LIB@Rphts an applicable margin. The base rate reptetiee higher of a floating
prime rate and a floating rate equal to 50 basiistpdn excess of the Federal Funds Effective REtte.interest rate for same day
advances is based upon base rate, plus an applitegin. The applicable margins are dependentiotegerage ratio, as
defined, and range from zero to 100 basis pointbdse rate loans and 125 to 225 basis pointsIBOR loans. As of
December 31, 2007, we had made no borrowings uhde€2004 Revolving Credit Facility. We pay a qudyteommitment fee on
the unused portion of the 2004 Revolving CreditiliigcThis rate is dependent on our leverage ratid ranges from 25 to 50
basis points per annum. As of December 31, 20@7¢commitment fee rate was 37.5 basis points parranAs of December 31,
2007, due to an outstanding irrevocable letteredlic of $0.5 million, we had $99.5 million of tl2©04 Revolving Credit Facility
available to us

In summary, we expect to continue to make investmienclient contracts, capital equipment, and R&Rhough we do not have any
plans to repurchase significant amounts of ourtanting common stock under our Stock Repurchasgr&roat this time, we expect to
continually evaluate the possibility of stock reghases in the future. In addition, as part of gomgh strategy, we are continually evaluating
potential business and asset acquisitions, andtments in market share expansion with our exisdimd) potential new clients. We believe
that: (i) our current cash and short-term investsméalance, together with cash expected to be gttefrom future operating activities;

(if) the amount available under the 2004 Revolv@rgdit Facility; and (iii) other possible sourcdsadditional debt that are available to us,
will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cashuiegments for at least the next 12 months.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is compigdividing fixed charges into earnings. “Earningstefined as income from
continuing operations before income taxes, plusdigharges. “Fixed charges” consist of intereseasp (including the amortization of
deferred financing costs) and the estimated inte@wponent of rental expense. Our consolidatéd oditearnings to fixed charges for 2007,
was 10.01:1.00. See Exhibit 12.10 to this docurf@rminformation regarding the calculation of outioaof earnings to fixed charges.
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ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the potential loss arising from abeechanges in market rates and prices. As of DieeeB1, 2007, we are exposed to
market risks related to changes in interest rated fluctuations and changes in the market vallmioghort-term investments. We have not
historically entered into derivatives or other fig@l instruments for trading or speculative pugss

Market Risk Related to Long-Term DélMe are exposed to interest rate risk related tg-term debt from two sources: our Convertible
Debt Securities and our 2004 Revolving Credit Fgcil

The interest rate on the Convertible Debt Securidixed, and thus, as it relates to our borrgwionder the Convertible Debt
Securities, we are not exposed to changes in sttegites. Commencing with the six-month period feigig June 15, 2011, in any six-month
interest period where the average trading pridh@iConvertible Debt Securities immediately prengdhat six-month interest period equals
120% or more of the principal amount of the CornitaégtDebt Securities, we will pay contingent intgrequal to 0.25% of that average
trading price.

The interest rate for borrowings under the 2004dRéng Credit Facility, except for same day advasés chosen at our option, and is
based upon a base rate or adjusted LIBOR rate gplapplicable margin. The base rate representsigher of a floating prime rate and a
floating rate equal to 50 basis points in excesh®f-ederal Funds Effective Rate. The interestfi@atsame day advances is based upon base
rate, plus an applicable margin. The applicablegmarare dependent on our leverage ratio, as akfara range from zero to 100 basis pc
for base rate loans and 125 to 225 basis pointsIROR loans. As of December 31, 2007 we had madkarrowings under the 2004
Revolving Credit Facility.

See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentadditional information related to our long#tedebt.

Market Risk Related to Cash Equivalents and Stkeon+investment©ur cash and cash equivalents as of December 87, &t 2006
were $123.4 million and $240.7 million, respectivéDur cash balances are typically “sweiptb overnight money market accounts on a ¢
basis, and at times, any excess funds are invasted-risk, somewhat longer term, cash equivalestruments and short-term investments.
We have minimal market risk for our cash and caghwalents due to the relatively short maturiti€she instruments.

Our short-term investments as of December 31, 20@72006 were $9.4 million and $174.8 million, mexstpvely. The day-to-day
management of our cash equivalents and short-taerasiments is performed by two large financialiingons in the U.S., using strict and
formal investment guidelines approved by our Ba#rBirectors. Under these guidelines, short-termegiments are limited to certain
acceptable investments with: (i) a maximum matu(ity a maximum concentration and diversificatiamd (iii) a minimum acceptable credit
quality.

We do not utilize any derivative financial instrum for purposes of managing our market risks edl&b interest rate risk.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of CSG Systems International, Inc. abdidiaries (the “Company”) is responsible for bE&hing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reportasgdefined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under$eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. The Company'’s internal control over fimgrreporting is designed to provide reasonablerasge regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanteWiS. generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company’s internal control overaficial reporting includes those policies and procesl that:

() Pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the

assets of the Compar

(i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiéiahstatements in accordar

with U.S. generally accepted accounting principées] that receipts and expenditures of the Compasmpeing made only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the Company; al

(iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding ptéweor timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of the

Compan’s assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenqaate because of changes in conditions,

or that the degree of compliance with the policied procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgiapaternal control over financial reporting asiécember 31, 2007. In making
this assessment, management used the criteriarebfy the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioithe Treadway Commission (COSO)

in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment and those criteria, maraggiieves that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm, KPMG LLP, has issued an attestation r¢porthe effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2007. That report appears inatedyg below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We have audited CSG Systems International, Ingtermal control over financial reporting as of Dexdter 31, 2007, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission
(COSO0). CSG Systems International, Inc.’s management jgoresible for maintaining effective internal contoder financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in thecompanyindanagement’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reportin. Our responsibility is to express an opinion o& @ompany’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigfanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreuch other procedures as we considered necesghg/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financékstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, CSG Systems International, Inc.meined, in all material respects, effective ingmontrol over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2007, based on criteria establighedernal Control— Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of CSG Systems Ini@nagtinc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, haddlated consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows farteaf the years in the three-year period ended Dbee 31, 2007, and our report dated
February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified opiaiothose consolidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 28, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CSG Systems International, Inc. (aWwsale corporation) and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006thencklated consolidated statements of incomekistdders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2007. These consolidated financialrstaés are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiaistants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
CSG Systems International, Inc. and subsidiaried &ecember 31, 2007 and 2006, and the resultsedf operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generalégepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), CSG
Systems International, Inc.’s internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31, 2007, basedriteria established internal
Control—Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report
dated February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualifigdompon the effectiveness of the Company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting.
KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 28, 2008
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Total cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment
Trade accounts receiva-
Billed, net of allowance of $1,487 and $1,1
Unbilled and othe
Deferred income taxe
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, net of depreciation of 369 .and $66,65
Software, net of amortization of $34,445 and $32,
Goodwill
Client contracts, net of amortization of $98,822 §82,48¢
Deferred income taxe
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Client deposit:
Trade accounts payak
Accrued employee compensati
Deferred revenu
Income taxes payab
Other current liabilitie!
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt
Deferred revenu
Income taxes payab
Other nor-current liabilities
Total nor-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 10,000s0ares authorized; zero shares issued anc
outstanding
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 100,006886:s authorized; 11,230,444 and
12,843,061 shares reserved for employee stock psegblan and stock incentive plans;
34,275,280 and 46,831,643 shares outstar
Additional paic-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost, 27,956,808 and 14,776R8a8:¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Unrealized gain on sh-term investments, net of ti
Unrecognized pension plan losses and prior sepgsts, net of ta
Accumulated earning
Total stockholdel' equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31

2007

December 31

2006

$ 123,41 $ 240,68
9,41¢ 174,80:
132,83: 415,49(
114,13; 110,02
6,03¢ 5,55¢
10,65" 8,921
2,12¢ —
6,39¢ 5,63¢
272,18 545,62
32,65¢ 23,68(
8,64¢ 7,728
60,74¢ 14,22¢
31,52¢ 36,02+
9,45: 19,61"
7,17¢ 6,59/
$ 422,38 $ 653,49
$ 26,65 $ 23,64t
18,42¢ 15,50¢
21,04: 20,96:
17,48( 17,58¢
— 3,651
7,59t 10,15¢
91,20: 91,51
230,00 230,00(
9,79( 8,63z
4,91¢ —
3,95¢ 5,61¢
248,66 244,25
339,86 335,76.
622 61€
350,27. 340,56:
(667,85¢) (360,25¢)
15 25
(43€) (852)
399,90 337,64(
82,52 317,73
$ 422,38 $ 653,49

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Revenues
Processing and related servii
Software, maintenance and servi
Total revenue
Cost of revenues
Processing and related servii
Software, maintenance and servi
Total cost of revenue
Gross margin (exclusive of depreciatic
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciatior
Restructuring charge
Total operating expens
Operating incom:
Other income (expense
Interest expens
Interest and investment income,
Other, ne
Total othet

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Income from continuing operations before incomes&

Income tax provisiol
Income from continuing operatiol
Discontinued operation

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, inctudet pretax gain (loss) on disposals of

$(6,000) in 2006 and $10,904 in 2C

Income tax benef
Discontinued operations, net of t
Net income
Basic earnings (loss) per common sh
Income from continuing operatiol
Discontinued operations, net of t
Net income
Diluted earnings (loss) per common shi

Income from continuing operatiol
Discontinued operations, net of t

Net income
Weightec-average shares outstandi

Basic
Diluted

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$382,07(  $351,76¢  $346,46:
37,19: 31,34: 30,85¢
41926: 383,100 377,31
193,13 173,53 170,34«
24,67+ 20,97 19,72(
217,80 194,51 190,06«
201,45: 188,59! 187,25:
58,34: 46,19: 33,93:
45,74: 43,12; 52,49:
12,90( 10,43¢ 9,86:
63C 2,36¢ 14,53+
117,61! 102,12 110,82(
83,83 86,47 76,43:
(7,126) (7,46E) (7,537)
16,52¢ 21,98 4,05¢
221 (21) 6
9,62 14,49¢ (3,472
93,46 100,96¢ 72,96
(33,299 (38,409 (26,219
60,16: 62,56 46,74
547 (6,55¢) (5,68E)

61 3,76¢ 12,17:
60¢ (2,799 6,481
$ 60,77: $59,77C $ 53,22¢
$ 151 $ 138 $ 0.9¢
0.0z (0.0€) 0.1%
$ 15: $ 12¢ 0§ 111
$ 15 $ 1.3 $ 0.9¢
0.0z (0.0€) 0.1%
$ 15; $ 127 $ 1.0¢
39,67 46,46¢ 47,85
40,02: 47,10: 48,57

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE, January 1, 2005

Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized gain on short-
term investments, net
of tax
Foreign currency
translation
adjustments (relates
to the sale of the GS
Business
Comprehensive incon
Repurchase of common stock
pursuant to Board-approvec
stock repurchase progre
Issuance of common stock
pursuant to employee stock
purchase pla
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit of employee stock-
based compensation pla
Issuance of restricted common
stock pursuant to employee
stock-based compensation
plans
Cancellation of restricted
common stock issued
pursuant to employee stock-
based compensation pla
Repurchase and cancellation o
common stock issued
pursuant to employee stock
based compensation pla
Modification to stock-based
awards
Stock-based employee
compensation expen

BALANCE, December 31, 2005

Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Unrealized loss on shori
term investments, ne
of tax
Unrecognized pension
plan losses, transition
amount and prior
service costs, net of
tax
Comprehensive incomr
Repurchase of common stock
pursuant to Board-approved
stock repurchase progre
Issuance of common stock
pursuant to employee stock
purchase pla
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit of employee stock-
based compensation pla

CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 300
(in thousands)

50

Unrealized Unrecognizec
Gain
Shares of Additional (Loss) on  Pension Plar Total
Common  Common Deferred Treasury Foreign Short-Term Losses and Accumulated Stockholders’
Stock Paid-in Employee Currency Prior Service
Outstanding Stock Capital Compensatior Stock Translation Investments Costs Earnings Equity
51,01¢ $ 59t $ 298,767 $ (1,320 $(224,009) $ 9,40C $ ®) $ — 3 224,64. $ 308,07(
— — — — — — — — 53,22¢
— — — — — 76 — —
— — — — — (9,400 — — —
— — — — — — — — — 43,90¢
(3,80¢) — — — (72,96%) — — — — (72,96%)
68 — 1,13¢ — — — — — — 1,13¢
36¢ 4 4,172 — — — — — — 4,17¢
— — 2,001 — — — — — — 2,001
911 9 9) — — — — — — —
(276) (3) 3 — — — — — — —
(399 (4) (8,349 — — — — — — (8,352)
— — (600C) 60C — — — — — —
— — 19,63¢ 72C — — — — — 20,35¢
47,88¢ 601 316,76¢ — (296,971) — 71 — 277,87( 298,33(
— — — — — — — — 59,77(
—_ —_ _ —_ _ —_ (46) —_ _
— — — — — — — (852) —
— — — — — — — — — 58,87:
(2,485 — — — (63,287) — — — — (63,287)
41 — 86¢ — — — — — — 86¢
821 8 10,65! — — — — — — 10,65¢
— — 3,39( — — — — — — 3,39(
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY—(Co ntinued)

Shares of
Common
Stock
Outstanding

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 300
(in thousands)

Unrealized
Gain
(Loss) on
Short-Term

Additional
Common Deferred
Employee

Compensatior

Treasury Foreign
Currency

Translation

Paid-in

Stock Capital Stock Investments

Unrecognizec

Pension Plan

Losses and

Prior Service
Costs

Total

Accumulated Stockholders’

Earnings

Equity

Issuance of restricted common
stock pursuant to employee
stock-based compensation pl:

Cancellation of restricted common
stock issued pursuant to
employee stock-based
compensation plar

Repurchase and cancellation of
common stock issued pursua
to employee stock-based
compensation plar

Stock-based employee
compensation expen

75€

(41)

(14¢)

8 ®)

® (3,316

12,21«

(3,31%)

12,21«

BALANCE, December 31, 2006

Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized loss on short-
term investments, net
tax
Change in unrecognized
pension plan losses,
transition amount and
prior service costs, ne
of tax
Comprehensive inconm
Cumulative-effect adjustment of
initial adoption of FIN 4¢
Repurchase of common stock
pursuant to Board-approved
stock repurchase progre
Issuance of common stock pursu
to employee stock purchase
plan
Exercise of stock optior
Tax benefit of employee stock-
based compensation pla
Issuance of restricted common
stock pursuant to employee
stock-based compensation pli
Cancellation of restricted commo
stock issued pursuant to
employee stock-based
compensation plar
Repurchase and cancellation of
common stock issued pursuant
to employee stock-based
compensation plar
Stock-based employee
compensation expen

46,83:

(13,18

58

763

(99)

177

61€ 340,56 (360,25¢) 25

(10

(307,599
1,06(
1 1,001

485

@

(2) (4,027)

11,10:

(852)

417

337,64(

60,77!

1,497

317,73

61,17¢

1,491
(307,599
1,06(

1,092

48t

(4,025

11,102

BALANCE, December 31, 2007 34,27

$ 62z $ 350,27. $ —  $(667,85) $ — 3 15

$ (435)

$

399,90¢ $

82,52¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CSG SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activitie

Net income $ 60,77: $ 59,77( $ 53,22¢

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activiti—
Depreciatior 12,90( 10,43¢ 13,69(
Amortization 18,97: 17,11 25,13(
Restructuring charge for abandonment of facilitied impairment of asse 30¢ 401 10,45:
Net pretax (gain) loss on disposition of discongidwperation — 6,00( (10,909
Gain on sho-term investment (3,305 (1,847 (33€)
Deferred income taxe 14,31¢ 15,68¢ (1,947
Excess tax benefit of stc-based compensation awal (892 (3,51 2,001
Stocl-based employee compensat 11,10: 12,21 20,35¢

Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Trade accounts and other receivables 2,84¢ (2,29%) (17,277
Other current and n-current assel 37 (1,099 2,93¢
Income taxes payable/receival 1,88¢ 12,07( (6,565)
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabil (4,627 (13,565 8,61¢
Deferred revenu 1,052 6,76 3,181
Net cash provided by operating activit 115,37¢ 118,15( 102,57-

Cash flows from investing activitie
Net payments from the disposition of discontinupdrations — (6,436 239,76(
Purchases of property and equipm (20,277) (12,657 (22,799

(Purchase) proceeds of aircraft held for ¢ — 7,37¢ (8,712
Purchases of shterm investment (209,436 (283,08.) (88,059
Proceeds from sale/maturity of st-term investment 379,00¢ 156,20( 66,28¢
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (65,939 (22,287) (579
Acquisition of and investments in client contra (7,436 (10,65¢) (6,060
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 75,93! (171,539 189,83
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common si 2,15( 11,52¢ 5,31¢
Repurchase of common sta (311,62) (66,600 (81,320
Payments on acquired equipment financ — (481) —
Excess tax benefit of stc-based compensation awal 892 3,511 —
Payments of deferred financing co — — (87)
Net cash used in financing activiti (308,58)) (52,047) (76,097
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on c — — (3,760
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (117,27) (105,42¢) 212,56:
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 240,68" 346,11; 133,55:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 123,41t $ 240,68 $346,11.

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat

Cash paid during the period —
Interest $ 6,167 $ 6,16 $ 6,17
Income taxe: 16,97 7,43¢ 25,92¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

CSG Systems International, Inc. (the “Company”, @& Sor forms of the pronoun “we”), a Delaware corgtion, was formed in
October 1994 and is based in Englewood, Coloradoa¥¥ a leading provider of outsourced solutioas fiécilitate customer interaction
management on the behalf of our clients, primanilihe North American cable and Direct Broadcagtlee (“DBS”) communications
markets. Our solutions also support an increasimgher of other industries such as financial sesyiaélities, telecommunications, and ho
security. Our solutions manage key customer intenag such as set-up and activation of customesiats, sales support and marketing,
order processing, invoice calculation (i.e., custolnilling), production and mailing of monthly caster invoices, management reporting,
electronic presentment and payment of invoicegmated and interactive messaging, and deploymehtreamagement of the client’s field
technicians to the customsfiome. Our combination of solutions, services, eqkrtise ensure that our clients can rapidlydaurew servic
offerings, improve operational efficiencies, andhaa a high-quality customer experience in a cotitipe and ever-changing marketplace.
We are a S&P Midcap 400 company.

2. Discontinued Operations

In December 2005, we closed on agreements to(8eallur Global Software Services business (the “®8Siness”) to Comverse, Inc., a
division of Comverse Technology, Inc. (“Comversaid (ii) our plaNet Consulting business (the “@aBusiness”) to a group of private
investors led by the plaNet management team. Cuiside to sell these two businesses is consistéhtaur decision to intensify our focus
our core competencies in the North American cabte@BS markets utilizing our Advanced Convergeittferm (“ACP”) product and
related services. As a result of the sale of th& B8siness, we no longer provide customer carélitty products or services outside of
North America.

The GSS Business and plaNet Business both meefivétibn of a “component of an entity” and thusr@@ccounted for as
discontinued operations under Statement of FinbAcieounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144\¢counting for the Impairment or Disposal
Long-Lived Assets.” As a result, we have refledfeel results of operations for the GSS Businesgaidet Business as discontinued
operations for all periods presented in the accayipg Consolidated Statements of Income. We hatsegregated cash flows between
continuing operations and discontinued operatiarthé accompanying Consolidated Statements of Elasts. As deemed appropriate, the
following Notes to the Consolidated Financial Sta¢ats focus on our continuing operations.
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The individual components of the GSS and plaNeinasses included in discontinued operations (wi¢h2005 period for the GSS
Business representing January 1, 2005 through Disee®y 2005) are as follows (in thousands):

2005

GSS Business
Total revenue $161,73°
Total operating expens 178,54(
Operating los! (16,807
Other income (expense), r 3,631
Gain on sale of busine 23,75t
Discontinued operations, before income te 10,58:
Income tax benef 10,32¢
Discontinued operations, net of income ta $ 20,91:

plaNet Business
Total revenue $ 10,597
Total operating expens 14,01¢
Operating los! (3,42))
Other income (expense), r 4
Loss on sale of busine (12,85)
Discontinued operations, before income te (16,26¢)
Income tax benef 1,844
Discontinued operations, net of income ta $(14,429

In 2005, we received net proceeds of $238.7 mil{iwet of cash sold) from the sale of the GSS Bussirend of $1.5 million from the
sale of the plaNet Business.

The sale of the GSS Business and the plaNet Bisimere both subject to the determination of finaichase price adjustments. The
accounts receivable of approximately $4 milliorated to the final purchase price adjustments tadtieen determined as of December 31,
2005, was collected in the first quarter of 2006e Tosts to sell the GSS Business and the plaN&h&ss of $4.4 million were accrued as of
December 31, 2005, and were paid in the first guanft 2006.

During the third quarter of 2006, we made a $6iarilbayment to Comverse related to the settlemeatdispute over a joint tax
election associated with the sale of the GSS BasiriEhis payment to Comverse is considered a rieduict the purchase price previously
paid by Comverse, and thus is reflected as pattefoss from discontinued operations for 2006 s Hattlement payment had not been
anticipated by us, and we do not expect any sirpilachase price adjustments in future periods.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we releasedrtagereserve related to an indemnification agragrassociated with the sale of the
GSS business.
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of ConsolidatiornThe accompanying Consolidated Financial Statenmeaksde all of our accounts and our subsidiaries’
accounts. All material intercompany accounts aadgactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Consolidatedaficial StatementS.he preparation of the accompanying Consolidatedriial
Statements in conformity with accounting principeserally accepted in the United States of AmdtidaS.”) requires management to mg
estimates and assumptions that affect the
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reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdat of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngpiorting period. Actual results could differrfrehose estimates. The more critical
estimates and related assumptions that affectisamdial condition and results of operations arthiareas of: (i) revenue recognition;

(i) allowance for doubtful accounts receivabld) {mpairment assessments of lotiged assets; (iv) loss contingencies; (v) incomees; anc
(vi) business combinations and asset purchases.

Revenue Recognitiowe use various judgments and estimates in conmegifiith the determination of the amount of reventoese
recognized in each accounting period. Our primawenue recognition criteria include: (i) persuagvaence of an arrangement;
(i) delivery; (iii) fixed or determinable fees; diiv) collectibility of fees. In addition, for mtiple-element arrangements that are not subje
a higher level of authoritative literature, we &l the guidelines of the Financial Accounting Stmod Board'’s (“FASB”) Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 00-21 (“EITF 00-21"Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multifdeliverables”.

For those revenue arrangements within the scop#Tdf No. 00-21, we are required to evaluate alivdeables in the arrangement to
determine whether they represent separate unétsaafunting. If the deliverables qualify as sepauaiiés of accounting, the arrangement
consideration is allocated among the separate ahéscounting based upon their relative fair vajuend applicable revenue recognition
criteria are considered for the separate unitsobdanting. If the deliverables do not qualify apa@ate units of accounting, the consideration
allocable to delivered items is combined with tbasideration allocable to the undelivered itemsl, e appropriate recognition of revenu
then determined for those combined deliverables single unit of accounting. For the processing@eagrents that we have historically
evaluated under EITF No. 00-21, we have generalhcluded that the deliverables do not qualify gmsste units of accounting, and thus
have treated the deliverables as a single unitadunting, with the revenue recognized ratably dlerterm of the processing agreement.

We have historically derived a significant percgetaf our total revenues from continuing operatifvom processing and related
services. Processing and related services reveonssst primarily of monthly processing fees getestdrom our outsourced customer care
and billing application, called ACP, and servicasitlary to ACP, and generally, are not subjectanous judgments and estimates in
determining the proper revenue recognition. Prongsand related services revenues are recognizéteaervices are performed. Processing
fees are typically billed monthly based on the namif client’s customers served, ancillary serviaestypically billed on a per transaction
basis, and customized print and mail services iflegllon a usage basis. Fees received to converttadustomers onto our outsourced
customer care and billing applications and feesived to set-up/implement new services for existilignts (as well as the costs to perform
the conversion or set-up services) are generaflyridal and recognized over the term of the cligpttecessing arrangement.

Our historical revenues from continuing operatioelated to software licenses, maintenance seryass known as post-contract
customer support, or PCS) and professional sergicesubstantially less than those generated froeepsing and related services. Software
and maintenance revenues consist of the sale nfa@f licenses (principally one-time perpetualiiees) and related software maintenance
services. Professional services revenues consésvafiety of consulting services, such as prothstallation, business consulting, and
training services. A substantial percentage oftobed combined revenues from these three souraegsdrom maintenance services.

Software license fees are recognized using theetjoeks of: (i) American Institute of Certified PidoAccountants (“AICPA”)Statemen
of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recoigni’, as amended (“SOP 97-2"); (ii) SOP 98-9, “Safre Revenue Recognition, With
Respect to Certain Transactions” (“SOP 98-9"); @imdAICPA Technical Questions and Answers, Sectsd 00, “Revenue Recognitioror
software arrangements that have multiple elementd) as software, maintenance and professiondtesrwe allocate
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the contract value to the respective elements baise#ndor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE")tbéir individual fair values, determined
in accordance with SOP 97-2. VSOE for maintenaec@ices is established by pricing the maintenaeceices based upon a substantive
maintenance renewal rate expressed as a congsteeintage of the stipulated license fees. Foethoffware arrangements that have
multiple elements for which we do not have VSOHEaif value on one or more of the delivered elementsallocate the contract value to the
respective elements based upon the “residual méth@tcordance with SOP 98-9. Under the residugthmd, the undiscounted fair value of
the undelivered elements is deferred and subsdguenbgnized as they are delivered. Our softwaran@ements generally do not include
implementation services that involve significamguction, modification or customization of the sedte being licensed.

For certain software arrangements, we have agoeétbst” the software on our hardware. In accordanith EITF Issue No. 00-03,
“Application of AICPA Statement of Position 97-2 Asrangements That Include the Right to Use Soféngitored on Another Entity’s
Hardware”, these hosting services are treatedsaparate element of the software arrangement wigedient has a contractual right to take
possession of the software at any time during tiging period without incurring a significant petyadnd it is feasible for the client to either
run the software on its own hardware or contrath another party unrelated to us to host the soéiwa

Maintenance fees are recognized ratably over thécgeperiod. Our maintenance services consistgmilgnof client and product
support, technical updates (e.g., bug fixes, edndl, unspecified upgrades or enhancements. Iffigabcipgrades or enhancements are offered
in an arrangement, which is rare, they are accduioieas a separate element in accordance with SR

Revenues from professional services generally sbn§isoftware installation projects with a relatiwshort duration period. These
revenues are generally recognized as the instailatbrk is completed.

Deferred Revenue and Unbilled Accounts ReceivaBlent payments and billed amounts due from téiém excess of revenue
recognized are recorded as deferred revenue. Revenagnized prior to the scheduled billing date@orded as unbilled accounts
receivable. Deferred revenue as of December 317 26@ 2006 relates primarily to our processingratated services, of which a substantial
portion relates to fees received to set-up/impldmew services for our existing clients’ customahsch are being recognized over the term
of the clients’ processing arrangements.

PostageWe pass through to our clients the cost of postlaggis incurred on behalf of those clients, argidgily require an advance
payment on expected postage costs. These advayioepis are included in “client deposits” in the@opanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets, and are classified as current liabiliggmrdless of the contract period. We net the dgsbstage against the postage reimbursements
and include the net amount in processing and klsgevices revenues. We have concluded that ragiient of these revenues is appropriate
as we: (i) generally have little or no credit rigskh regard to postage, as we require postage @egosm our clients based on contractual
arrangements prior to the mailing of customer statgs; (ii) have no discretion over the suppliepa$tal delivery services; and (iii) are not
the primary obligor in the postal delivery servigde cost of postage that has been shown net gfiasimge reimbursements from our clients
for 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $213.7 million, $198ikion, and $182.2 million, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalenisle consider all highly liquid investments with drnigl maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. As of December 31, 2007, our cashvatgnts consist primarily of commercial paper amstitutional money market funds.

Short-term Investments and Other Financial InstrataeWe classify our short-term investments as “abéégor-sale” in accordance
with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investm&in Debt and Equity Securities”. Short-term istveents are stated at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses on such securitiegfie¢ related income tax effect, included in ktaadders’ equity. For all short-term
investments, unrealized losses that are considetkdr than temporaryare recognized immediately in earnings. Realizedsgand losses ¢
short-term investments are included in earningsaaadierived using the specific identification noettior determining the cost of the
investments. Realized and unrealized gains andsossre not material in any period presented.
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Our short-term investments at December 31, 200728068 consisted of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2007 2006
Corporate debt securiti $9,121 $114,90:
Corporate and municipal auct-rate securitie — 59,90(
All other 29t —

Total $9,41¢€ $174,80:

While the auction-rate securities held by us aBefember 31, 2006 had contractual maturities tkieneled beyond 10 years from the
date of acquisition, these securities are pricetiteaded as short-term instruments due to thedituprovided through an interest rate reset
feature and have been classified as short-ternsimants. All other shoterm investments held by us as of December 31, 26672006 ha\
contractual maturities of less than one year froentime of acquisition. Proceeds from the sale/nitgtaf shortterm investments were $37!
million, $156.2 million, and $66.3 million, in 2002006, and 2005, respectively.

Our other material balance sheet financial instmisias of December 31, 2007 and 2006 include aaglcash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable, and long-term dedtaBse of their short maturities, the carrying am®of cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable approximate filneivalue. As of December 31, 2007, and 2006 faéivevalue of our long-term debt, based
upon quoted market prices, was approximately $2illiomand $264 million , respectively. The fairlue of the contingent interest feature of
our long-term debt, considered an embedded derejadis of December 31, 2007 and 2006, was approsiyrs32,000 and $0.3 million ,
respectively (see Note 7).

Concentrations of Credit Riska the normal course of business, we are exposerketht risk. The principal concentrations of ctedik
relate to cash deposits, cash equivalents, shontitevestments, and accounts receivable. We rdgutawnitor credit risk exposures and take
steps to mitigate the likelihood of these exposuessilting in a loss. We hold our cash depositsh @guivalents, and short-term investments
with financial institutions we believe to be of swlfinancial condition.

We do not require collateral or other securityupgort accounts receivable. We evaluate the cvealithiness of our clients in
conjunction with our revenue recognition procesassyell as through our ongoing collectibility assaent processes for accounts receivable
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsiredde based upon factors surrounding the cresktaf specific clients, historical trends,
and other information. We use various judgmentsestithates in determining the adequacy of the aiwe for doubtful accounts receivable.
See Note 5 for additional details of our conceidrabf accounts receivable.

The activity in our allowance for doubtful accourgseivable for continuing operations is as folldimsthousands):

2007 2006 2005
Balance, beginning of ye $1,14: $1,32¢ $1,94¢
Additions (reductions) to expen 231 10¢ (112
Write-offs (54) (381) (597
Other 167 91 79
Balance, end of ye: $1,48i $1,14: $1,32¢

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment are recorded at costt @stamated fair value if acquired in a businesalsimation)
and are depreciated over their estimated usefes lranging from three to eight years.
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over thrteshad their economic life or the lease term. Dsmpation expense is computed using the
straight-line method for financial reporting purpesDepreciation expense for all property and eqaift is reflected separately in the
aggregate and is not included in the cost of regsmu the other components of operating expensgaebiation for income tax purposes is
computed using accelerated methods.

Software We expend substantial amounts on research andageneht (“R&D”), particularly for new products orrsees, or for
enhancements of existing products and servicesd&alopment of software products that are todemnked by us, we follow SFAS No. 86,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software ® 8old, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed” (“SFAS 86FAS 86 requires that the cost of
developing software be expensed prior to estabigstechnological feasibility, and those costs h@tatized once technological feasibility F
been established. Capitalization ceases upon darrase of the software. For development of saféno be used internally (e.g., proces
systems software), we follow SOP 98-1, “Accountiogthe Costs of Computer Software Developed or@®ed for Internal Use” (“SOP 98-
1”). SOP 98-1 requires that the cost of develogioffjware for internal use be expensed prior tcagh@ication development stage.

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, we expended $58.3amjl646.2 million, and $33.9 million, respectivefgr internal software R&D
projects related to continuing operations. We ditlaapitalize any internal software R&D costs un8EAS 86 or SOP 98-1 in 2007, 2006, or
2005 as the costs subject to capitalization duttiege periods were not material. We did not hayecapitalized internal software R&D costs
included in our December 31, 2007 or 2006 accomipgn@onsolidated Balance Sheets.

Realizability of Long-Lived AsseW/e evaluate the recoverability of our loliged assets, other than goodwill, in accordandé 8FAS
No. 144Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohgred Assets”. Long-lived assets are required t@bsuated for possible
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstaimdicate that the carrying value of these assay not be recoverable. A long-lived
asset is impaired if estimated future undiscoutesh flows associated with that asset are insefftdio recover the carrying amount of the
long-lived asset. If deemed impaired, the longdiasset is written down to its fair value.

Gooduwill. We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwalhd Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142") in aceting for acquired
goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS, fibodwill is required to be tested for impairmentan annual basis, and is required to
be evaluated for possible impairment on a moreogéribasis (e.g., quarterly) if events occur ocwinstances change that could indicate a
possible impairment may have occurred. Goodwitlassidered impaired if the carrying value of thearting unit which includes the
goodwill is greater than the estimated fair valGithe reporting unit.

Restructuring Charge&Ve account for restructuring charges related tdarachterminations in accordance with SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Digab Activities” (“SFAS 146”), and restructuring clgas related to employee termination
benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 112, “Emplsyéiccounting for Postemployment Benefits—an Ameedbof FASB Statement No. 5
and 43". SFAS 146 requires that the liability fosts associated with a restructuring activity mogaized when the liability is incurred. For
facility abandonments, the liability is recognizztd measured at its fair value when we cease tissngghts conveyed by the lease
agreement. Since our employee termination beraf@gprovided pursuant to a substantive ongoingfiilerreangement, SFAS 112 requires
that a liability for the employee termination bdtebe recognized when it is probable that the fisneill be paid and the amounts to be paid
can be reasonably estimated in accordance with S¥YAS, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS 5”).

Loss ContingenciesWe follow the guidelines of SFAS 5 in determinthg appropriate accounting and disclosures folaas and gain
contingencies. We accrue for a loss contingencynwtigit is probable that an asset has been iredaior a liability has been incurred; and
(i) the amount of the loss can be reasonably edech The determination of accounting for loss iom@ncies is subject to various judgments
and estimates. We do not record the benefit frayaia contingency until the benefit is realized.
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Earnings Per Common Share (“EPSBPS has been computed in accordance with SFAS28).“Earnings Per Share”. Basic EPS is
computed by dividing net income (the numerator}h®gyweighted-average number of common shares adistaduring the period (the
denominator). Diluted EPS is consistent with thieuation of basic EPS while considering the effacpotentially dilutive common shares
outstanding during the period. Unvested sharessificted stock are not included in the basic Ef&utation. Basic and diluted EPS are
presented on the face of the accompanying Consetiddtatements of Income.

No reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPS nratas is necessary as net income is used as therators for all periods presented.
The reconciliation of the EPS denominators is idelliin the following table (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Basic weighte-average common shar 39,67( 46,46 47,85
Dilutive effect of common stock optiol 73 221 30¢
Dilutive effect of unvested restricted stc 27¢ 371 411
Dilutive effect of Convertible Debt Secuiriti — 46 —

Diluted weighte-average common shar 40,02; 47,10z 48,57

Potentially dilutive common shares related to stoptions and unvested shares of restricted stoGkdomillion, 0.3 million, and
0.8 million, respectively, for 2007, 2006, and 20@&re excluded from the computation of diluted EBSheir effect was antidilutive.

We calculate the potential dilutive effect of owr@ertible Debt Securities using the “treasury ktaoethod. Under the treasury stock
method, we experience dilution related to the Cadiite Debt Securities only in those quarterly pds in which our average stock price has
exceeded the current effective conversion pricg26f 77 per share. As discussed in Note 7, the mueféective conversion price of $26.77
share may be adjusted in the future for certaimesyéo include stock dividends, stock splits/reeesplits, the issuance of warrants to
purchase our stock at a price below the tbement market price, cash dividends, and certaichmses by us of our common stock pursua
a self-tender offer or exchange offer.

Stock-Based CompensatioRffective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS N8.(t€vised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
123R”) and related amendments and interpretatissing the modified prospective transition methdeAS 123R is a revision of SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (A&F123"), which we adopted in 2003, and supersedes AccouRtimgiples Boari
No. 25,“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB"R&nd its related implementation guidance. Prioadopting SFAS 123R, we
accounted for stockased awards granted or modified after Januar@Q3 2nd prior to January 1, 2006 in accordance 8/AS 123, and fc
all other stock-based awards granted prior to Jgria2003 (and not subsequently modified afteudan 1, 2003) in accordance with APB
25,

SFAS 123R establishes standards for transactioniich an entity exchanges its equity instrumeatggbods or services. It also
addresses transactions in which an entity incatslifies in exchange for goods or services thattased on the fair value of the entity’s
equity instruments or that may be settled by thadace of those equity instruments. Under the reatifrospective transition method, SFAS
123R applies to new awards and to awards modifegzyrchased, or cancelled after January 1, 2008\p€nsation cost for unvested awards
as of January 1, 2006 previously accounted foc@oadance with SFAS 123 and APB 25, for which #wguisite service has not been
rendered (totaling $0.3 million as of January 10@0Qhas been recognized as the requisite senasa@ndered on or after January 1, 2006
based upon the grant-date fair value and attributiethod applied in accordance with the originalgions of SFAS 123. SFAS 123R also
requires us to estimate the amount of expectedifarés in calculating compensation costs for alstanding awards. Previously, we
accounted for the impact of forfeitures when thegured.
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Since we had adopted SFAS 123 effective Janua2903, the adoption of SFAS 123R did not have aifsogimt impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements. SFAS 123R regjtiite benefit of tax deductions in excess of neizegl compensation expense be
reported as a financing cash inflow rather thaaraeperating cash inflow. As a result, we have isdply classified $0.9 million and $3.5
million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, of excesshtienefits from stock-based compensation arrangenas a financing cash inflow and as
an operating cash outflow in our Consolidated $tete of Cash Flows. In accordance with the modifiezbpective transition method of
adopting SFAS 123R, our Consolidated Financialegtants for 2005 have not been restated for thitemat

At December 31, 2007, we had several stock-baseghensation plans (see Note 13). We recorded staskebcompensation expense
(which includes both continuing and discontinuedragions for 2005) of $11.1 million, $12.2 milliceind $20.4 million respectively, for
2007, 2006, and 2005.

Because we continued to follow the intrinsic vahased method under APB 25 for all stock-based asvgrahted prior to January 1,
2003 (and not subsequently modified after Janua@p@3) until the effective date of our adoptiorS#fAS 123R, compensation expense for
2005 is less than what would have been recognfzée ifair value based method under SFAS 123 had beplied to all awards for all
periods. Had compensation expense for our stockebesmpensation plans been based on fair valire afraint dates for awards under those
plans for 2005, consistent with the methodolog®BAS 123, our net income and net income per sloar2005, would approximate the pro
forma amounts as follows (in thousands, excepspare amounts):

2005
Net income, as reporte $ 53,22¢
Add: Stocl-based employee compensation expense includedanteejnet income, net of related tax effe 12,64¢
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expensentieted under the fair value-based method for aliras, net of related
tax effects (14,829
Net income, pro form $ 51,05:
Net income per shar
Basi—as reportel $ 1.11
Basic—pro forma 1.07
Diluted—as reportet 1.0¢
Diluted—pro forma 1.0

Income TaxedNe account for income taxes under the asset abititfamethod, which requires the recognition ofeleed tax assets a
liabilities for the expected future tax consequanakevents that have been included in the findstaements. Under this method, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are determined basatedifferences between the financial statemerdg@aabasis of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in whiehdifferences are expected to reverse. The affexthange in tax rates on deferred tax a:
and liabilities is recognized in income in the pdrthat includes the enactment date.

We record net deferred tax assets to the exteialieve these assets will more likely than notdsdized. In making such
determination, we consider all available positinel aegative evidence, including scheduled reverdadeferred tax liabilities, projected
future taxable income, tax planning strategiesraeént financial operations.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpietat“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty imcome Taxes,” (“FIN 48"Wwhich
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in the financial statements in@ance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 provides that a tax bérfedm an uncertain tax position may be recogniaéxn it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination, inahgdresolutions of any related appeals or litigagiwocesses, based on the
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technical merits. Income tax positions must membae-likely-than-not recognition threshold at tliteetive date to be recognized upon the
adoption of FIN 48 and in subsequent periods. erpretation also provides guidance on measurgrderecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim msjalisclosure and transition.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January00,72As a result of the implementation of FIN 4&, recognized reductions in our
liability for unrecognized income tax benefits telhto our continuing operations of $0.3 milliordaelated to our discontinued operations of
$1.2 million, both which were accounted for asrereéase to our January 1, 2007 accumulated earbaigsce.

Comprehensive Income (Losghe components of comprehensive income (loss)adlected in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. In the fourtiager of 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employ&csounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendhEASB Statements No. 87, 88 and 132(R)” reldtea frozen defined benefit
pension plan maintained by us. As a result, in otoleecord the funded status of the defined bépefision plan (equal to the difference
between the fair value of the plan assets andrbjeqied benefit obligation), or a liability of $million on our December 31, 2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet, we recorded a chai@éhter Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of ta$00® million. During 2007, we
recorded an increase to Other Comprehensive In¢hoss), net of tax, of $0.4 million, to reflect thiange in the funded status of the def
benefit pension plan. The liability on our DecemBgr 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet related tdefired benefit pension plan was $1.6
million. The defined benefit pension plan is nohsidlered material to our consolidated financialesteents.

Accounting Pronouncement Issued But Not Yet Bffedti September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Falue
Measurements” (“SFAS 157”), which defines fair \@lestablishes a framework for measuring fair vadnel expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157beikffective for us on January 1, 2008. We dcempect the adoption of SFAS 157 to
have a material impact on our consolidated findrste&tements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “The Walue Option for Financial Assets and Finanti@bilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS 159%/hich permits an entity to choose to measure varfmancial instruments and
certain other items at fair value that are notently required to be measured at fair value. Tlowipions of SFAS 159 are effective for us on
January 1, 2008. We do not expect that SFAS 19%aile a material impact on our consolidated finarstatements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (re\@88d), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141(R)"),ialhsignificantly changes
the accounting for business combinations. UnderSEAL(R), an acquiring entity is required to redpgrall the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a transaction at the actjaisidate fair value with limited exceptions. SFA&L(R) further changes the accounting
treatment for certain items, including: (i) acqtii costs will be generally expensed as incur(@dnoncontrolling interests (formerly known
as “minority interests”) will be valued at fair val at the acquisition date; (iii) acquired contimgeabilities will be recorded at fair value at
the acquisition date and subsequently measurdthat ¢he higher of such amount or the amount daterd under existing guidance for non-
acquired contingencies; (iv) in-process R&D willteeorded at fair value as an indefinite-lived ingi#ole asset at the acquisition date;

(v) restructuring costs associated with a busicessbination will be expensed subsequent to theisitigm date; and (vi) changes in deferred
tax asset valuation allowances and income tax taiogies after the acquisition date generally wifect income tax expense. SFAS 141(R)
also includes a substantial number of new disclkseguirements. The provisions of SFAS 141(R) &extve for us for all business
combinations for which the acquisition date is omfber January 1, 2009, with early adoption prikith We are currently evaluating the
future impacts, if any, of this standard.
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4. Acquisitions
2007 Acquisitions.

On July 9, 2007, we acquired 100% of the votingityqoterests of ComTec, Inc. (“ComTec”) for $2idllion in cash (net of $1.9
million in acquired cash) at closing, plus $0.5limil in acquisition costs. ComTec is a providepdht and electronic statement processing
services headquartered in Fairfield, New Jerseya¥¢gired ComTec to maximize customer interactmrclients by expanding our statem
processing footprint and capabilities through tleiton of enhanced statement production and eleiirstatement presentation hardware
software technologies, as well as for additionahpkapacities. In addition, the acquisition insesaour presence in our core video market, as
well as in new industry verticals such as telecomications, home security, healthcare, financialises, and utilities.

On August 10, 2007, we acquired 100% of the votiggity interests of Prairie Voice Services, In¢.$40.4 million in cash (net of $3.7
million in acquired cash) at closing, plus $0.4lioil in acquisition costs. In December 2007, welaivorking capital adjustment of $0.2
million upon completion of a balance sheet audda#juartered in Omaha, Nebraska, this businesshwids renamed Prairie Interactive
Messaging, Inc. (“Prairie”), provides inbound andbmund automated voice, text/SMS, email and fagsaging services to manage:

(i) workforce communications; (ii) collections;ijilead generation; (iv) automated order captwgsérvice outage notifications; and

(vi) other business functions. We acquired Pragiextend our customer interaction management déjpegbwithin our core cable television
and DBS markets, while also providing an establishiesstomer base in new industry verticals suclinasial services and
telecommunications.

The following table summarizes the estimated falues (in thousands) of the assets acquired abitltlss assumed at the dates of
acquisition for ComTec and Prairie, and the estédives of the acquired intangible assets. Amatitin expense related to the acquired
intangible assets is recognized on a straightdams, which approximates the pattern in whichettenomic benefits of the acquired
intangible assets are expected to be received.

ComTec Prairie

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Estimated Estimated

Lives Lives
Amount (months) Amount (months)
Current assets (includes cash and cash equivalefiis913 and

$3,703, respectively $ 8,181 $ 9,217
Fixed asset 66& 942

Acquired software 1,03( 60 1,35(C 60

Acquired client contracts and ot 94C 60 3,31( 60
Goodwill 19,39( 26,97:
Non-current net deferred income tax as: 2,66: 5,48¢
Other nol-current assetl 95 803
Total assets acquire 32,96: 48,07¢
Current liabilities 8,12i 1,641
Non-current deferred income tax liabiliti 74¢€ 1,741
Total liabilities assume 8,87: 3,382
Net assets acquire $24,09( $44,69¢

In addition to the cash paid at closing, the Comdteck purchase agreement includes provisionsdditianal purchase price payments
of up to $2.5 million, contingent upon the achieestnof certain predetermined operating criteriarakie 12-month period ending June 30,
2008. The Prairie stock purchase

62



Table of Contents

agreement provides for contingent payments of wgptiroximately $6 million through the end of 20@® o achievement of certain
predetermined operating criteria. As of December2BD7, the additional purchase price payments havéeen reflected in the ComTec or
Prairie purchase prices due to uncertainty of paynihe contingent payments will be recorded astiathél purchase price if and when the
events associated with the contingencies are redalvthe outcome of the contingencies are detatnerbeyond a reasonable doubt.

The ComTec and Prairie goodwill amounts repredenekcess of the cost of an acquired entity oven#t amounts assigned to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, and have beégressto our one reportable segment. The ComTedaaide goodwill and acquired
intangible assets are not deductible for incomeptaposes. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Actiogrfor Income Taxes”, for the
ComTec and Prairie acquisitions, we have recognizderred tax liabilities of $0.7 million and $Imillion, respectively, for the difference
between the assigned book values and the tax ba#®s acquired intangible assets, but have natgrized deferred tax liabilities for the
difference between the assigned book value anththkasis of goodwill. Included in the ComTec amdiife net assets acquired are deferred
income tax assets of $2.6 million and $4.6 millimspectively, related to Federal net operating (WOL”") carryforwards of $7.4 million
and $13.1 million, respectively, which we believe more likely than not to be realized. The Comded Prairie Federal NOL carryforwards
begin to expire in 2023 and 2027, respectiveladdition, included in the Prairie net assets aeqliis a $0.8 million deferred income tax
asset related to a state NOL carryforward of $i6illon which is expected to be utilized within tfiee-year carryforward period.

The results of operations of ComTec and Prairigrasieded in the accompanying Condensed Consotidatatements of Income for t
periods subsequent to the acquisition dates. Pnaafanformation on our historical results of opamas to reflect the acquisitions of ComTec
and Prairie is not presented as ComTec’s and E'anesults of operations during prior periodsraematerial to our results of operations.

We are in the process of obtaining certain infofamathat we believe is necessary to finalize thenCec and Prairie purchase
accounting, including the finalization of: (i) ti@mTec closing balance sheet audit which may résatworking capital adjustment, and tl
an adjustment to the ComTec total purchase prive i) the income tax attributes of the acquirededs. As of December 31, 2007, we are
not expecting the working capital adjustment fond&c to be material and are not expecting sigmfichanges to our preliminary purchase
price allocations.

2006 Acquisition.

On March 1, 2006, we acquired 100% of the votingitggnterests of Telution, Inc. (“Telution”). Teilon was a Chicagbased provide
of operations support system (“OSS”) technolodies €nabled communications companies to bring leahdldvanced services to market
quickly and effectively. We acquired Telution at&l COMX solution to expand our ability to suppastramunication providers as they deli
advanced and IP-based services.

We paid $20.4 million in cash (net of $1.6 millisnacquired cash), plus $0.4 million in acquisitmwsts. In addition, during 2007 and
2006, we paid contingent purchase price paymers® & million and $1.5 million, respectively, reddtto various milestones associated with
the integration of Telution’s COMX solution with bACP product (the “Integration Earn-Outs”). Thedi Integration Earn-Outs payment of
$0.7 million was made in January 2008.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduahéhe date of acquisition (in
thousands), and the estimated lives of the acqintadgible assets. Amortization expense relatetdéacquired intangible assets is being
recognized on a straight-line basis, which appretés the pattern in which the economic benefith@facquired intangible assets are
expected to be received.

Weighted-

Average

Estimated

Lives

Amount (months)
Current assets (includes cash and cash equivalefiis618) $ 3,56¢
Fixed asset 57C

Acquired software 8,76¢ 84

Acquired client contracts and ot 504 14

Acquired customer relationshi 2,13¢ 60
Goodwill 13,76(
Non-current deferred income tax as 5,01%
Other noi-current assel 2
Total assets acquire 34,31¢
Current liabilities (2,607
Non-current deferred income tax liabili (4,319
Total liabilities assume (6,929
Net assets acquire $27,39¢

In addition to the cash paid at closing and thedrdtion Earn-Outs, the Telution stock purchaseement included provisions for
additional purchase price payments of up to $3ioni/lcontingent upon us signing certain revenuaregements with certain clients (the
“Revenue Earn-Outs”). The right to the Revenue Eamts expires December 31, 2008. As of Decembe2@17, the Revenue Earn-Outs
have not been reflected in the Telution purchasee mlue to uncertainty of payment. The Revenue-ans will be recorded as additional
purchase price if and when the events associatidtmé contingencies are resolved or the outcontkeo€ontingencies are determined
beyond a reasonable doubt.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the cost of guieed entity over the net amounts assigned tasssguired and liabilities assumed.
The Telution goodwill and acquired intangible assat not deductible for income tax purposes. fAessalt, we have recognized a deferrec
liability of $4.3 million for the difference betwadhe assigned book value and the tax basis aidheired intangible assets, but have not
recognized a deferred tax liability for the diffece between the assigned book value and the tédfagoodwill. Included in the net assets
acquired are: (i) a $4.4 million deferred income @aset related to a Federal net operating los®("Ncarryforward of $12.4 million which
we believe is more likely than not to be realizedroapproximately 5 years; and (ii) a $0.4 milldeferred income tax asset related to a state
NOL carryforward of $9.1 million which is expectemlbe utilized within the carryforward periods whi@ange from 12 to 20 years. T
Telution Federal NOL carryforward begins to expir@021.

The results of operations of Telution are includethe accompanying Consolidated Statements ofnrecfor the period subsequent to
the acquisition date. Pro forma information on bistorical results of operations to reflect thewdsition of Telution is not presented as
Telution’s results of operations during prior pelsaare not material to our results of operations.
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5. Segment Reporting and Significant Concentration

Segment Informatiorsegment and related information is presented inrdemce with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segisef
an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 13BFAS 131 requires disclosures of selected infaonabout operating segments and
related disclosures about products and servicegjrgphic areas, and major customers. SFAS 131resgoperating segments to be
determined based on the way management organtas@any for purposes of making operating decisamsassessing performance. As a
result of the sale of the GSS and plaNet busingas2@05 (see Note 2), we have determined thatave lone reportable segment, as defined
by SFAS 131.

Products and Service®ur primary product offerings include our core autked processing product, ACP, and related sesdnd
software products, to include our output solutide generate a substantial percentage of ourretahues by providing ACP processing
services and software products to the North Amaraable and DBS markets. We license certain sofhwavducts (e.g., ACSR, Workforce
Express, etc.) and provide professional servicegipally to our existing base of processing cléett enhance the core functionality of ACP,
increase the efficiency and productivity of ouealis’ operations, and allow clients to effectively ralitmew products and services to new
existing markets, such as HSI and telephony talessial and commercial customers. Our full suitprafcessing, software, and professional
services allows clients to automate their custamteraction management and billing functions. Thesetions include set-up and activation
of customer accounts, sales support, order praggssivoice calculation, production and mailingrmfoices, management reporting,
electronic presentment and payment of invoices,dempdoyment and management of our client’s fietdhigcians.

Geographic Region®ll revenues and long-lived assets related to ontiouing operations are attributable to our opernstin North
America, primarily the U.S.

Significant Clients and Industry Concentratiofihe North American communications industry hgsesienced significant consolidation
over the last few years, resulting in a large pstage of the market being served by a limited nurobservice providers with greater size
scale. Consistent with this market concentratidarge percentage of our revenues from continupgrations are generated from a limited
number of clients, with approximately 70% of owearues from continuing operations being generatad bur four largest clients, which ¢
Comcast Corporation (“Comcast”), DISH Network Caggt@mn (“DISH”), formerly EchoStar Communications Corporation, TWdarner Inc
(“Time Warner”), and Charter Communications (“Cleat}. Revenues from these clients representeddif@ifing percentages of our total
revenues from continuing operations for the follogviears:

2007 200€ 200F
Comcast (1 27% 24% 22%
DISH 20% 19% 21%
Time Warnel 13% 12% 10%
Charter 9% 11% 10%

(1) The increase in our percentage of revenuesrgetefrom Comcast between 2006 and 2007 is priynduie to the movement of
additional customer accounts, who were alreadyuwrsgstems, to Comci's ownership in the first quarter of 20(

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the percentagetddilled accounts receivable balances from oaitig operations attributable to
these clients were as follows:

As of December 31,

2007 2006
Comcas 32% 27%
DISH (2) 22% 29%
Time Warnel 11% 10%
Charter 9% 10%
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(2) The decrease in percentage of accounts redeifraln DISH as of December 31, 2007 compared toeD®er 31, 2006 is due primarily
to DISH having one less monthly invoice outstandisgf December 31, 20C

We expect to continue to generate a significantgr@age of our future revenues from a limited nundbelients, including Comcast,
DISH, Time Warner, and Charter. There are inheieks whenever a large percentage of total reveareesoncentrated with a limited
number of clients. One such risk is that, shouibaificant client: (i) terminate or fail to rendtg contract with us, in whole or in part, for ¢
reason; (ii) significantly reduce the number oftonser accounts processed on our systems, thegaideor our services, or the scope of
services we provide; or (iii) experience signifitéinancial or operating difficulties, it could hawa material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

6. Long-Lived Assets
Property and EquipmenRroperty and equipment at December 31 consistdtedbllowing (in thousands, except years):

Useful
Lives (years 2007 2006

Computer equipmet 3 $ 31,53¢ $ 22,35:
Leasehold improvemen 5-1C 11,00( 8,211
Operating equipmet 3-5 45,73 45,50:
Furniture and equipme 8 12,40: 12,45
Capital projects in proce: — 1,54: 1,814
102,22: 90,33¢

Les—accumulated depreciatic (69,56 (66,65¢)
Property and equipment, r $ 32,65¢ $ 23,68(

Goodwill. We do not have any intangible assets with indefilites other than goodwill. The change in theyiag amount of goodwiill
for 2007 and 2006, relating to the acquisition€ofmTec and Prairie acquisitions in 2007 and Tefuinn2006 (see Note 4), was as follows
(in thousands):

January 1, 2006, balan $ 628
Goodwill acquired during peric 13,60¢
December 31, 2006 balan 14,22¢
Goodwill acquired during peric 46,36
All other 15€
December 31, 2007 balan $60,74¢

Other Intangible Asset®ur intangible assets subject to ongoing amortimatonsist of client contracts and software.
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Client Contracts

Client contracts consist of: (i) investments irenli contracts; (ii) direct and incremental costt the have capitalized related to
contractual arrangements where we have deferreshues to convert or set-up client customers ont@otsourced customer care and billing
applications; and (iii) client contracts acquiracisiness combinations. As of December 31, 20672806, the carrying values of these
assets were as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Investments in client contracts ( $117,96° $ (95,45 $22,51+ $112,03: $ (81,039 $31,00(
Capitalized cost 5,497 (1,747 3,74¢ 3,83¢ (687) 3,152
Acquired client contracts (: 6,88¢ (1,627 5,26¢ 2,63 (765) 1,872
Total client contract $130,34t $ (98,827) $31,52¢ $118,51( $ (82,48f) $36,02¢

The aggregate amortization related to client catdrancluded in continuing operations for 2007, &0énd 2005, was as follows (in
thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Investments in client contracts ( $14,42( $13,447 $12,73¢

Capitalized costs (2 1,057 657 852
Acquired client contracts (< 85€ 765 —

Total client contract $16,337  $14,86¢  $13,58¢

(1) Investments in client contracts are principatigentives provided to new or existing clientstmvert their customer accounts to, or
retain their customer’s accounts on, our custoraex and billing systems. Investments in client it related to client incentives are
amortized ratably over the lives of the respectiient contracts, which have termination dates thage from 2008 through 2013.
Amortization of the investments in client contraatkated to client incentives is reflected as aiotidn in processing and related serv
revenues in the accompanying Consolidated Statenoéihcome

(2) Client contracts related to the deferral ofwemsion/set-up services costs are amortized prigpately over the same period that the
deferred conversion/set-up services revenues eogmeed, and are reflected in cost of processimpralated services in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Incc

(3) Acquired client contracts represent assetsiesd)jin the ComTec, Prairie, and Telution busiresguisitions (see Note 4). Acquired
client contracts are being amortized over theinesed useful lives ranging from ten months to fpears. Amortization related to the
ComTec and Prairie acquired client contracts isarily reflected in cost of processing and relatedices in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income, while amortiratelated to the Telution acquired client consastprimarily reflected in cost of
software, maintenance and services revenues iactt@mpanying Consolidated Statements of Ince

The weighted-average remaining amortization peoioclient contracts as of December 31, 2007 wasamately 40 months. Based
on the December 31, 2007 net carrying value ofetfrsngible assets, the estimated amortizatioedoh of the five succeeding fiscal years
ending December 31 will be: 2008 — $17.1 millioA02 — $4.2 million; 2010 — $4.1 million; 2011 — $3nillion and 2012 — $2.5 million.
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Software
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the carryingesbf these assets were as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Net Carrying Net
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Software $43,09: (34,447  $8,64¢ $40,71¢ $ (32,989  $7,72F

The software intangible assets relate to the aedigoftware from the ComTec, Prairie, and Telukiosiness acquisitions (see Note 4),
and are being amortized over their estimated usgfg ranging from five to seven years. The amzation of software related to the ComTec
and Prairie acquisitions is reflected in cost afgmssing and related services in the accompanyamgdlidated Statements of Income. The
amortization of software related to the Telutioguisition is reflected in cost of software, mairdane and services in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income. The aggregabetiaation related to the software intangible as$et 2007 and 2006 was $1.5 million
and $1.0 million, respectively. Based on the Decan®i, 2007 net carrying value of this intangildeet, the estimated amortization for each
of the five succeeding fiscal years ending Deceriewill be: 2008 — $1.7 million; 2009 — $1.7 nwifi; 2010 — $1.7 million; 2011 — $1.7
million; and 2012 — $1.5 million.

7. Debt
Our debt at December 31 consists of the followingiousands):

2007 2006
Senior subordinated convertible contingent debiisées, due June 15, 2024, interest at 2.t $ 230,000 $230,00(
2004 Revolving Credit Facility, due September 206&rest at base rate or adjusted LIBOR, plusiepiple margir — —
230,00( 230,00(
Less-current portior — —
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $230,00( $230,00(

Convertible Debt Securitie€@n June 2, 2004, we completed an offering of $28&1@lllon of 2.5% senior subordinated convertible
contingent debt securities due June 15, 2024 @omvertible Debt Securitiestp qualified buyers pursuant to Rule 144A underSkeurities
Act of 1933.

The Convertible Debt Securities are unsecured, rslitted to any of our future senior debt, and@eto our future junior subordinated
debt. The Convertible Debt Securities, issuedmice of 100% of their principal amount, bear ietgrat a rate of 2.5% per annum, which is
payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 andrbleeel5 of each year. The Convertible Debt Seegr#ire callable by us for cash, on or
after June 20, 2011, at a redemption price equBD®8% of the principal amount of the ConvertibleobD8ecurities, plus accrued interest. The
Convertible Debt Securities can be put back toyuthb holders for cash at June 15, 2011, 2016 8ad,2r upon a change of control, as
defined in the Convertible Debt Securities bonceimtdre (“Bond Indenture”), at a repurchase priagabtp 100% of the principal amount of
the Convertible Debt Securities, plus any accroeerést.

Commencing with the six-month period beginning Ju6g2011, we will pay contingent interest equad 25% of the average trading
price of the Convertible Debt Securities during aixymonth period if the average trading pricehsf Convertible Debt Securities for the five
consecutive trading days ending on the secondnigadty immediately preceding the first day of tixersonth period equals 120% or more
the principal amount of the Convertible Debt Set@si
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The Convertible Debt Securities are convertible imir common stock, under the specified conditems settlement terms outlined
below, at an initial conversion rate of 37.3552rekger $1,000 principal amount of Convertible D&bturities, which is equal to an effect
conversion price of $26.77 per share. The Bondritde includes anti-dilution provisions for the @iets such that the conversion rate (and
thus, the effective conversion price) can be adpligt the future for certain events, to includektdividends, stock splits/reverse splits, the
issuance of warrants to purchase our stock atca pelow the then-current market price, cash dinddeand certain purchases by us of our
common stock pursuant to a self-tender offer oharge offer.

Holders of the Convertible Debt Securities can eshtheir securities: (i) at any time the priceoaf common stock trades over $34.80
per share (130% of the $26.77 effective converpiice) for a specified period of time; (ii) at atime the trading price of the Convertible
Debt Securities fall below 98% of the average cosioa value for the Convertible Debt Securitiesd@pecified period of time; (iii) upon us
exercising our right to redeem the Convertible D@dturities at any time after June 20, 2011; (i\grey time upon the occurrence of speci
corporate transactions, to include a change inreb(ds defined in the Bond Indenture); and (\§ ifertain level of dividends are declared, or
a certain number of shares of our common stockegrerchased under a self-tender offer by us. A3egfember 31, 2007, none of the
contingent conversion features have been achiaretthus, the Convertible Debt Securities are aotertible by the holders.

Upon conversion of the Convertible Debt Securitvies will settle our conversion obligation as follewi) we will pay cash for 100% of
the $230 million principal amount of the Converitibebt Securities; and (ii) to the extent our casiom obligation exceeds the principal
amount, we will satisfy the remaining conversiotigdgion in our common stock, cash or any comboratf our common stock and cash.

The fair value of the Convertible Debt SecuritissohDecember 31, 2007 and 2006 based upon quaigdetprices, was approximat
$201 million and $264 million, respectively. Thentiogent interest feature of the Convertible Dedt8ities discussed above is considered
an embedded derivative that is required to be téfied and accounted for as a freestanding derévitiancial instrument. The fair value of
this derivative financial instrument, as of Decembg, 2007 and 2006, was $32,000 and $0.3 milli@spectively.

2004 Revolving Credit FaciliOn September 21, 2004, we entered into a five-y80 million senior secured revolving credit fagil
(the “2004 Revolving Credit Facility”) with a syrdite of U.S. financial institutions. The 2004 Rexrnd Credit Facility is guaranteed by our
capital stock and the capital stock of all of oxiséng and future domestic subsidiaries, and 65% @ capital stock of all our future foreign
subsidiaries, if any. The 2004 Revolving Creditifigchas a $40 million sub-facility for standby duicommercial letters of credit and a $10
million sub-facility for same day advances providedely by the U.S. financial institution where waintain our operating cash accounts.

The 2004 Revolving Credit Facility requires mairgece of certain financial ratios, including a leage ratio and an interest coverage
ratio. In addition, the 2004 Revolving Credit Fagibubjects us to certain limitations, includir{g:the incurrence of certain indebtedness and
liens on our property; (ii) the execution of coctsathat represent certain fundamental changesribusiness; (iii) the sale of our property
except in the ordinary course of business; (iv)rttaking of certain restricted payments, as defipedhclude cash dividends); and (v) the
making of investments, as defined. As of Decemiie2807, we were in compliance with the financélas and other covenants of the 2004
Revolving Credit Facility, and due to an outstagdimevocable letter of credit of $0.5 million, h&€9.5 million of the 2004 Revolving Cre
Facility available.

The interest rate for borrowings under the 2004dRéng Credit Facility, except for same day advands chosen at our option and is
based upon a base rate or adjusted LIBOR rate gplapplicable margin. The base rate representsigher of a floating prime rate and a
floating rate equal to 50 basis points in excedhefrederal Funds Effective Rate. The interestfiatsame day advances is based upon base
rate, plus an applicable margin. The applicablegnarare dependent on our leverage ratio, as akfare range from zero to 100 basis pc
for base rate loans and 125 to 225 basis pointsIROR loans.
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As of December 31, 2007, we had made no borrowinger the 2004 Revolving Credit Facility. We paguarterly commitment fee on
the unused portion of the 2004 Revolving CreditiligcThe commitment fee rate is dependent onleuerage ratio and ranges from 25 tc
basis points per annum. As of December 31, 20@7¢ctimmitment fee rate was 37.5 basis points parrann

Deferred Financing Cost#\s of December 31, 2007, net deferred financingscadated to the Convertible Debt Securities vii3®
million, and are being amortized to interest expehsough the first date the holders of the CoiibblerDebt Securities can be put back to us
(June 15, 2011), or approximately seven years ftadate of issuance. As of December 31, 2007 efetred financing costs related to the
2004 Revolving Credit Facility were $0.3 milliomdare being amortized to interest expense oveivbe/ear term of the credit agreement.
The net deferred financing costs are reflectedtime©Assets in the accompanying Consolidated Bal&heets. Interest expense for 2007,
2006, and 2005 includes amortization of deferradrfting costs of $1.2 million. The weighted-averagerest rate on our debt borrowings,
including amortization of deferred financing coastel commitment fees on the revolving credit fagilibr 2007, 2006, and 2005 was 3.2%.

8. Restructuring Charges
The following are the key restructuring activit@ger the last three years that have impacted @uilteefrom continuing operations:
e During the fourth quarter of 2005, we had the feflng restructuring activities

. As a result of the sale of the GSS Business (s¢e R)pwe recorded restructuring expenses in ontirmaing operations
related to the following event

» Certain equity awards held by key members of ouragament team included a change in control pravidiat was
triggered upon the closing of the sale of the G&Sifgss (see Note 13). The change in control gmvigsulted in
accelerated vesting as of December 9, 2005 foediuéty awards impacted, and thus, stock-based casagien
expense of $3.8 million related to the accelerai=iing of these equity awards was recor

» In December 2005, we entered into a separatioreagget with one of our executive officers. As a lgesash
separation benefits of $0.9 million and stock basmdpensation expense of $0.4 million, relatedéoaccelerated
vesting of certain equity awards, were recorde@ ddsh separation benefits were paid in the firattger of 2006

e We involuntarily terminated approximately 10 pegmiensisting primarily of employees performing amate suppo
functions, prior to the end of 2005. We incurrestmecturing charges related to these involuntamyitgations of $0.6
million, which were substantially paid in the fitsalf of 2006.

» Our Board of Directors authorized the payment oéirtive bonuses for certain members of our managetaam
involved in the divestiture of the GSS Businesshuhe bonuses considered earned and payable bp@utcessful
closing of the sale of the GSS Business. The imeehonuses, which were paid in the first quarfe2@06, resulted i
an expense of $1.4 milliol

. We exercised a buyout provision included in theratieg lease for our corporate aircraft for $8.7ion and then sold the
aircraft to an unrelated party in January 2006fad million (net of costs to sell). We recordestrecturing expense of
$1.6 million related to this transactic

. During 2005, we terminated a long-term processgrgament with a provider of communication serviédespart of the
termination agreement, we were required to paynéract termination fee of $4.0 million, which weighaluring 2006. The
agreement termination resulted in restructuringgésitotaling $1.1 million and $6.2 million, respeely, in 2006 and
2005. The 2006 charges relate primarily to severamd retention bonuses for our employees thatmu@t to provide
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processing service until the communication serviresider was able to transition and convert aik®tustomers to an
alternative solution. These costs were accruetisatever the employees’ remaining service peridae 2005 charges are
related to: (i) the involuntary termination of eroptes; (ii) severance and retention bonuses foewynoyees who
continued to service the processing agreementil{gi impairment of long-lived assets relating ity to conversion/set-
up costs that had been previously capitalized;(afdhe impact of the contract termination fee,miened above. In
addition to these restructuring charges, we recbed®0.8 million charge against revenue duringdleth quarter of 2005
as part of the accounting for agreement termina

» During the first quarter of 2006, we involuntarigrminated certain individuals who were performaogporate support functions,
which resulted in restructuring expenses of $0.Hani

» During the first and second quarters of 2006, wendbned a portion of one of our current officelfaes and then amended the
lease in order to reduce the total square footaaseld. This resulted in a restructuring chargdd fillion.

The restructuring activities discussed above redut restructuring charges of $0.6 million, $2.4lian, and $14.5 million for 2007,
2006, and 2005, respectively, which have beenatgiteas a separate line item in the accompanyimg&@iolated Statements of Income.

The activity in the business restructuring resereésted to continuing operations during 2007, 2@0f] 2005 is as follows (in
thousands):

Termination
Facilities
Benefits Abandonment Other Total
January 1, 2005, balan $ — $ 84z $ — $ 84z
Charged to expense during yt 2,01C (389 12,91 14,53¢
Cash payment (20€) (22¢) — (339
Other (primarily no-cash charges — 32 7,48¢€ (7,459
December 31, 2005, balan 1,904 257 5,42i 7,58¢
Charged to expense during yt 1,662 74€ (40) 2,36¢
Cash payment (3,720 (729) (5,437) (9,875
Other 22¢ (229 45 51
December 31, 2006, balan 75 57 — 132
Charged to expense during yt 297 24¢€ 87 63C
Cash payment (159 (127 (14) (28¢)
Other — 3 (73 (76)
December 31, 2007, balan $ 21¢ $ 17¢ $ — $ 39¢

Primarily all of the business restructuring reseras of December 31, 2007 were included in cufignilities.

9. Income Taxes
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Income Tax ProvisionThe income tax provision related to continuing @giens consists of the following (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Current:

Federal $17,30¢ $20,40° $22,33¢
State 1,84k 2,031 98(C
19,15¢ 22,43¢ 23,31«

Deferred:
Federal 10,72: 14,80¢ 2,20(
State 3,422 1,161 70E
14,14« 15,97( 2,90¢
Total income tax provisio $33,29¢ $38,40¢ $26,21¢

As the result of the sale of the GSS and plaNeinkesses (see Note 2), all of our income from caritig operations is from North
American sources, principally the U.S.

The difference between our income tax provision goted at the statutory Federal income tax ratecamdinancial statement income
tax related to continuing operations is summarggbllows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Provision at Federal rate of 3t $32,71: $35,33¢ $25,53¢
State income taxes, net of Federal imj 3,42 2,07t 1,09t
Compensation disallowan: (589) 2,18¢ —
Other (2,24%) (1,199 (412)
Total income tax provisio $33,29¢ $38,40¢ $26,21¢

We are required to estimate our income tax ligbititeach jurisdiction in which we operate, inclugliboth Federal and state income
taxes. Various judgments and estimates are reqiniredaluating our tax positions and determining provisions for income taxes. During
the ordinary course of business, there are cetri@nsactions and calculations for which the ultenatome tax determination may be
uncertain. In addition, we may be subject to exatidim of our income tax returns by various tax atittes, which could result in adverse
outcomes. For these reasons, we establish atfyabfisociated with unrecognized tax benefits baseektimates of whether additional taxes
and interest may be due. This liability is adjudteded upon changing facts and circumstances,asuttte closing of a tax audit or the
expiration of a statute of limitations.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amsurftunrecognized tax benefits from continuing agiens is as follows (in
thousands):

Balance at January 1, 20 $4,36:
Additions based on tax positions related to curyesatr 1,092
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 73
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye:i (10%)
Lapse of statute of limitatior (889
Balance at December 31, 2C $4,53¢

We recognize income tax related interest and piesas part of income tax expense. In additioméo®4.5 million of unrecognized tax
benefits as of December 31, 2007, we had $0.4anibhf income taxelated accrued interest. Included in the beginaimg) ending amounts
unrecognized tax benefits are $2.1 million and $dilon, respectively, related to our discontinugerations. If recognized, the total amc
of unrecognized income tax benefits related toocmmtinuing operations, or $2.7 million, would affeeir continuing operations’ effective tax
rate.

72



Table of Contents

We file income tax returns primarily in the U.S déeal jurisdiction and in various state jurisdiago As of December 31, 2007, the U.S.
Federal statute of limitations has expired for ggaior to 2004, and the statute of limitations @agired in our major state jurisdictions of
Nebraska, Colorado and Florida for years priorG04 2003, and 2004, respective

Deferred Income TaxeBeferred income taxes reflect the expected utibzadf tax NOL carryforwards and the net tax eféect
temporary differences between the carrying amotiassets and liabilities for financial reporting’poses and the amounts used for income
tax purposes. Net deferred income tax assets@esadmber 31 are attributable to the following finusands):

2007 2006
Current deferred income tax asst
Accrued expenses and reser $ 7,632 $ 5,95:
Stocl-based compensatic 3,02¢ 2,97¢
10,657 8,92
Non-current deferred income tax assets (liabiliti
Purchased research and developn 14,20¢ 17,77¢
Software (782) 492
Client contracts and related intangib 3,171 5,06t
Noncompete agreemer 1,22¢ 1,79
Net operating loss (NOL) carryforwar 12,45: 8,521
Property and equipme (3,279 (3,22))
Contingent interest related to Convertible Debtusigies (22,745 (15,577
Deferred revenu 3,708 3,14¢
Contingent paymen 882 882
Other 614 727
9,45: 19,61;
Valuation allowanct — —
Net deferred income tax ass $ 20,11( $ 28,54«

We regularly assess the likelihood of the futuidization of our net deferred income tax assetsthEextent we believe that it is more
likely than not that a deferred income tax ass#tnei be realized, a valuation allowance is esshigld. As of December 31, 2007, we believe
that between: (i) carryback opportunities to pa&stqals with taxable income; and (ii) sufficient é&dse income to be generated in the future,
we will realize the benefit of our net deferredane tax assets.

As of December 31, 2007, we have: (i) an acquirdeFal NOL carryforward of $28.5 million, which Wilegin to expire in 2020 and
can be utilized through 2027; and (ii) state NOtrglarwards of $45.5 million, which will expire baming in 2010 and ending in 2025. The
acquired Federal NOL carryforward is attributaloiétte pre-acquisition periods of acquired subsielaiThe utilization of this Federal NOL
carryforward is limited pursuant to Section 382t Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

As discussed in Note 7, we completed an offerinGafivertible Debt Securities in June 2004. The @atiMe Debt Securities are
subject to special U.S. Treasury regulations gduagroontingent payment debt instruments. Theselagigus allow us to take a tax deduction
for interest expense on our U.S. Federal incomedaxn at a constant rate of 9.09% (subject ttageadjustments), compounded semi-
annually, which represents the estimated yieldanmarable non-contingent, non-convertible, fixe-i@debt instruments with terms and
conditions otherwise similar to the Convertible D8kcurities. This interest expense tax deductigreater than the interest expense refl
in the accompanying Consolidated Statements ofnhecd his is
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considered a temporary difference, and thus doesnpact our overall effective income tax rate.agesult, we will be building a deferred
tax liability until the Convertible Debt Securitiage settled. Upon settlement, if the holders hte @ achieve or exceed the 9.09% target
on the Convertible Debt Securities, the cumulatigierred tax liability will be reclassified to stdwlders’ equity. If the holders are not able
to achieve the 9.09% target yield, we will be reedito pay the portion of the cumulative deferiedliability to the U.S. tax authorities
(without interest or penalties) determined by cormapthe actual yield and the target yield, wite tmount of the cumulative deferred tax
liability not paid to the U.S. tax authorities rassified to stockholders’ equity.

10. Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution-Type Plaiwe sponsor a defined contribution plan coveringssatially all of our employees. Participants may
contribute up to 25% of their annual wages, sulifgcertain limitations, as pretax, salary defecaitributions. We make certain matching,
and at our discretion, service-based contributtorthe plan. Matching and service-related contidng related to our continuing operations
for 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $6.1 million, $4.49iam, and $3.5 million,, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plawe have a non-qualified deferred compensation fulanertain executives which allows the particigant
to defer a portion of their annual compensation.piéide a 25% matching contribution of the papiigit's deferral, up to a maximum
contribution of $6,250 per year, plus a returntom deferred account balance attributable to thiwiohaal participants. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, we have recorded a liability fos tidligation of $5.2 million and $4.8 million, resgiively. The expense related to our
continuing operations for this plan for 2007, 20&6¢d 2005 was $0.6 million, $0.8 million, and $tlion, respectively. The plan is
unfunded.

11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

Operating LeasedNe lease certain office and production facilitiesler operating leases that run through 2015. Tds=kegenerally are
renewable and provide for the payment of real estates and certain other occupancy expensesdlticar] we lease certain operating
equipment under operating leases that run thro0dR.2Future aggregate minimum lease payments uhese facilities and operating
equipment agreements are as follows: 2008 — $10li5m 2009 — $9.1 million, 2010 — $8.2 millionP21 — $6.9 million, 2012 —551 million,
and thereafter — $12.4 million. We sublease postimincertain office facilities that we have abanelbnThe total minimum lease payments to
be received in the future under signed noncancekldbleases as of December 31, 2007 totaled $1librmi otal rent expense from
continuing operations for 2007, 2006, and 2005 $&8 million, $8.3 million, $9.3 million, respecély.

Service Agreementg/e outsource to First Data Corporation (“FDC”) theta processing and related computer servicesregtjar the
operation of our processing services and certdata® products. The ACP proprietary software isiruRDC’s facility to obtain the necessary
mainframe computer capacity and other computer@tigervices without us having to make the substhcapital and infrastructure
investments that would be necessary for us to geothiese services internally. Our clients are coteukto the FDC facility through a
combination of private and commercially-providedwrrks. We also contract with FDC for computer flapace on which we maintain
certain open systems hardware, used primarily ppat ACP related products and internal administeasystems. Under our contract with
FDC, which expires in June 2010, we are chargéxkd fee plus a variable fee based on usage aadtoal costs. The total amount paid
under the FDC service agreement for 2007, 20062808 was $45.9 million, $42.6 million, and $43.0lion, respectively. We believe we
could obtain data processing and related compateices from alternative sources, if necessary.

Product and Services Warrantié&e generally warrant that our products and relaféatings will conform to published specifications,
or to specifications provided in an individual die@rrangement, as applicable. The typical prodaetanty period is 90 days from delivery of
the product or offering. For certain service offigs
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we provide a limited warranty for the duration bétservices provided. We generally warrant thatises will be performed in a professional
and workmanlike manner. The typical remedy for bheaf warranty is to correct or replace any defectieliverable, and if not possible or
practical, we will accept the return of the defeetileliverable and refund the amount paid undeclibat arrangement that is allocable to the
defective deliverable. Our contracts also geneialytain limitation of damages provisions in arogfto reduce our exposure to monetary
damages arising from breach of warranty claimstddisally, we have incurred minimal warranty costsd as a result, do not maintain a
warranty reserve.

Product and Services Indemnificatio@ur arrangements with our clients generally incladendemnification provision that will
indemnify and defend a client in actions brougtaiasgt the client that claim our products and/oviees infringe upon a copyright, trade
secret, or valid patent. Historically, we have imourred any significant costs related to such mualiication claims, and as a result, do not
maintain a reserve for such exposure.

Claims for Company Non-performane@ur arrangements with our clients typically cap kability for breach to a specified amount of
the direct damages incurred by the client resuliom the breach. From time-to-time, these arrargg@eimay also include provisions for
possible liquidated damages or other financial diesefor our non-performance, or in the case abaeiof our outsourced customer care and
billing solutions, provisions for damages relatedérvice level performance requirements. The sertevel performance requirements
typically relate to system availability and timedss of service delivery. As of December 31, 200¥ pelieve we have adequate reserves,
based on our historical experience, to cover aagaeably anticipated exposure as a result of ooperdormance for any past or current
arrangements with our clients. The amount of tisemee maintained for this purpose is not material.

Indemnifications Related to Sold Businessesonjunction with the sale of the GSS busined3écember 2005, we provided certain
indemnifications to the buyer of this business \whace considered routine in nature (such as emeJdg&, or litigation matters that occurred
while these businesses were under our ownershigetxhe provisions of this indemnification agreatmmeayment by us is conditioned on
the other party making a claim pursuant to the @daces in the indemnification agreement, and weyguieally allowed to challenge the ott
party’s claims. In addition, certain of our obligats under this indemnification agreement are Bhiin terms of time and/or amounts, and in
some cases, we may have recourse against a thiydifoae are required to make certain indemnificatpayments.

We estimated the fair value of these indemnificatiat $2.8 million as of the closing date for thte ©f the GSS business. Since the
of the GSS business, we have made an indemnificagagment of $0.1 million, and as of December 8072 the indemnification liability
was $2.3 million. It is not possible to predict theximum potential amount of future payments we layequired to make under this
indemnification agreement due to the conditionalireaof our obligations and the unique facts amcuechstances associated with each
indemnification provision. We believe that if we maequired to make payments in excess of the indamation liability we have recorded,
the resulting loss would not have a material eféecour financial condition or results of operatioif any amounts required to be paid by us
would differ from the amounts initially recordediademnification liabilities as of the closing dater the sale of the GSS business, the
difference would be reflected in the discontinugédrations section of our Consolidated Statementscafme.

Indemnifications Related to Officers and the BoafrdDirectors.We have agreed to indemnify certain of our officeangl members of ol
Board of Directors if they are named or threatetoelde named as a party to any proceeding by reafsthie fact that they acted in such
capacity. We maintain directors’ and officers’ (D&{@surance coverage to protect against such logéesdave not historically incurred any
losses related to these types of indemnificatiand,are not aware of any pending or threatenedrectr claims against any officer or
member of our Board of Directors. As a result, \agénot recorded any liabilities related to suatemnifications as of December 31, 2007.
In addition, as a result of the insurance policyazage, we believe these indemnification agreemametsiot significant to our results of
operations.

75



Table of Contents

Legal Proceedingd=rom time-to-time, we are involved in litigatiorlagng to claims arising out of our operationstie hormal course
of business. We are not presently a party to artgmiadpending or threatened legal proceedings.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

We currently have a stock repurchase program, apdrby our Board of Directors, authorizing us tpwehase up to 30 million shares
of our common stock from time-to-time as market bodiness conditions warrant (the “Stock RepurclPasgram”).

As of December 31, 2007, a summary of the shamgchased under the Stock Repurchase Progranfofi@ags (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

2007 2006 2005 2004 1999-2003 Total
Shares repurchas: 13,18 2,48¢ 3,80¢ 2,98: 6,33¢ 28,79¢
Total amount pail $ 307,59¢ $63,28: $ 72,96¢ $ 52,897 $ 199,71( $ 696,45
Weightec-average price per she $ 2332 $ 254¢ $ 19.1¢ $ 17.7¢ $ 3151 $ 24.1¢

As of December 31, 2007, the total remaining nunabehares available for repurchase under the S®eglurchase Program totaled
1.2 million shares.

In addition to the above mentioned stock repurchasering 2007, 2006, and 2005, we repurchasedremdcancelled approximately
176,000 shares, 148,000 shares, and 394,000 $baf0 million, $3.7 million, and $8.3 milliongspectively, of common stock from our
employees in connection with minimum tax withholgliquirements resulting from the vesting of restd stock under our stock incentive
plans.

13. Equity Compensation Plans

The discussions below for our equity compensatlanginclude continuing operations for 2007 and&a0d both continuing and
discontinued operations for 2005.

Stock Incentive Plan:

BackgroundBeginning in 2003, we began primarily granting riegtd stock awards instead of stock options toleyges and non-
employee directors under our equity compensatianglRestricted stock awards offer employees aneknployee directors the opportunity
to earn shares of our common stock over time, rdtfan stock options in which the right to purchakares of our common stock at a set
price is earned over time. Restricted stock awardgenerally granted at no cost to the recipatause of the greater intrinsic value of the
restricted stock at the grant date when comparstbttk options, the number of equity awards graotatker this compensation methodology
is less than the number of equity awards granteshvthe primary equity awards were stock options.

Summary of Stock Incentive Plan&s of December 31, 2007, we have four stock iticerplans, as summarized below:

Shares Shares
Reserved For Available For
Plan Issuance Issuance
1996 Plan (1 — —
1997 Director Plan (Z — —
2005 Plan (1 12,400,00 10,418,90
Total stockholder approve 12,400,00 10,418,90
2001 Plan (3 3,000,001 9,92i
Total 15,400,00 10,428,82
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(1) The 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plamds adopted upon stockholder approval. The 2085 Riplaced the 1996 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan”). No further gramtay be made under the 1996 Plan, but any stockdaveaitstanding under the 1996
Plan remain in effect in accordance with their extiye terms. The shares available under the 2G0%Have been reserved for issuance
to officers and other key employees of our compamy its subsidiaries and to non-employee directboair company in the form of
stock options, stock appreciation rights, perforagannit awards, restricted stock awards, or staciub awards. Shares granted under
the 2005 Plan in the form of a performance unitraweestricted stock award or stock bonus awarc¢avated toward the aggregate
number of shares of common stock available forassa under the 2005 Plan as two shares for evergluare granted or issued in
payment of such awar

(2) The Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Direst@ihe “1997 Director Planiyas adopted upon stockholder approval. During 20
1997 Director Plan terminated with respect to fatgrants, but any stock awards outstanding un@et387 Director Plan remain in
effect in accordance with their respective ter

(3) The 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plamds adopted without stockholder approval. Theeshavailable under the 2001 Plan
have been reserved for issuance to eligible empkgéour company in the form of stock options¢ktappreciation rights,
performance unit awards, restricted stock awandstazk bonus awards. Shares available under & P&an may be granted to key
employees of our company or its subsidiaries wiemat: (i) officers or directors; (ii) “covered etapees” for purposes of Section 162
(m) of the Internal Revenue Code; or (iii) persenbject to Section 16 of the Securities Exchangeoft934.

Change in Control Provisions in Equity Awards Imfgacby the GSS Business SabBertain equity awards held by key members of our
management team included a change in control poovihat was triggered upon the closing of the sékle GSS Business (see Note 2).
Such awards were held by our management team lindawtcontinuing operations and in the plaNet ag$®usinesses. The change in
control provision resulted in accelerated vestihggproximately 218,000 shares of unvested stotiop and approximately 391,000 shares
of unvested restricted stock as of December 9, 2806 thus, deferred stock-based compensation s&pdr$4.7 million related to the
accelerated vesting of the equity awards was recbad stock-based compensation expense in thé fguatter of 2005. Of this amount, $3.8
million was included in restructuring charges afd¥million was included in discontinued operations

Modifications to Stock-Based Awards conjunction with the closing of the sale o tBSS Business, during 2005, we entered into
separation agreements with two of our executivieefs which included accelerated vesting provisi@tated to certain outstanding equity
awards. Such provisions resulted in acceleratetingesf 85,000 shares of unvested restricted staoHl,thus, deferred stock-based
compensation expense of $1.2 million related tedtevards was recorded as stbeked compensation expense in the fourth quar@0oas.
Of this amount, $0.4 million was included in resturing charges and $0.8 million was included scdntinued operations.

In December 2007, we entered into a separatioreagget with our then Chief Executive Officer andgfitent which included a
provision that accelerated vesting of 102,500 shafeinvested restricted stock. The adjustmentoicksbhased compensation expense as a
result of this modification was not significant.

Restricted StockWe generally issue new shares (versus treasangshto fulfill restricted stock award grants. tdigcally, our
restricted stock awards have vested annually auaryfears with no restrictions other than the pgessd time (i.e., the shares are released
upon calendar vesting with no further restrictiofi3jme-Based Awards”). Unvested Tintgased Awards are typically forfeited and cance
upon termination of employment with our companyrt@ie Time-Based Awards become fully vested upchange in control, as defined,
and the subsequent involuntary termination of eplent. The fair value of the Time-Based Awardsédwrined by using the closing market
price of our common stock on the grant date) isgdhto expense on a straidime basis over the requisite service period ferehtire awar:
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During 2007, we issued restricted stock sharegyonkembers of management (primarily members ofigkecmanagement) that vest
in equal installments over three years upon meditingr pre-established financial performance dhjes or pre-established stock price
objectives (“Performance-Based Awards”). The Penfmce-Based Awards were approved by the stockioitarur May 2007 annual
meeting. The Performance-Based Awards becomevelyed upon a change in control, as defined, amduhsequent involuntary
termination of employment. The fair value of thefBenance-Based Awards (determined by using thsimipmarket price of our common
stock on the grant date) is charged to expensestraight-line basis over the requisite serviceqaefor each separately vesting portion of the
award as if the award is, in-substance, multiplarais.

A summary of our unvested restricted stock actiditying 2007 is as follows:

2007

Weighted-
Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested awards, January 1, 2( 1,143,30. $ 21.2i
Awards grantet 760,05( 25.0¢
Awards forfeited/cancelle (93,220) 22.21]
Awards vestel (508,179 20.81
Unvested awards, December 31, 2 1,301,95! $ 23.6(

The weighted-average grant date fair value of st stock shares granted during 2007, 2006, 808,2vas $25.08 per share, $23.15
per share, and $17.70 per share, respectivelytofakemarket value of restricted stock shares mgsiuring 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $11.7
million, $10.2 million, and $24.2 million, respegatiy.

Stock OptionsStock option awards are granted with an exerciee gqual to the fair value of our common stockfahe date of the
grant. Stock option awards typically vest over fgears and have a maximum term of ten years. Asigsed above, during 2003, we began
primarily granting restricted stock awards insteidtock options to employees and non-employeettirs. No stock options were awarded
during 2007 and 2006. All stock options awarde@dd05 were granted to certain GSS Business emplameks/ere subsequently forfeited in
2005 upon the closing of the sale of the GSS Bgsias the GSS Business employees were considemgdated.

A summary of our stock option activity during 2087as follows:

2007 Weighted-
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Term Value (1)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 559,75t $ 274
Granted — —
Exercisec (74,07%) 14.7¢
Forfeited — —
Expired 9,237) 25.17
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 476,44. $  29.4¢
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 476,44: $  29.4¢ 2.7 Year $362,39:

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value represents stptions that were in-the-money as of December 8Q72and is calculated as the
difference between the exercise price of the ugdgrlawards and the closing market price of our iwam stock as of December 31,
2007.
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The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options eised, determined as of the date of option exerdiseng 2007, 2006, and 2005 was
$0.8 million, $9.6 million, and $3.4 million, resgevely. Cash received from stock option exercdesng 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $1.1
million, $10.7 million, and $4.2 million, respeactily.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

As of December 31, 2007, we had an employee stomthpse plan whereby 958,043 shares of our comitock bave been reserved
sale to our employees through payroll deductioh® grice for shares purchased under the plan is@5S%@rket value on the last day of the
purchase period. During 2007, 2006, and 2005, 3783,570, and 68,813 shares, respectively, weiehpaed under the plan for $1.1
million, ($12.51 to $23.63 per share), $0.9 mill{§18.68 to $23.57 per share), and $1.1 milliorB(8% to $20.43 per share), respectively. As
of December 31, 2007, 325,176 shares remain adidislpurchase under the plan.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
We recorded stock-based compensation expensel@asd$din thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Continuing operation $11,10: $12,21¢ $17,047
Discontinued operatior — — 3,311

Total stocl-based compensatic $11,10: $12,21¢ $20,35¢

As of December 31, 2007, there was $22.4 milliototdl compensation cost related to unvested awastiget recognized. That cost,
excluding the impact of forfeitures, is expectedbéorecognized over a weighted-average period/io§ars.

We recorded a deferred income tax benefit relaiesidck-based compensation expense during 2008, 20@ 2005, of $4.1 million,
$3.7 million, and $7.7 million, respectively. Thet@al income tax benefit realized for the tax deidms from stock option exercises and
vesting of restricted stock for 2007, 2006, and32@6taled $4.8 million, $4.9 million, and $9.8 liwh, respectively.
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14. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3| December 3.
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2007:

Total revenues (1 $98,74« $99,50¢ $ 107,56: $ 113,45.
Operating income (z 20,45¢ 21,16: 21,56¢ 20,65¢
Income from continuing operations before incometaf?) 24,26 24,41( 23,58¢ 21,19:
Income tax provision (z (8,499 (8,78¢) (8,387%) (7,629
Income from continuing operations ( 15,77¢ 15,62: 15,20: 13,56¢
Discontinued operations, net of t 26¢ — — 33¢
Net income 16,04« 15,62: 15,20: 13,90:
Basic earnings per common she

Income from continuing operations | $ 0.3t $ 0.37 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4C

Discontinued operations, net of t 0.01 — — 0.01

Net income $ 0.3€ $ 0.37 $ 0.3¢ $ 041
Diluted earnings per common sha

Income from continuing operations | $ 0.3t $ 0.37 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4C

Discontinued operations, net of t 0.01 — — 0.01

Net income $ 0.3€ $ 0.37 $ 0.3¢ $ 041

2006:

Total revenues (< $92,96( $95,05: $ 98,45( $ 96,64
Operating incom: 22,20: 21,79: 22,53( 19,94¢
Income from continuing operations before incomes& 24,93 25,16¢ 26,71« 24,15t
Income tax provision (4 (9,46%) (9,569 (9,350 (20,029
Income from continuing operatiol 15,46¢ 15,60¢ 17,36¢ 14,12¢
Discontinued operations, net of tax — — (3,760 96¢
Net income 15,46¢ 15,60¢ 13,60¢ 15,09t
Basic earnings (loss) per common sh

Income from continuing operatiol $ 03 $ 034 $ 0371 $ 031

Discontinued operations, net of t — — (0.0¢) 0.02

Net income $ 0.3 $ 0.34 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3:
Diluted earnings (loss) per common shi

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3: $ 0.37 $ 0.3C

Discontinued operations, net of t — — (0.0%) 0.02

Net income $ 0.3t $ 0.3t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3¢2

(1) The increase in revenues in the third quat@007 was primarily the result of the acquisiti@mithe ComTec and Prairie businesses in
July and August 2007, respectively (see Note 4 ifbrease in revenues in the fourth quarter o7208s primarily the result of the fi
quarter impact of the ComTec and Prairie acquisitiand organic growth factoi

(2) When compared to previous quarters, the fogutrter of 2007 results of operations include $iilBon of additional operating
expenses related to the retirement of our formeD ©& December 28, 2007. These additional operatipgnses, net of certain income
tax benefits resulting from the timing of our fom@EO’s retirement, reduced our income from contigwperations by approximately
$0.01 per diluted shar

(3) As aresult of Comcast's and Time Warner’s &itjan of the former Adelphia customer accountslaly 31, 2006, our third quarter
2006 revenues include a net $1 million increasennwdtenpared to our revenues for the second quar906. This $1 million increase
is attributed to $2.8 million of o-time
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(4)

(5)

revenues related to the Adelphia contract beinggeized when the acquired customer accounts wansferred under our Comcast ¢
Time Warner contracts in the third quarter of 208f6set by $1.8 million of lower processing revesaieginning in August 2006, due to
the Comcast and Time Warner contracts having I@eeunit pricing than the Adelphia contract. Addlially, the total impact of these
matters resulted in lower revenues of $3.5 milliothe fourth quarter of 2006 when compared totiirel quarter of 200€

The overall effective income tax rate was approx@tya38% for 2006. In the first two quarters of BOthe effective income tax rate v
approximately 38% in each quarter, and for thedthimd fourth quarters of 2006, the effective incamerates were 35% and 42%,
respectively. The decrease in the effective inctameate for the third quarter was primarily dueéstain tax benefits being realized
during the quarter. The increase in the effectia®ime tax rate for the fourth quarter was primaailgsult of a correction of minor
income tax expense items from previous periodsvieae not considered material to the current ot pasods, and thus were recorded
in their entirety in the fourth quarter of 20(

The third quarter of 2006 discontinued operatiats/dy was primarily the result of a $6.0 milliggayment made to Comverse relate
the settlement of a dispute over a joint tax ebectissociated with the sale of our GSS Busine€®toverse in December 2005 (see
Note 2). The fourth quarter of 2006 discontinuedragions activity resulted from the t-up of certain previously estimated state
income tax items related to our former GSS Busitiggiswere made certain upon filing of the incompereturns in the fourth quarts
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwwe

As required by Rule 13a-15(b), our managementudiob the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Chigihancial Officer (“CFQ"),
conducted an evaluation as of the end of the pedwéred by this report of the effectiveness ofdiaclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e). Based on that evaluatltm CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosuréralsnand procedures were effective as
of the end of the period covered by this report.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contralver Financial Reporting

As required by Rule 13a-15(d), our managementudinp the CEO and CFO, also conducted an evaluafionr internal control over
financial reporting, as defined by Rule 13a-19¢fanagement’s Report on Internal Control over FimariReporting is located at the front of
Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

(c) Attestation Report of the Independent Registkfublic Accounting Firm

Our independent registered public accounting fssued an attestation report on the effectivenesarihternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007. KPMG LLP’s rémlocated immediately following Management’s Ren Internal Control over
Financial Reporting at the front of Part I, Iteno®Bthis report.

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repiing

There have been no changes in internal control fim@ncial reporting that occurred during the fbuguarter of 2007 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.

PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

See the Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meadidfrfgtockholders, from which information regardutigectors is incorporated her
by reference. Information regarding our executiffecers will be omitted from such proxy statementlas furnished in a separate item
captioned “Executive Officers of the Registranttliuded at the end of Part | of this Form 10-K.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatior

See the Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meadidfrfgtockholders, from which information in resperte this Item is incorporated
herein by reference.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

See the Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meaifrigtockholders, from which information requiregthis Item is incorporated
herein by reference, with the exception of the ggedmpensation plan information which is preseritellem 5, “Market for Registrant’s
Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters anddsBurchases of Equity Securities”, and is incaajeat herein by reference.
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Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

See the Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meaidfrfgtockholders, from which information in resperns this Item is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

See the Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meaidfrfgtockholders, from which information in resperns this Item is incorporated
herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Sdhedand Exhibits:
(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this repee listed on the Index to Consolidated Findrigtatements on page 44.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

None. Any information required in the Financialt8taent Schedules is provided in sufficient detabirr Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
Exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index on page 85

The Exhibits include management contracts, comgensplans and arrangements required to be fileekaits to the Fori
10-K by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

(b) Exhibits
The Exhibits filed or incorporated by referencedvath are as specified in the Exhibit Index.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigrit thereunto duly authorized.

CSG SyYsSTEMSI| NTERNATIONAL , | NC.

By: /sl PETERE. K ALAN

Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 28, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examnge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldw the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in capacities andmthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ BERNARDW. R EZNICEK Chairman of the Board of Directors February 28, 2008
Bernard W. Reznicek
/s PeTERE. K ALAN Director and Chief Executive Officer (Principal February 28, 2008
Peter E. Kalan Executive Officer,
/s/  RanDY R. WIESE Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office February 28, 2008
Randy R. Wiese (Principal Financial Officer

/s/  EpwARD C. N AFUS Director February 28, 2008
Edward C. Nafus

/s/ DoONALD B. REED Director February 28, 2008
Donald B. Reed

/sl JANICE |. O BUCHOWSKI Director February 28, 2008

Janice I. Obuchowski

/sl JAMES A. U NRUH Director February 28, 2008
James A. Unruh

/s/ DoNALD V. SMITH Director February 28, 2008
Donald V. Smith

/sl FrRaNK V. SicA Director February 28, 2008

Frank V. Sica
/'s/ RoNALD C OOPER Director February 28, 2008

Ronald Cooper
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Exhibit
Number

2.28(8)

2.29(8)

2.30(8)
2.31(8)

2.40(24)

2.40A(24
2.40B(26
3.01(1)
3.02(21)
3.03(2)
4.01(1)
4.10(13)

4.20(13)
10.01(1)
10.02(14)
10.03(35)
10.04(35)
10.05(35)
10.06(35)
10.15(7)
10.16(30)

10.20%(12)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Lucenn®tadies Inc., as Seller, and CSG Systems Intematj Inc.,

as Buyer, dated as of December 31, 2

Intellectual Property Agreement by and among Ludeathnologies Inc., Lucent Technologies GRL Corpora
Lucent Technologies Ireland Holding Limited and CS¢stems International, Inc., CSG Software Inc.GCS
Technology Limited, effective as of February 2802

Software and Services Master Supply Agreement {Namerica) by and among Lucent Technologies Ind. @8G
Systems International, Inc. and CSG Software, thated as of February 28, 20

Software and Services Master Supply Agreementrtiateonal) by and among Lucent Technologies Ind. @8G
System International, Inc. and CSG Software, ldated as of February 28, 20

Securities Purchase Agreement by and among, ComMexs as Purchaser, CSG Software, Inc., CSG Amaeri
Holdings, Inc., CSG Netherlands BV, CSG Technolbigyited, the Companies to be Acquired, and CSG&yst
International, Inc. and CSG Netherlands CV, Acfifigough its General Partner, CSG International khgis, LLC,
as Sellers, dated October 6, 2(

Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, datediber 9, 200

Second Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreenaged december 9, 20!

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Comp

Revised Bylaws of CSG Systems International,

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatérmiorporation of CSG Systems International,
Form of Common Stock Certifica

Indenture dated as of June 2, 2004 between thesRagfi and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americasimgl to the
CODES

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Jun®@4 detween the Registrant and Lehman Brothers

CSG Systems International, Inc. 1995 Incentive ISRlen

CSG Employee Stock Purchase F

CSG Systems International, Inc. 1996 Stock Incenfilan, as amended August 14, 2

CSG Systems International, Inc. 2005 Stock Incenfilan, as amended August 14, 2

CSG Systems International, Inc. Performance BomagrBm, as amended August 14, 2!

CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incenfilan, as amended August 14, 2

Form of Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systinternational, Inc. and Directors and Execu@fficers

Indemnification Agreement between CSG Systemsnatanal, Inc. and Mr. Ronald Cooper, dated Novenilte
2006

CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreeménebn CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, LLC dated March 17, -
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Exhibit
Number

10.20A*(15
10.20B*(16
10.20C*(20
10.20D*(23
10.20E*(26'
10.20F*(28)
10.20G*(29
10.20H*
10.22*(25)
10.22A%(31,
10.22B*

10.30(15)

10.39(4)
10.39A(35)
10.40*(11)

10.40A*(23)

10.44(6)
10.45(36)
10.46(3)

Description
First Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Agezgrhetween CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Second Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Aggaebetween CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Fourth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Agess between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Fifth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Agerbetween CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Sixth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Agesgrhetween CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Seventh Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriberehgeat between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Eighth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Agesg between CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast Cable
Communications Management, L1

Ninth Amendment to the CSG Master Subscriber Agesdrbetween CSG Systems, Inc. and Comcast (
Communications Management, L1

CSG Master Subscriber Management System Agreenetnebn CSG Systems, Inc. and EchoStar SatelliteCL.L
effective November 1, 20C

First and Second Amendment to CSG Master Subsddlaeagement System Agreement between CSG Systemsic
EchoStar Satellite L.L.C

Third Amendment to CSG Master Subscriber Manager8gstem Agreement between CSG Systems, Inc. anolStah
Satellite L.L.C.

$100,000,000 Credit Agreement among CSG Systeramiaional, Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders from &tm Time
Parties Hereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Assamiatas Administrative Agent, Keybank National Asisdion, as
Syndication Agent, and Wells Fargo Bank, Nationasdéciation and Keybank National Association ad €ad Arranger
and C-Book Runners, dated as of September 21, .

CSG Systems, Inc. Wealth Accumulation Plan, as ae@iNovember 16, 19¢
First Amendment to Wealth Accumulation Plan, as reaeel August 14, 20C

Third Amended and Restated Services Agreement leetwigst Data Technologies, Inc. and CSG Systemes dated
August 1, 200:

First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated SesviA\greement between First Data Technologiesamt.CSG
Systems, Inc. dated June 28, 2|

CSG Systems International, Inc. Stock Option PtarNor-Employee Director
Separation and Release Agreement with Edward Gid\aated December 6, 20
Employment Agreement with Edward Nafus, dated Ndveni7, 199¢
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E)L(Jrr]rlgttar Description

10.46A(17 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Edw@rdNafus, dated January 11, 2(
10.46B(18 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with EdvzarNafus, dated March 8, 20
10.46C(32 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with Edw@rdNafus, dated March 6, 20
10.46D(35 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement with Ediv@r Nafus dated August 14, 20
10.47(27) Employment Agreement with Randy R. Wiese, dated!&ar;, 2006

10.47A(32 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with RaRdyiese, dated March 6, 20
10.47B(35 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Rahdyiese, dated August 14, 20
10.48(5) Employment Agreement with Peter E. Kalan, datedidan18, 200:

10.48A(28 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with P&eKalan, dated May 23, 20(
10.48B(32 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Fetétalan, dated March 6, 20
10.48C(35 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with P&eKalan, dated August 14, 20
10.49(30) Employment Agreement with Joseph T. Ruble, datedaky 18, 200:

10.49A(32 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with JosEpRuble, dated March 6, 201
10.49B(35 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Jo3efRuble, dated August 14, 20
10.50(9) CSG Systems International, Inc. 2001 Stock Incenfilan

10.57(10) Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Peter E. Katlated August 22, 20(

10.57A(17 First Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreenveith Peter E. Kalan, dated January 11, 2
10.58(10) Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Peter E. Katiated August 30, 20(

10.58A(17 First Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreenveith Peter E. Kalan, dated January 11, 2
10.59(10) Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Edward C.udaflated August 30, 20!
10.59A(17 First Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreenveittt Edward C. Nafus, dated January 11, 2
10.64(17) Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Peter E. Katlated January 11, 20

10.65(17) Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Edward C.udaflated January 11, 20
10.66(17) Amendment of Stock Option Agreement with EdwardN@fus, dated January 11, 2C
10.67(17) Amendment of Stock Option Agreement with EdwardN@fus, dated January 11, 2C
10.68(19) Restricted Stock Award with Robert M. Scott, datéarch 25, 200!

10.70(22) Employment Agreement with Robert M. Scott, datedelé, 200:

10.70A(32 First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Rolb&rScott, dated March 6, 20t
10.70B(35 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with RddeScott, dated August 14, 20
10.72(23) Restricted Stock Award Agreement with Edward C.udaflated June 30, 20
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.80(15) Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

10.80A(34) Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

10.80B(33) Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

10.80C(35 Forms of Agreement for Equity Compensat

12.10 Statement regarding computation of Ratio of EarmitagFixed Charge

21.01 Subsidiaries of the Registre

23.01 Consent of KPMG LLF

31.01 Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z

31.02 Certifications Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z

32.01 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

(1)
()

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)

(16)

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the saumber to the Registration Statement No-244 on Form -1.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 1997

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $hene number to the Registrant’'s Annual ReportamFL0-K, as amended for the year
ended December 31, 19¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $hene number to the Registrant’'s Annual ReportamFL0-K, as amended, for the year
ended December 31, 19¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2001

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2001

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of taene number to the Registrant’s Annual Report@mFL0-K for the year ended
December 31, 200:

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Current RepoRam 8-K for the event dated
March 14, 2002

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $aee number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repofarm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 200z

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2004

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the samumber to the Registri s Registration Statement No. 117427 on Form-3.
Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 200«

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’'s Annual RepoRam 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 200-
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(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)

*

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFoom 8-K for the event dated
January 11, 200!

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’'s Current RepoFoom 8-K for the event dated
March 6, 2005

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current RepoRoom 8-K for the event dated March
25, 2005

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2005

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFoom 8K for the event dated May Z
2005.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current Repofoom 8-K/A (Amendment No. 2) for
the event dated March 6, 2005, filed on June 852

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFoom 8-K for the event dated
December 9, 200!

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Annual RepoRam 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 200!

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2006

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFoom 8-K for the event dated April
25, 2006

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & $ame number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFfoom 8-K for the event dated
November 16, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Annual RepoRarm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current RepoFoom 8-K for the event dated March
6, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2007

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & s$ame number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoFRorm 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2007

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepoRorm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit & same number to the Registrant’s Current Repofoom 8-K/A for the event dated
November 14, 2007, filed on December 11, 2(

Portions of the exhibit have been omitted parguo an application for confidential treatmemig ahe omitted portions have been filed
separately with the Commissic
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Exhibit 10.20H
NINTH AMENDMENT

TO
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC

This Ninth Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by detweerCSG Systems, Inc.a Delaware corporation (“CSG”) af@bmcast

Cable Communications Management, LLC.a Delaware Limited Liability Company (“CustomerQSG and Customer entered into a
certain CSG Master Subscriber Management Systereehgent dated March 17, 2004, and now desire to duthenAgreement in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth in this Aent. If the terms and conditions set forth is imendment shall be in conflict with the
Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Amenudrskall control. Any terms in initial capital lets or all capital letters used as a defined
term but not defined in this Amendment shall h&eerheaning set forth in the Agreement. Upon exenudf this Amendment by the parties,
any subsequent reference to the Agreement betwegpatties shall mean the Agreement as amendddsfnmendment. Except as amended
by this Amendment, the terms and conditions sehfiorthe Agreement shall continue in full forcedagffect according to their terms.

CSG and Customer agree to the following as of theftective Date:

1. Customer desires to add Enhanced Accounts Recable to the Agreement; therefore, Schedule FSection I.C under CSG
SERVICES shall be amended to include the followingricing:

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Freqguency Fee
11. Enhanced Accounts Receivab
a)*****_** (**** *) *kk hkkkkhkk $~k *kk k%
*kkk ke kkk k% *% kkkk kkk kkk kkkkhkkkhkkkhk khkkk kkkkhkk kk kkk k% *kk kk k* k% *% % *%k kkkk * *%k kk kkkk

Kkkkkkkkkkkkhk kkkkkkkk kkk kkkkhkkkkkk

2. Customer desires to add Highlight Color and Mail Trace to the Direct Solutions (print and mail) fees

a) therefore, Schedule F, Section IIl.A.ll under CSG SERVICES shall be amemed to include the following fee fot
Highlight Color;

Description of Item/Unit of Measure Freguency Fee
C. Highlight Color (Note 14) ok R AR G Tk
kkhkk khk: kkkkkkkkk kkkkk kk khkkhhhhhk k% *kk *kkk*xkx *kkk kk kkkk hhkhhhhkk khkkkkkkk kkkk *hkh'kh khkhhhik * kkkkkkkkhk
kkhkkkk kkk kkk kkk kkkk kkhkkkhk hhkhhhhkk kkkkkkx % kkkkk khkkhk khkk kkk k% kkkk kk khhhhhhk k% *kk x%x * kkkkkhkk kkkk
kkhk  kkkkkkkk kkkkk kk kkkkkhhhk kk kkk k kkkkk_k*k % *k kkkkhk kkkkk kk kkkkkkkk *)\: k*kkkkkkk kkkk kkkkkkk *k kkk
; *k*k % * k% *% kk kkk * *kk kk k% *kk k% * * *kkk * * * kkkk kk kkkkkk * k% kkkkk
*kk kkk kkkkkkkhkk kkkkk kkk kk * *k*k * * : *kk kkk kkk *%k% * * k% %% *% * kkkk

b) and Schedule F, Section IlI.A.VII under CSG SERVICES shall be amaded to include the following fees for Malil

Trace;
Description of Item/Unit of Measure Freguency Fee
D. Mail Trace
1 *kkk kkkkk kkkkkkk (**** **) *kk kkkkkkk $~k *k%k k%
. Vo
2 kkkk kkkkk kkhkkkkhkkkk (*** *kkkhkkkkhk *kkkhkhkk $ * kkkk
3 * kkk kkhkkk _ kkkk kkkk kkkkkkkkkkk kkkk k% *kk hkkkkhkk $ *% k%
4 kkkhk kkkhkk kkhkkkkhkk kkhkkkk k% (*** *k% (**** **) *kkkhkhkkk $~k *kk k%
. B
kkkk hks hkkk hkkkk kkkhkh khhhkkhhkhk kkhk dhhhkkik k% khkhkk khkk hhkkhk khhhkkk kkk hhkk *k khhhhk dhrhik (****** *kkkk
kkkkhkhkk hkkkkhhkik *********) kkkkhkk hk k hkhk kkhkhk k% *kk kkkkkkhkkk Khhkk hhkk_kk kkkkkk k% kkk Kk hAhkkkkk % *kkkkkkk
*kkkkk kkk kkk ***/***** *kk kkkkkkhkkk kkkkkhkkkhkk kk * kkkkkkkk kkkkkk khkhkk_kk kk kkkk kkkkkkkkkkk kkk kkk *kkkkkk kk
L
*kkkk kkkk kkkk kkkkk
kkkk kke kkk kkkhkk hkkk kkkk kk hkkkkhkkhkhkk kk kkkkkk *kk kkk *_ * (**) * *%% *% * * k%% % *kk k% *
. . ,
*kkkkk (**) *kkk kkk *% * k% *%k kkk k% k% *hkkkk kk kkkkhkkhkhkk kkkk khkkk hkhkkhkkhk kkkhkk kkk kkk *kkk kkkk
. 1

khkkkhkhkkkk kkk
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khkk khke kkk kkkk kkkkk kkk hhkk kk ok kkkk kkkkkkkkk

*kk Kk kkk

* *%% % * kkk kkk kkhkkkkk Kk

*kk kkk hkk kkk % * * *% kkk kkkk

* kkk kkkk kkk

*khkk kkkk kkk

The information contained under Schedule P of the greement shall be deleted in its entirety and reptzed by the following
updated information:

“Comcast Authorization Schedule

*kk KkkkEkhk

FkkFkkk Kkkkkhkkk

FkkKk

Fkkkkkk

* *kkk *
& *kkkkkkkhkk

*k% / *kkk

*k%

*hkkkhkkkhkkk

*kk

khkkkhkkkhkkk
*kk

*kk

kkhkkkkhk hkkkhkkkk

*kkkkkhkk

khkkkhkkhhkkhx

*% * kkkk

*kkkkk hkkhhhhkk

*kkk kkkkk

kkk kkkkkkk

*kkkkk hkkhhhhkk

*kk kkkkkhhhhkk

kkkkkk kkkkkhkkkk

*kkkk kkhkkk

kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk

*kkkk kkhkkk

*kk kkkkkhhhhik

*kkkkk hkkhkhhkk

*kkkk kkhkkk

Kkkkkkk kkkkkkkk

*kkkk kkhkkk

kkkkkk kkkkkkkk

*kk kkkkkkk

Kkkkkkhkk kkkk

*% * *kkk % *%

*kkk kkkkkhhhk Khkkkkk kkkx
1

*k kk kkkkkkkhkkkk kkkkkkk

*k kk kkkkkkk kkkkkkk

*kkkkhkkhk hk kkkkkkk

*% *%k k% % *

kkkk kkkkkkkkk khkkkkkk kkk
*kkkkkhkk *k ***v\"******* K*kkkkkk
kkkkkhkkk kk kkkkkkk

kkkkkhkk kk kkkkkkhkkkkk *kkkkkk

*% *%k k% % *

*kkk kkkkkkkkk khkkkkkk kkk
kkkkkhkk *k ***Jc******* K*kkkkkk
kkkkkhkkk kkkkkkk kkk

kkkkkhkk kk kkkkkkhkkkkk *kkkkkk
kkkkkhkkk kkkkkkk kkk

*kkkkk hkkhhhhkk

*k kk kkkkkkk kkkkkkk

kkkkkhkk kkkkhkkkkhkk kkkkkkkkhkk kkhkkhkkk kkkkkkkkkk k%

** * *k% *
*kk kkhkkkhk kkkkkkkhkk kk *kk
kkkkkhkkkk
kk kkkkkhk kkkkkkkkk kk *kk
kkkkkhkkkk

*% * *%k%k *

*kkkkkkk

kkkkkhkkk kkkkkkkkkkkhkkk
kkkkkhkkkkhk kk kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk
kkkkkhkkkk kkkkkkkkkkhkkk
kkkkkhkkkkhk kk kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk

*kkkkkkk

** * *k% *
kkkkkhkkkkhk kk kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk
kkkkkhkkkkhk kk kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk
kkkkkhkkkkhk kk kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk
kkkkkhkkkkk kk kkkkkk kkkkkkkkk

*% kkkkkkk kkk

*kk kkhkkkk kkkkkkkhkk kk *kk
*kkkkkhkkkk

kkkkkhk kkkkkkkkk ”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Amendrent on the date last signed below (“Effective Dat¢”’

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS

CSG SYSTEMS, INC. (“CSG”)

MANAGEMENT, LLC (“CUSTOMER?”)

By:  /s/ Andrew J. Baer

By: /s/ Robert M. Scott

Name Andrew J. Baer

Name Robert M. Scott

Title: SVP and CIO

Title: Chief Operating Officer

Date: 10/17/07

Date: 10/29/07

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF THE PARTIES
HERETO AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DISTRIBUTION WITHIN O R OUTSIDE THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES
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Exhibit 10.22B

THIRD AMENDMENT
TO
CSG MASTER SUBSCRIBER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
CSG SYSTEMS, INC.
AND
ECHOSTAR SATELLITE L.L.C.

This Third Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made g detweerCSG Systems, Inc.a Delaware corporation (“CSG”) afathoStar
Satellite L.L.C., a Colorado limited liability company (“Customer3SG and Customer entered into a certain CSG M8&siiescriber
Management System Agreement dated December 1, 26@Bnended (the “Agreement”), and now desire tenahthe Agreement in
accordance with the terms and conditions set farthis Amendment. If the terms and conditionsfegh in this Amendment shall be in
conflict with the Agreement, the terms and condisiof this Amendment shall control. Any terms iitiéh capital letters or all capital letters
used as a defined term but not defined in this Adrmeamt shall have the meaning set forth in the Agesd. Upon execution of this
Amendment by the parties, any subsequent refettertte Agreement between the parties shall meaAdneement as amended by this
Amendment. Except as amended by this Amendmentethes and conditions set forth in the Agreemeatlslontinue in full force and effe
according to their terms.

CSG and Customer agree to the following as of theftective Date:

1. In paragraph 3 of the First Amendment to the Agreenent, executed between the parties on October 3, (he “1 st
Amendment”) the parties agreed that CSG would proue *,*** Development Tiger Team Hours (“DTTH”) mont hly *** *
kkhkkkkhk kkk kk kkk kkkkkkk khkkhkhk khhhhkhkk kkkkkxkx for the Calendar year 2007 kkk kkk kkhkkk kkkkkkk k% * kkkkkkkk hkk
Fkkkkkok ek (§FFF *xx x%) for the 2008 calendar year. The parties wish to amend the Development ér Team Hours as set
forth below. As a result, Section 1.3 of Schedule & the Agreement shall be amended to remove the i Customer commitment
for October through December 2007 and for the 2008alendar year of *,*** hours under the 1stAmendment which shall be
replaced by the following table and language for Deelopment Tiger Team Hours:

= *kkk kkkkk kkhk kkkkk kkkkkkk kkk
kkkkkhkk kkkkhkkk kkkkkkkk kkkk *,*** $ ***,***.**
kkkkkhkk kkkkhkkk kkkkkkkk kkkk *,*** $ ***,***.**
Kk kkk kkkkk kkhkkkkhkk kkhkk kkk kkkk kkk kkkkkk k% * kkkk kkk kkkkk kkhk hkkkk kkkkk kkkkhkk *kk *kkkk k% kkk kkkkkkkk kkkk
(*** “*********”), kkkkkhkkk kkkkk kkk kk kkkkkkkk * Kk kkkkk kkk kk kkkkkkkk kk kkkkk k kkkhkkk kk kkkkk *kkk kk kkk
*kk kk k % * k% k% * k% * *kkk *% k% * *kk % * k% k% *kk % *% *kk kkkkkk kkk
*% kkk * *k kkkk khkk kkkkk *******,***** *kk kkk *k% *% k% * * *% kkkk * *% * kkkk kk-
(*) $**.*~k** *kk kkkk k% *i:** *k%k (*) * kkkk k% $* *.**** *kk kkkk k% ****. * *% kkk k% * * , *kkkkkkk kkkkk *kk k%
*% kkk *% kkk k% * *% * kkk kkk *kk *kk kk k% *% % *kk % * k% % k% *% *kkkkhk kkkkkik

K*kkkkkkkk N

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Amendrent on the date last signed below (the “Effective &1e").

ECHOSTAR SATELLITE L.L.C. CSG SYSTEMS, INC. “CSG")
(“CUSTOMER?”)

By: /s/ Chuck Knoctman By: /s/ Robert M. Scott
Name Chuck Knoctman Name Robert M. Scott

Title: N.V.P. Title: Chief Operating Officer
Date: 11/9/07 Date: 11/12/07

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION - FOR USE BY AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES OF THE PARTIES
HERETO AND IS NOT FOR GENERAL DISTRIBUTION WITHIN O R OUTSIDE THEIR RESPECTIVE COMPANIES
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CSG Systems International, Inc.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
(in thousands, except ratios)

Income from continuing operations before incomes&
Fixed Charges

Interest on lon-term and sho-term debt including amortization of debt expe
Interest element of rente

Total fixed charge
Earnings before income taxes and fixed cha

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

EXHIBIT 12.10

Year Ended
December 31

2007
$ 93,46

7,12¢
3,25(
10,37¢

$ 103,83
10.01



EXHIBIT 21.01
CSG Systems International, Inc.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant
As of December 31, 2007

State or Country

Subsidiary of Incorporation
CSG Systems, In Delawart
CSG Services, In Delawart
CSG International Holdings LL! Delawart

Prairie Interactive Messaging, Ir Delawart



EXHIBIT 23.01
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
CSG Systems International, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irr¢lggstration statements on Form S-8 (File Nos-B3315, 333-32951, 333-48451,
333-83715, 333-42202, 333-81656, 333-104206, 33348 and 333-125584) and Form S-3/A (File No. 3334R7) of CSG Systems
International, Inc. of our reports dated Februé8y2008, with respect to the consolidated balaheets of CSG Systems International, Inc. as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the relatecbtidated statements of income, stockholdergiity and cash flows for each of the yea
the three-year period ended December 31, 200 7theneffectiveness of internal control over finahogporting as of December 31, 2007,
which reports appear in the December 31, 2007 dmapart on Form 10-K of CSG Systems Internatioivad,

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 28, 2008



EXHIBIT 31.01

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Peter E. Kalan, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CSG Systems International, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un

our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettie registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of director:

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 28, 2008 /sl PETERE. K ALAN

Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer and President



EXHIBIT 31.02

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Randy R. Wiese, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CSG Systems International, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un

our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgdeng the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettie registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of director:

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 28, 2008 /sl  RANDY R. WIESE

Randy R. Wiese
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office



EXHIBIT 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitte connection with the Annual Report on Form 1@tke “Report”)for the purpose ¢
complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b}lvé Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchafig&) and Section 1350 of Chapter
63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

Peter E. Kalan, the Chief Executive Officer and ®aR. Wiese, the Chief Financial Officer of CSG t8yss International, Inc., each
certifies that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act;
(2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
CSG Systems International, Ir

February 28, 200

/s/ PETERE. K ALAN
Peter E. Kalan
Chief Executive Officer and President

February 28, 200

/s/ RanDY R. WIESE

Randy R. Wiese
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




